
COUNCIL WORK SESSION March 25, 2019 
 
 
 

1 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a Council Work Session of the North Mankato City 
Council was held in the North Mankato Police Annex on March 25, 2019.  Mayor Dehen called the 
meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. The following were present for roll call: Mayor Dehen, Council 
Members Whitlock, Norland and Oachs, Finance Director McCann, and City Clerk Van Genderen. 
Absent: Council Member Steiner and City Administrator Harrenstein. 

 
Review of County Land and Valuation Process-County Assessor Lorna Sandvik 
 County Assessor Lorna Sandvik appeared before Council and stated in 1974 a process began 
that created a County base for property assessments, this is reviewed every year.  Assessors visit 
properties every 5 years and North Mankato’s property was reviewed in 2016.   Ms. Sandvik reported 
often there is not a lot of changes based on the visits, but sometimes assessors find a basement that was 
flooded and is no longer finished or they may find a deck has been added.  All of the property 
information is entered into the Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal System. State statute requires the 
County to maintain assessments at between 90%-105% of market value.  If a property is assessed at 
$90,000 and it sells for $100,000 a ratio is established by dividing the assessed value by the sales price. 
In the case of the example the ratio would be 90%, which is within the State mandated requirements.  
Ms. Sandvik reported the entire City must fall within the average, but the County also looks at 
neighborhoods within the City to ensure all areas are equitably assessed.  She noted the assessment 
notices are sent out in March.  Classifications are noted on the assessment notices and individuals may 
want to remember to review the classifications.  If someone notices the classification of the property 
has changed they should contact the assessor’s office and have it changed.  Individuals who believe 
their classification/assessment is unfair should contact the Assessor’s Office.  If after speaking with the 
Assessor’s Office they are still not satisfied with the assessment they can appeal to the Local Board of 
Appeal and Equalization, if they are dissatisfied with the classification at the Local Board of Appeal 
they can appeal to the County Board of Appeal and if they are still dissatisfied the case can go to tax 
court.  Mayor Dehen requested clarification on the number of individuals who appeal their 
classification.  Ms. Sandvik stated very few appeal and most are satisfied after speaking and being 
heard about their concerns.  Council Member Whitlock requested clarification on if the Assessor’s 
Office contacts City officials if an improvement has been made and a building permit had not been 
issued.  Ms. Sandvik indicated conversations with the City have been held following on-site 
assessments.  Ms. Sandvik noted increasing value is a positive for homeowners because their 
investment is not depreciating in value. Mayor Dehen requested market trends for 2019.  Ms. Sandvik 
indicated sales seemed to be steady from previous years.   
 
Revenue Guide-Permits and Licenses 
 Finance Director McCann reviewed the Permits and Licenses Revenue Guide which included 
alcohol licenses, Rental Housing Licenses, Rental License Strikes, Amusement Devices, Tobacco 
Licenses, Soft Drink Licenses, Cabaret Licenses, Peddlers Licenses and Other Business licenses.  The 
revenue is trending steady to a slight increase. Council Member Norland requested clarification on 
how often the fees are reviewed.  Finance Director McCann reported the fees are reviewed annually 
and the last major increase was in 2017.   
  
 Council Member Whitlock reported he has received several emails concerning the use of 
Premiere Vets as the holding location for North Mankato stray animals.  He noted the business is under 
State review and the City is looking for a different business to work with, but there are limited 
locations that would be willing to take in strays.   
 



COUNCIL WORK SESSION March 25, 2019 
 
 
 

2 

 Mayor Dehen closed the Council Work Session at 12:30 p.m. 
 

        ___________________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
__________________________________ 
City Clerk        



COUNCIL MINUTES April 1, 2019 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the North Mankato City Council was held 
in the Municipal Building Council Chambers on April 1, 2019. Acting Mayor Steiner called the 
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. asking that everyone join in the Pledge of Allegiance. The following 
were present for roll call: Council Member Steiner, Norland, and Whitlock, City Administrator 
Harrenstein, City Attorney Kennedy, Finance Director Mccann, Community Development Director 
Fischer, Public Works Director Host, and City Clerk Van Genderen. Mayor Dehen arrived at 7:08 p.m. 

Approval of Agenda 
Council Member Norland moved, seconded by Council Member Whitlock, to approve the 

agenda. Vote on the motion: Steiner, Norland, and Whitlock aye; no nays. Motion carried. 

Approval of Council Meeting Minutes March 18, 2019 
Council Member Whitlock moved, seconded by Council Member Norland, to approve the 

minutes of the Council meeting of March 18, 2019. Vote on the motion: Steiner, Norland, and 
Whitlock aye; no nays. Motion carried. 

Approval of Council Work Session Minutes March 25, 2019 
Council Member Norland and Whitlock indicated they would abstain from the vote. 

With no majority, the March 25, 2019, Work Session Minutes were tabled. 

Consent Agenda 
Council Member Norland moved, seconded by Council Member Whitlock, to approve the 

Consent Agenda. 
A. Bills and Appropriations. 
B. Res. No. 30-19 Approving Donations/Contributions/Grants. 
C. Approved Park and Audio Permit for Selchow-Hanson Wedding at Spring Lake Park 

Shelter #2, on September 13, 2019, from 2:00 pm to 6:00 pm. 
D. Approved Park and Audio Permit for Lasting Imprint Community Day at Spring Lake Park 

Shelter# 1 and #2 on September 28, 2019, from 5 :30 am to 1 :00 pm. 
E. Res. No. 31-19 Waiving Waiting Period for Exemption from Lawful Gambling License for 

the Knights of Columbus. 

Vote on the motion: Steiner, Norland, and Whitlock aye; no nays. Motion carried. 

Public Comments Concerning Business Items on the Agenda 
None 

Business Items 
Res. No. 32-19 Declaring Cost to be Assessed, and Ordering Preparation of Proposed 

Assessment Project No. 18-07 ABCDEF 2019 Tyler Avenue Reconstruction Project. 
City Engineer Sarff appeared before Council and reported he would discuss the next two 

resolutions. He reported bids were opened on Thursday, March 28, 2019. Three bids were received 
with WW Blacktopping the low bid at $500,097 .08, Holtmeier Construction, Inc. at $510,490.53, and 
OMG Midwest, Inc. (SMC) at $566, 134.85. The Preliminary Engineering Report estimated the project 
at $434,700, but a revised estimate presented at Council on February 19, 2019, estimated the cost at 
$470,000. The low bid is approximately 15% above the Preliminary Engineering Report estimate and 
6% above the estimate presented in February. Based on past performance on similar projects in 
previous years it is recommended to approve the bid. The City will not be approving the bids until the 



COUNCIL MINUTES April 1, 2019 2 

assessment process is completed. The first resolution allows the preparation of the proposed 
assessment. City Engineer Sarff reported the next resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment 
Project NO. 18-07 ABCDEF 2019 Tyler Avenue Reconstruction Project sets a date for the public 
hearing on the proposed assessment. The assessment roll was included in the packet and based on past 
practice the City has capped the assessment for each property at $6,000. Council Member Steiner 
requested a review of the assessment policy. City Engineer Sarff reported property owners could 
prepay the assessment before December 1, 2019, and no interest would be charged or the owner could 
allow the assessment to go on their tax roll and interest will be charged. The assessment will be spread 
over 15 years beginning in 2020. City Administrator Harrenstein noted that it was calculated that 
$260,000 could be assessed to the properties with each property being assessed between $12,000 and 
$13,000 but the City did not find that this was a reasonable assessment and the Council has established 
an assessment cap. State statute requires 20% of the project be assessed to properties and the $120,000 
just makes the minimum. 

Council Member Norland moved, seconded by Council Member Whitlock to Adopt Res. 
No. 32-19 Declaring Cost to be Assessed, and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment 
Project No. 18-07 ABCDEF 2019 Tyler Avenue Reconstruction Project. Vote on the motion: 
Steiner, Norland, Whitlock, and Dehen aye; no nays. Motion carried. 

Council Member Steiner moved, seconded by Council Member Norland to Adopt Res. 
No. 33-19 for Hearing on Proposed Assessment Project No. 18-07 ABCDEF 2019 Tyler Avenue 
Reconstruction Project. Vote on the motion: Steiner, Norland, Whitlock, and Dehen aye; no 
nays. Motion carried. 

Res. No. 34-19 Approving Plans and Specifications and Ordering Advertisement for Bids 
for Project No. 18-05 DEF 2019 Commerce Drive Improvement. 

City Engineer Sarff appeared before Council and reported plans and specifications had been 
prepared for the 2019 Commerce Drive Improvement Project. The plans are currently being reviewed 
by the Minnesota Department of Transportation. The project is located on Commerce Drive between 
Lookout Drive and Lor Ray Drive and includes street and drainage improvements, removal and 
consolidation of access points, streetscaping and lighting, pedestrian nodes, new boulevard trees, 
screening shrubs and decorative street lighting. The estimated cost of the project is $3,314,000 with 
$1,159,414 from Federal Funds-STP Small Urban, $700,000 from State Funds-Local Road 
Improvement Program, $727,293 from Municipal State Aid Funds and $727,293 from City Funds. 
City Engineer Sarff reported the project would include weekly communication meetings with all 
properties affected by the construction. The City would wait to advertise the project until after 
MnDOT approved the plans. Attorney Kennedy requested information on the assessment process. 
City Engineer Sarff noted the policy does not differentiate between residents and commercial 
properties. City Finance Director McCann reported he used a similar formula as what is used for 
residential properties to determine proposed assessments for the business properties. City 
Administrator Harrenstein noted Finance Director McCann worked to make the assessments equitable. 
City Council Member Norland noted she was glad the project was moving forward. 

Council Member Steiner moved, seconded by Council Member Norland to Adopt Res. 
No. 34-19 Approving Plans and Specifications and Ordering Advertisement for Bids for Project 
No. 18-05 DEF 2019 Commerce Drive Improvement. Vote on the motion: Steiner, Norland, 
Whitlock, and Dehen aye; no nays. Motion carried. 



COUNCIL MINUTES April 1, 2019 

Open Forum 
None. 

City Administrator and Staff Comments 

3 

City Administrator Harrenstein reported staff was requesting Council to consider an ordinance 
increasing the amount of time that a vehicle may be parked on the street from 24-hours to 48-hours. 
Council Member Norland agreed with the proposal. Council Member Whitlock reported he was willing 
to have the ordinance brought back before Council. Mayor Dehen reported he was also in favor of 
bringing the ordinance back before Council. City Administrator Harrenstein reported City staff would 
prepare the ordinance and set a public hearing at the next Council Meeting. 

Public Works Director Host reminded the City that Spring Cleanup days would be April 8-12 
for the valley and April 15-19 for the hilltop. He indicated staff is out patching potholes. 

Public Works Director Host reported staff continues the 24-hour levee patrol to watch for areas 
of danger and thanked the public works department, the volunteer firefighters and police reserves for 
their work. 

Finance Director McCann requested clarification if Council would like to review the proposed 
RubyRide contract at the next Council Work Session or the next Council Meeting. Staff was directed 
to bring the contract to the next Council meeting. 

City Clerk Van Genderen reported the Board of Appeal and Equalization would be held on 
April 18, 2019, in the North Mankato Police Annex and citizens who wish to discuss their property 
valuation or classification must first call the Nicollet County Assessors Office. 

Mayor and Council Comments 
Council Member Norland reminded individuals to stop putting shredded paper in the organics 

recycling. It must go to the recycling center. 

Council Member Whitlock reported an individual expressed concerns about the tax rate in 
North Mankato. Council Member Whitlock reviewed property tax information for both Mankato and 
North Mankato and noted Mankato's portion of their tax bill is higher than North Mankato's portion of 
the tax bill. He also noted that the City of North Mankato reduced the property tax rate by 1 %. Mayor 
Dehen commented that property value is increasing which is good for the property owner, and the City 
is mindful of the increasing value, and he worked to decrease the levy in North Mankato. 

Council Member Whitlock reviewed an article he found in the Sr. Perspective about Council 
Member Norland's volunteer work with her husband, Larry Norland. Council Member Whitlock 
expressed his condolences on the recent loss of her husband. 

Council Member Steiner expressed his condolences to Council Member Norland on the passing 
of her husband. Council Member Steiner also extended his condolences to the family of Terry McGee, 
a former Council Member and Election Judge. 

Mayor Dehen expressed his condolences to Council Member Norland. Mayor Dehen also 
extended his sympathy to Jonathan Zierdt's family. 



COUNCIL MINUTES April 1, 2019 

Mayor Dehen noted on April 12th the library will be conducting an Easter Egg Hunt at the library 
beginning at 6:30 pm. On April 13th Bunnies on Belgrade and adult Easter Egg Hunt will occur on the 
200 Block of Belgrade, hosted by the Boy Scouts; and on April 20th, an Easter Egg Scramble will be 
held at Caswell Park. 

At 7:46 p.m. on a motion by Council Member Norland, seconded by Council Member Steiner 
the Council Meeting was adjourned. 

Mayor 

City Clerk 

4 



COUNCIL WORK SESSION April 8, 2019 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a Council Work Session of the North Mankato City 
Council was held in the Street Department at 610 Webster A venue on April 8, 2019. Mayor Dehen 
called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. The following were present for roll call: Mayor Dehen, 
Council Members Steiner, Whitlock, and Norland, City Administrator Harrenstein, Finance Director 
McCann, Public Works Director Host, Street Superintendent Ling, City Engineer Sarff, and City Clerk 
Van Genderen. Council Member Oachs arrived at 12:05 p.m. 

Benson Parking Lot Entryway 
City Administrator Harrenstein noted Public Works Director Host reviewed the proposed 

parking lot at Benson Park and requested a review of the entrance due to possible traffic constraints. 
As currently designed, travelers approaching from the east would need to go past the entry and do a u
turn and drivers exiting the parking lot would not be able to tum west. City Engineer Sarff presented 
three options and reported Option 1, would align the parking lot exit with Fairbanks Drive, Option 2 
would remove a portion of the median to accommodate full access, and Option 3 would completely 
remove the median and create a left tum lane. City staff recommends option 1. Mayor Dehen 
indicated he supported option one because it aligned the access points which will cause fewer issues in 
the future. City Engineer Sarff indicated the Parking Lot project has already been bid so a few 
modifications will need to be made. He reported the number of stalls would remain the same. Mayor 
Dehen noted a walking trail goes through the proposed parking lot and requested modifications to 
accommodate the trail. City Engineer Sarff reported that would be possible. City Administrator 
Harrenstein requested clarification on the start date. City Engineer Sarff reported a firm date has yet to 
be established by WW. Blacktopping who was awarded the contract, and they indicated it was planned 
for early in the construction season. Public Works Director Host noted a Public Works Employee 
reported the issue and he thanked them for bringing it to his attention. 

Proposed Ravine Improvement Project 
City Administrator Harrenstein reported City staff presented a ravine report to City Council on 

February 11, 2019, and staff has continued to review the ravines and have continued planning on how 
to manage the ravines. City Engineer Sarff reported a very large watershed, 630 acres, discharges into 
the North Ridge ravine. The existing land use within the watershed area is mostly commercial and 
industrial in nature, and most of tJie development occurred prior to the storm water management 
requirements that are in place today, so there is very little stormwater ponding. The storm sewer pipe 
that discharges into the ravine is 72 inches in diameter. The pipe only extends approximately 400 feet 
from the head of the ravine at Pleasant View Drive. Downstream from the pipe, the ravine exhibits 
varying levels of erosion, in some areas quite severe. City Engineer Sarff reviewed proposed options 
for addressing and correcting the problems in the ravine. The work includes clearing fallen trees within 
the storm sewer/fill area, extending 72" storm sewer through the area, filing over and adjacent to the 
pipe to a depth of approximately 2 feet above the pipe, constructing riprap check dams at each inlet 
"pushing" fill up into the slopes of slope failure areas, temporary erosion control and permanent turf 
establishment in the ravine and adjacent areas. This approach has been successful in several other 
ravines throughout the City resulting in permanent solutions to the erosion and other problems in those 
ravines. Due to the size of approximately 3,200 feet, the estimated cost for the improvement would be 
$3 .1 million. The staff is recommending allocating funding for ravine improvement in the annual 
capital improvement plan and completimg the improvement in segments that would cost approximately 
$700,000 to 800,000 a year. Discussion was held about increasing the number of holding ponds and 
searching for sites to add ponds to slow down the water moving into the ravines. Mayor Dehen 
specifically requested additional information on a possible holding pond on Commerce Drive, in the 



COUNCIL WORK SESSION April 8, 2019 

industrial park, and also in the Northridge Park as these areas have issues with ponding and draining. 
City Engineer Sarff reported both areas could be investigated. 

2019 Bond Issue Summary 
City Administrator Harrenstein presented a brief overview of the proposed bond issuance for 

2019. He reported the bond would include $730,000 for the City's match for the Commerce Drive 
improvement, $730,000 for the ravine improvement, and $540,000 for the Tyler Avenue Project for a 
total projected bond issuance of $1.99 million. City Administrator Harrenstein reported City staff 
would prepare additional information and present it to Council. 

2 

Mayor Dehen requested staff pursue working with MnDOT to establish additional holding 
ponds to help slow water moving into the ravines. Council Member Norland requested clarification on 
the effect the ravine improvements would have on Minnesota River water quality. City Engineer Sarff 
reported it would improve the quality and they have been looking at obtaining Legacy Funds from the 
State. 

City Administrator Harrenstein reported the City would be patching a portion ofNorthridge 
Drive and the plan is to complete mil & overlay on the road in 2020. Council Member Steiner reported 
he had received concerns about Bel vista Drive. City staff reported it would be reviewed. City 
Administrator Harrenstein requested the Council drive through Haughton A venue and Lor Ray Drive 
and report back on which section of road should be completed first. 

Tour of the Street Department 
Street Superintendent Ling provided a tour of the Street Department. 

Mayor Dehen closed the Council Work Session at 12:50 p.m. 

Mayor 

City Clerk 



City of North Mankato, MN 

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date 

Bank Code: APBNK-APBNK 

00005 A TO Z RENTAL CENTER 04/15/2019 

00009 A-1 KEY CITY LOCKSMITHS, INC 04/15/2019 

00031 AIM ELECTRONICS, INC. 04/15/2019 

02434 AUSTIN'S AUTO REPAIR CENTER, INC. 04/15/2019 

02783 BALLISTIC DEFENSE LLC 04/15/2019 

00147 BLACKSTONE PUBLISHING 04/15/2019 

02169 BLUE LINE SHARPENING & SALES 04/15/2019 

00189 BRAUN INTERTEC CORPORATION 04/15/2019 

02745 BRIGGS 04/01/2019 

02757 CINTAS 04/15/2019 

00255 CITY OF MANKATO 04/15/2019 

03006 COLLINS, CAROL 04/09/2019 

00303 CRAWLER WELDING, INC. 04/15/2019 

00304 CREATIVE AD SOLUTIONS, INC. 04/15/2019 

00344 DIAMOND VOGEL PAINT CENTER 04/15/2019 

00353 DITIRICH MECHANICAL & FABRICATION 04/15/2019 

02237 EMERGENCY RESPONSE SOLUTIONS 04/15/2019 

02961 ENFORCEMENT LIGHTING, LLC 04/15/2019 

00401 EXPRESS SERVICES, INC. 04/15/2019 

00404 FASTENAL COMPANY 04/15/2019 

00409 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC 04/15/2019 

00447 FREE PRESS 04/15/2019 

03002 GIUFFRE BROS. CRANES INC. 04/15/2019 

03005 HANEL, RACHAEL 04/15/2019 

00534 HART'S AUTO SUPPLY 04/15/2019 

00577 HOLTMEIER CONSTRUCTION 04/15/2019 

03007 I SPACE ENVIRONMENTS 04/15/2019 

02917 JENNINGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C. 04/01/2019 

02917 JENNINGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C. 04/15/2019 

00639 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 04/15/2019 

00731 LAGER'S OF MANKATO, INC. 04/15/2019 

00724 LEAGUE OF MINNESOTA CITIES INSURANCE TP 04/15/2019 

00772 UTILE FALLS MACHINE, INC. 04/15/2019 

00797 MAC TOOLS DISTRIBUTOR 04/15/2019 

00800 MADDEN, GALANTER, HANSEN, LLP 04/15/2019 

02643 MANKATO DOWNTOWN KIWANIS 04/15/2019 

00819 MANKATO FORD, INC. 04/15/2019 

00829 MANKATO PUBLIC SCHOOLS 04/15/2019 

00847 MATHESON TRI-GAS, INC. 04/15/2019 

03003 MILLETI, LARRY 04/15/2019 

00963 MINNESOTA BUREAU OF CRIMINAL APPREHH 04/15/2019 

00934 MINNESOTA PETROLEUM SERVICE 04/15/2019 

02234 MINNESOTA RIVER VALLEY SCENIC BYWAY ALL 04/15/2019 

00985 MOSS & BARNETI 04/15/2019 

02060 NORTHERN COMFORT 04/15/2019 

01106 PETTY CASH 04/15/2019 

02956 Pl SPORTS, LLC 04/15/2019 

01133 POWERPLAN/RDO EQUIPMENT 04/15/2019 

01303 SOUTH CENTRAL REGIONAL FIRE DEPARTMEN' 04/15/2019 

02950 SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC. 04/15/2019 

03001 STERLING, ROBERT 04/01/2019 

01352 STREICH ER'S, INC 04/15/2019 

01371 TACTICAL SOLUTIONS 04/15/2019 

01402 TIRE ASSOCIATES 04/15/2019 

01409 TOPPERS & TRAILERS PLUS 04/15/2019 

01433 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES 04/15/2019 

02150 U.S. BANK 04/15/2019 

Payment Type 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Claims List - Regular 

Discount Amount 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

By Vendor Name 

Date Range: 4-15-19 

Payment Amount Number 

80.00 90791 

787 .00 90792 

485.00 90793 

32.46 90795 

325.00 90796 

23.85 90797 

66.00 90798 

2,000.00 90799 

20,000.00 90785 

218.43 90800 

101,493.03 90801 

77.77 90788 

207.94 90802 

21.60 90803 

110.67 90804 

3,132.50 90805 

112.26 90806 

2,500.00 90807 

438.98 90808 

32.20 90809 

5,188.89 90810 

45.99 90811 

60.85 90812 

250.00 90813 

180.00 90814 

2,254.20 90815 

14,838.75 90816 

16,500.00 90787 

9,000.00 90817 

260.13 90818 

449.14 90819 

750.00 90820 

3,952.13 90821 

105.98 90822 

4,110.39 90823 

170.00 90824 

13.10 90825 

75.00 90826 

144.24 90827 

400.00 90828 

270.00 90829 

318.00 90830 

100.00 90831 

639.00 90832 

800.63 90833 

36.94 90834 

2,020.45 90835 

6,358.03 90836 

50.00 90837 

554.29 90838 

274.00 90786 

824.68 90839 

1,760.30 90840 

731.50 90841 

250.00 90842 

125.00 90843 

850.00 90844 



01439 

02282 

01507 

01515 

01525 

00101 

00311 

00311 

00445 

00733 

00923 

01335 

01335 

01335 

01470 

02178 

01525 

00050 

00063 

00105 

00174 

00216 

02749 

02706 

00310 

02294 

02275 

00369 

00453 

00463 

01098 

00478 

00482 

02560 

00494 

00503 

00680 

02941 

00647 

00691 

02523 

00767 

00776 

00796 

02791 

00825 

00874 

00889 

00902 

00910 

02323 

00997 

01036 

01052 

02005 

01099 

01160 

02747 

01211 

01263 

01281 

01380 

01381 

01478 

00137 

00234 

02181 

UNIQUE PAVING MATERIALS CORP. 

WARD EINESS STRATEGIES 

WAYNE'S AUTO BODY, INC. 

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. 

WEST CENTRAL SANITATION, INC. 

AT&T MOBILITY 

CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING 

CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING 

FRED PRYOR SEMINARS 

LAKES GAS CO #10 

04/15/2019 

04/15/2019 

04/15/2019 

04/15/2019 

04/15/2019 

04/09/2019 

04/02/2019 

04/02/2019 

03/29/2019 

04/09/2019 

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDU! 04/01/2019 

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 03/29/2019 

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 04/04/2019 

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 04/06/2019 

VERIZON WIRELESS 04/03/2019 

WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WI-MN 04/03/2019 

WEST CENTRAL SANITATION, INC. 04/08/2019 

ALPHA WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS 04/17/2019 

AMERICAN PEST CONTROL 04/17/2019 

AUTO VALUE MANKATO 04/17/2019 

BOLTON & MENK, INC. 04/17/2019 

C & S SUPPLY CO, INC. 04/17/2019 

COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES LLC 04/17/2019 

CORE & MAIN LP 04/17/2019 

CRYSTEEL TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC 04/17/2019 

D & K POWDER COATING 04/17/2019 

DEM-CON MATERIALS & RECOVERY 04/17/2019 

EBSCO INFORMATION SERVICES 04/17/2019 

FREYBERG PETROLEUM SALES, INC. 04/17/2019 

G & L AUTO SUPPLY, LLC 04/17/2019 

GILLETTE GROUP/PEPSI-COLA 04/17/2019 

GISH ELECTRIC, LLC 04/17/2019 

GMS INDUSTRIAL SUPPLIES, INC. 04/17/2019 

GOLD MEDAL 04/17/2019 

GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL 04/17 /2019 

GREAT AMERICAN BUSINESS PRODUCTS 04/17/2019 

J.J. KELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 04/17/2019 

JAGUAR COMMUNICATIONS 04/17 /2019 

JOHNSON, LONNIE 04/17/2019 

KENNEDY & KENNEDY LAW OFFICE 04/17/2019 

KRAUSE, TOM 04/17/2019 

LIME VALLEY ADVERTISING, INC. 04/17/2019 

LLOYD LUMBER CO. 04/17 /2019 

MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT, INC. 04/17/2019 

MANKATO MAKERSPACE 04/17/2019 

MANKATO MOTOR COMPANY 04/17/2019 

MENARDS-MANKATO 04/17/2019 

MIDWEST TAPE/HOOPLA 04/17 /2019 

MINNESOTA IRON & METAL CO 04/17 /2019 

MINNESOTA VALLEY TESTING LAB, INC. 04/17 /2019 

MOBOTREX 04/17 /2019 

MTI DISTRIBUTING CO 04/17/2019 

NICOLLET COUNTY RECORDER/ABSTRACTER 04/17/2019 

NORTH CENTRAL INTERNATIONAL 04/17/2019 

PANTHEON COMPUTERS 04/17/2019 

PET EXPO DISTRIBUTORS 04/17/2019 

QUALITY OVERHEAD DOOR CO, INC 04/17/2019 

RENT-N-SAVE 04/17/2019 

RIVER BEND BUSINESS PRODUCTS 04/17/2019 

SCHWICKERT'S TECTA AMERICA LLC 04/17/2019 

SIGN PRO 04/17/2019 

TEXAS REFINERY CORP. 04/17/2019 

THATE, GREG 04/17/2019 

VIKING FIRE & SAFETY LLC 04/17/2019 

BENCO ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 03/29/2019 

CENTER POINT ENERGY 04/05/2019 

ETS CORPORATION 04/02/2019 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

EFT 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

994.95 90845 

2,000.00 90846 

577.50 90847 

525.00 90848 

27,762.78 90849 

27.70 DFT0002993 

27.75 DFT0002983 

83.45 DFT0002984 

99.00 DFT0002981 

81.50 DFT0002994 

1,239.96 DFT0002982 

67.58 DFT0002980 

213.47 DFT0002988 

63.87 DFT0002995 

929.60 DFT0002986 

282.50 DFT0002987 

4,567.01 DFT0002992 

171.00 1695 

65.00 1696 

534.08 1697 

22,094.00 1698 

527.85 1699 

200.00 1700 

1,656.21 1701 

346.00 1702 

40.00 1703 

4,191.03 1704 

3,717.70 1705 

16,416.64 1706 

887.66 1707 

1,164.17 1708 

400.89 1709 

184.88 1710 

130.40 1711 

36.45 1712 

648.99 1713 

625.50 1714 

3,961.40 1715 

116.73 1716 

8,913.91 1717 

54.99 1718 

200.00 1719 

769.17 1720 

75.64 1721 

165.00 1722 

323.85 1723 

512.18 1724 

1,115.10 1725 

172.80 1726 

119.00 1727 

600.00 1728 

453.93 1729 

8.00 1730 

8,660.38 1731 

6,246.46 1732 

60.00 1733 

90.00 1734 

240.00 1735 

939.26 1736 

1,007.66 1737 

15.00 1738 

383 .00 1739 

375.01 1740 

79.78 1741 

26,952.41 DFT0002976 

11,166.47 DFT0002991 

1,394.50 DFT0002978 



02774 FURTHER 04/09/2019 Bank Draft 0 244.43 DFT0003000 
02003 MINNESOTA DEPT OF REVENUE 04/01/2019 Bank Draft 0 454.29 DFT0002977 
02003 MINNESOTA DEPT OF REVENUE 04/03/2019 Bank Draft 0 8,585.00 DFT0002985 
02003 MINNESOTA DEPT OF REVENUE 04/09/2019 Bank Draft 0 5,498.51 DFT0003003 
02766 SPROUT SOCIAL 04/08/2019 Bank Draft 0 99.00 DFT0002996 
01477 VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY, INC. 04/09/2019 Bank Draft 0 36.74 DFT0003006 
01557 XCEL ENERGY 04/02/2019 Bank Draft 0 118.97 DFT0002979 

390,646.94 131 

Authorization Signatures 

All Council 
The above manual and regular claims lists for 4-15-19 are approved by: 

MARK DEHEN- MAYOR 

DIANE NORLAND- COUNCIL MEMBER 

WILLIAM STEINER- COUNCIL MEMBER 

SANDRA OACHS- COUNCIL MEMBER 

JAMES WHITLOCK- COUNCIL MEMBER 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION APPROVING DONATIONS/CONTRIBUTIONS/GRANTS 

WHEREAS, the Minnesota Statute 465.03 and 465.04 allows the governing body of any city, county, 
school district or town to accept gifts for the benefit of its citizens in accordance with terms prescribed by the 
donor; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH 
MANKA TO, MINNESOTA, that the following donations/contributions/grants are approved as follows: 

Donor Restriction Amount 

Rebecca & GreQ Swanson Donation to Family in Need for Utilities $100.00 

$100.00 

Adopted by the City Council this l 51h day of April 2019. 

Mayor 

City Clerk 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Agenda Item # 9C llDepartment: Finance llCouncil Meeting Date: 4/15/19 

I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Approving League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust Liability Coverage Waiver 
Form 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: The City each year, as a part of the insurance 
renewal process, must determine if it wants to waive the tort liability limits that are established by statute. The 
City has historically never waived these limits. 

If additional space is required, attach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Approve Not Waiving the Monetary Limits on Muncipal Tort Liability 
Established by Minnesota Statutes, Section 466.04. 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

r=J r=J CJ r=J r=J 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Norland ---- Other (specify) LMCIT Liability Coverage Waiver Form 
Oachs ----
Whitlock ----
Steiner ----
De hen -- --

r=J Workshop r=J Refer to: 

[TI Regular Meeting r=J Table until: 

r=J Special Meeting r=J Other: 



LEAGUE OF 
MINNESOTA 

CITIES 

CONNECTING & INNOVATING 
SINCE 1913 

LIABILITY COVERAGE - WAIVER FORM 

Members who obtain liability coverage through the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT) 
must complete and return this form to LMCIT before the member's effective date of coverage. Return 
completed form to your underwriter or email to pstech@lmc.org. 

The decision to waive or not waive the statutory tort limits must be made annually by the 
member's governing body, in consultation with its attorney if necessary. 

Members who obtain liability coverage from LMCIT must decide whether to waive the statutory tort liability limits 
to the extent of the coverage purchased. The decision has the following effects: 

• If the member does not waive the statutory tort limits, an individual claimant could recover no more than 
$500,000 on any claim to which the statutory tort limits apply. The total all claimants could recover for a single 
occurrence to which the statutory tort limits apply would be limited to $1,500,000. These statutory tort limits 
would apply regardless of whether the member purchases the optional LMCIT excess liability coverage. 

• If the member waives the statutory tort limits and does not purchase excess liability coverage, a single claimant 
could recover up to $2,000,000 for a single occurrence (under the waive option, the tort cap liability limits are 
only waived to the extent of the member's liability coverage limits, and the LMCIT per occurrence limit is 
$2,000,000). The total all claimants could recover for a single occurrence to which the statutory tort limits apply 
would also be limited to $2,000,000, regardless of the number of claimants. 

• If the member waives the statutory tort limits and purchases excess liability coverage, a single claimant could 
potentially recover an amount up to the limit of the coverage purchased. The total all claimants could recover for 
a single occurrence to which the statutory tort limits apply would also be limited to the amount of coverage 
purchased, regardless of the number of claimants. 

Claims to which the statutory municipal tort limits do not apply are not affected by this decision. 

Check one: 
D The member DOES NOT WAIVE the monetary limits on municipal tort liability established by Minn. tal. s 

466.04. 

D The member WAIVES the monetary limits on municipal tort liability established by Minn. Stat. § 466.04, to 
the extent of the limits of the liability coverage obtained from LMCIT. 

Date of member's governing body meeting: --------------------------

Signature: _ __________________ Position: ________________ _ 

145 UNIVERSITY AVE. WEST 
ST. PAUL. MN 55103-2044 

PHONE: (651) 281-1200 FAX: (651) 281-1299 
TOLL FREE: (800) 925-1122 WEB: WWWLMC.ORG 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

'Agenda Item # 9D II Department: City Clerk llCouncil Meeting Date: 4115/19 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Approving Taxi License for BEC Enterprises, LLC, DBA Blue Earth Taxi from 
April 15, 2019, to December 31, 2019. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Blue Earth Taxi is under new ownership and has 
applied for a Taxi license. All fees, vehicle inspections, and background checks have been conducted. 

If additional space is required, a/lach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Approve Taxi License for BEC Enterpises, LLC, DBA Blue Earth Taxi 
from April 15, 2019 to December 31, 2019. 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

CJ CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Norland Other (specify) ----
Oachs - - --
Whitlock ----
Steiner ----
De hen ----

CJ workshop CJ Refer to: 

[][)Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



BUSINESS LICENSE CERTIFICATE 

BUSINESS NAME: 

BUSINESS OWNER: 

BEC Enterprises LLC 
DBA Blue Earth Taxi 

Nick Winings 

BUSINESS LOCATION: 1513 N. Riverfront Dr. 
Mankato, MN 56001 

BEC ENTERPRISES LLC 
BLUE EARTH TAXI 
1513 N. Riverfront Dr. 
Mankato, MN 56001 

POST IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE - NON - TRANSFERABLE 

License Type: 

Mayor 

CITY OF NORTH MANKATO, MN 
1001 Belgrade Avenue • North Mankato, MN 56003 

Phone: (507) 625-4141 FAX (507) 625-4151 

Taxicab Licenses 

Business License Number: BL-000437-2019 

Effective Date: April 15, 2019 

Expiration Date: December 31, 2019 



CITY OF NORTH MANKA TO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

'Agenda Item #9E II Department: Administration llCouncil Meeting Date: 4/15/19 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Approving Developer Agreement for Privately Financed Improvements the 
Landing North Phase 4. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: On October 2, 2017, City Council approved an 
agreement with KWS, LLC for the Landing North Phase 2 Part 1, on August 6, 2018, Council approved an 
agreement with KWS, LLC for the Landing North Phase 2 Part 2. The developers are ready to proceed with the 
Landing North Phase 4. 

If additional space is required, a//ach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Approve Developer Agreement for Privately Financed Improvements the 
Landing North Phase 4. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

CJ CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Norland ---- Other (specify) Development Agreement 
Oachs ----
Whitlock ----
Steiner ----
De hen ----

CJ workshop CJ Refer to: 

[][]Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

NICOLLET COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

DEVELOPER AGREEMENT FOR 
PRIVATELY FINANCED IMPROVEMENTS 

THE LANDING NORTH PHASE 4 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this day of , 2019, by 
and between the City of North Mankato, a municipal corporation, in the State of Minnesota, 
hereafter called "City'', and, KWS, LLC., hereafter called the "Developer." The Developer has 
asked the City to approve a plat legally described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto. 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

A. Developer's Responsibilities 

1. The City has been petitioned by the Developer for permission to privately construct 
the improvements itemized in Exhibit "B" attached hereto (the "Improvements") to be paid for by 
the Developer. 

2. The following plans shall be delivered to the City by the Developers on a time 
schedule set forth in this agreement. 

A. Final Plat 

B. Engineering Plans and Specifications for the Improvements 

If the plans vary from the written terms of this Agreement, the written terms of this Agreement 
shall control. All the foregoing plans will be prepared by and will be delivered to the City with 
the signature of a Minnesota registered engineer and/or surveyor. 

3. The Developer shall privately finance the Improvements. 

4. The Developer shall install or ensure installation at its sole cost and expense and in 
accordance with all state, federal and local rules, regulations, ordinances and laws the following: 

A. Site Grading Improvements 
B. Surveying and Staking 
C. Street Improvements 
D. Sanitary Sewer Improvements 
E. Water main improvements 
F. Storm water Drainage and Storm Water Management Improvements 
G. Temporary and Permanent Erosion Control Improvements 
H. Setting of Lot and Block Monuments 
I. Gas, Telephone, Cable TV and Electrical Utilities 
J. Street Lights 
K. Traffic Control Signage 

8213116v2 



L. Sidewalks 
M. Mailboxes 

Unless extended in writing by the City, the Developer shall complete the Improvements described 
therein in Exhibit B within twelve months from the date of this Agreement. The bituminous 
wearing course of the Street Improvements shall be completed when after at least 50% of the 
houses have been completed, or when the Developer is directed to complete the wearing course by 
the City, which shall be a minimum of one year, but no more than three years. Prior to completion 
of the Improvements, the Developer shall be responsible for the necessary repairs to maintain the 
Improvements. 

Until completion of the Street Improvements, the Developer shall be solely responsible for 
maintenance and repair of the Street Improvements, including but not limited to snow and ice 
removal, cleaning of roadway, and storm water catch basins. In the event the Developer fails to 
perform necessary work within 24 hours of notification from the City, the City may perform all 
necessary services and bill Developer for all costs to City. No building permits or certificates of 
occupancy will be issued to the Developer if payment for services is not paid to City within 10 
days. 

5. The Developer hereby grants the City, its agents, employees, officers and 
contractors under the construction contract a license to enter the platted property to perform all 
work and inspections deemed appropriate by the City during the installation of the Improvements 
under this Agreement. The license shall expire after all Improvements to be installed pursuant to 
this Agreement have been installed and accepted by the City. 

6. Upon completion and acceptance of all work and construction required by this 
Agreement, the Improvements described in paragraph 4 under C, D, E, F, J, Kand L lying within 
public easements and/or right-of-ways (the "Public Improvements") shall become City property 
without further notice or action. 

7. The Developer shall promptly clean dirt and debris from streets, curb and gutter 
and perform all other erosion and sediment control work as required by the MPCA NPDES 
Construction Storm water Permit and Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (S WPPP) prior to the 
Public Improvements being dedicated to the City upon the completion of the Public Improvements. 

8. All costs associated with the Landing North Phase 3 subdivision, including City 
Engineer, City Attorney, permit fees and any other city costs outlined in this Agreement shall be 
paid by the Developer within 30 days of receiving an invoice from the City. 

The Developer will be required, upon execution of this Agreement, to furnish the City with a cash 
deposit or Irrevocable Letter of Credit equal to the Cities liability exposure, which is determined 
to be one hundred ten percent (110%) of the cost of the Improvements, including change order that 
may necessitate an additional cash deposit or letter of credit. 

If the Developer provides the City with a cash deposit, the City agrees to pay interest monthly on 
such deposit at the rate of interest the City earns on the investment of such funds. 

2 



If the Developer provides a letter of credit, the form of the letter of credit shall be subject to the 
approval of the City. The letter of credit shall be for a term ending when the Improvements are 
completed and accepted. 

All outside consulting, legal, and engineering costs incurred by the City shall be billed directly to 
the Developer and paid within thirty (30) days. The City may draw down on the letter of credit 
for any violation of the terms of this Agreement or upon receiving notice that the letter of credit 
will be allowed to lapse before all Improvements have been completed and paid for. 

With City approval, the letter of credit may be reduced from time to time as the Developer's 
financial obligations under this Agreement are paid. 

With City approval, a cash deposit can be exchanged for a letter of credit at any point for 110% of 
the remaining project costs, including any change orders. 

9. The Developer shall warranty all work to be free of all defects in workmanship and 
materials for a period of one year extending from the date of acceptance by the City of the Public 
Improvements. 

10. The Developer shall be responsible for all costs associated with construction 
inspections and engineering review as performed by the City Engineer. 

11. Construction Staking. The Developer will provide all staking services for grading, 
sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer, lot services, sidewalks, and all roadway improvements. 

12. The Developer shall pay for all costs incurred by it and the City in conjunction with 
the development of the plat, included without limiting the generality thereof, legal, planning, 
engineering, inspection expenses, permits in connection with approval and acceptance of the plat, 
the preparation of this Agreement, and all costs and expenses incurred by the City in monitoring 
and inspecting development of the plat. 

13. The Developer shall hold the City and its officers, agents and employees harmless 
from claims made by itself and third parties for damages sustained or costs incurred resulting in 
plat approval or supervision or obligation that the City has undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. 
The Developer shall indemnify the City and its officers, agents and employees for all costs, 
damages or expenses which the City may pay or incur in consequence of such claims, including 
attorney's fees. The Developer shall reimburse the City for costs incurred in the enforcement of 
this Agreement, including engineering, attorney's fees and costs of litigation. This is a personal 
obligation of the Developer and shall continue in full force and effect even if the Developer sells 
one or more lots, the entire plat or any part of it. 

14. In the event of default by the Developer as to any of the work to be performed by 
it hereunder, the City may, at its option, perform the work and the Developer shall promptly 
reimburse the City for any expense incurred by the City, provided the Developer is first given the 
notice of work in default, not less than 24 hours in advance. This Agreement is a license for the 
City to act, and it shall not be necessary for the City to seek a court order for permission to enter 

3 



the land. When the City does any such work, the City may, in addition to its other remedies, assess 
the cost in whole or in part and withhold the issuance of any building permit or occupancy permit. 

15. The Developer represents to the City that the plat complies with all city, county, 
state and federal laws and regulations, including but not limited to: subdivision ordinances, zoning 
ordinances and environmental regulations. City staff and consulting engineers shall diligently 
work to review compliance with the above mentioned laws and regulations. If the City determines 
that the plat does not comply, the City may, at its discretion and upon written notification to the 
Developer, refuse to allow construction or development work in the plat area until the Developer 
complies. Upon the City's demand, the Developer immediately shall cease work until there is 
compliance. 

16. Third parties shall have no recourse against the City under this Agreement. Breach 
of the terms of this Agreement by the Developer shall be grounds for denial of building permits or 
certificates of occupancy. If any portion, section, subsection, sentence, clause, paragraph or phase 
of this Agreement is for any reason held invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portion of this Agreement. 

17. The Developer shall place iron monuments at all lot and block comers and at all other 
angle points on boundary lines. If iron monuments are disturbed, they shall be replaced at the 
Developer's expense before a certificate of occupancy is granted. 

18. The Developer agrees to maintain, at all times before acceptance of the Street 
Improvements by the City, an access road suitable for use by emergency, police and fire department 
equipment. The adequacy of such road shall be solely determination by the City. Furthermore, such 
access road shall be located no more than 150 feet from any structure built within the Subdivision. 

19. The Improvements must meet the Adopted Standard Construction Specifications 
and Details of the City of North Mankato. 

20. The Developer shall be responsible for obtaining the necessary permits including: MPCA 
Sanitary Sewer Extension Permit, Minnesota Department of Health Plan Review Permit, 
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, NPDES Construction Stormwater Permit and any other 
permits necessary to construct the Improvements. 

Building Permits 

1. The City agrees that building permits may be issued upon approval of the Final Plat 
by the City Council and completion of the Improvements. 

2. The Developer further agrees that City Sewer, Water, Storm Sewer, and Aggregate 
Base construction of the Streets and temporary street signs, will be completed prior to the issuance of 
building permits. 

3. 4. Any stormwater ponds must be satisfactorily built in accordance with the 
approved plans before a building permit is issued. 

4 



5. The City agrees that certificates of occupancy will be granted when gas, electric, and 
telephone service are provided to the development and all other requirements have been met by the 
Developer. 

6. If building permits are issued prior to the completion and acceptance of the 
Improvements, the Developer assumes all liability and cost resulting in delays in completion of 
Improvements and damage to the Improvements caused by the City, Developer, its contractors, 
subcontractors, material men, employees, agents or third parties. No construction of a building 
and/or structure may be initiated prior to obtaining a City building permit. 

Recording and Release 

1. The Developer agrees that the terms of this Developer Agreement shall be a 
covenant on any and all property included in the Subdivision. The Developer agrees that the City 
shall have the right to record a copy of this Developer Agreement with the Nicollet County 
Recorder to give notice to future purchasers and Developers. 

Property Taxes 

1. Should the recording of the Final Plat occur after July 1, any and all property taxes 
on any public property dedicated as a part of the plat shall be the responsibility of the Developer. 
The Developer must continue to pay all property taxes on the land described in Exhibit A on a 
timely manner. Failure to pay property taxes on any property on the land described in Exhibit A 
by the Developer or its assigns will result in the City not issuing any additional building permits. 

General Provisions 

1. The action or inaction of the City shall not constitute a waiver or amendment to the 
provisions of this Agreement. To be binding, amendments or waivers shall be in writing, signed 
by the parties and approved by written resolution of the City Council. The City's failure to 
promptly take legal action to enforce this Agreement shall constitute a waiver or release. 

2. This Agreement shall run with the land and may be recorded against the title to the 
property described in Exhibit A. After the Developer has completed the work required of it under 
this Agreement, at the Developer's request the City will execute and deliver to the Developer a 
release of this Agreement. 

3. Each right, power or remedy herein conferred upon the City is cumulative and in 
addition to every other right, power or remedy, expressed or implied, now or hereafter arising 
available to the City, a law or in equity, or under any other agreement, and each and every right, 
power and remedy herein set forth or otherwise so existing may be exercised from time to time as 
often and in such order an may be deemed expedient by the City and shall not be a waiver of the 
right to exercise at any time thereafter any other rights, power or remedy. 

5 



4. The Developer shall require any contractor to maintain liability and personal injury 
insurance with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000.00 per person and $2,000,000 in the 
aggregate. The City must be named as additional insured under such policy. The contractor must 
also maintain the adequate worker's compensation insurance and property insurance. The term of 
the insurance shall be renewable until the construction of the Improvements is complete. 

5. All disputes associated with this Agreement, shall be submitted to District Court in 
Nicollet County, Minnesota. Minnesota law shall apply to all disputes. 

6. Required notices to the Developer shall be in writing and shall be either hand 
delivered to the Developer, its employees or agents or mailed to the Developer by registered mail 
at the following address: 

Notices to the City shall be in writing and shall be either hand delivered to the City 
Administrator, or mailed to the City by registered mail in care of the City Administrator at 
the following address: 

City of North Mankato 
P.O. Box 2055 
North Mankato, MN 56002-2055 
Attention: City Administrator 

(SEAL) 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

COUNTY OF NICOLLET 

CITY OF NORTH MANKA TO 

Mayor 

City Administrator 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of _____ _, 
2019, by Mayor and by City Administrator of 
North Mankato, a Minnesota municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation and pursuant to 
the authority of the City Council. 

Notary Public 



STATE OF MINNESOTA 
~ Its~·. 

COUNTY OF BLUE EARTH 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this C1+h day of ~'(·, \ 
2019, by Jeff Williams, KWS, LLC 

~~ 
Notary Public HEATHER ELIZABETH ANDERSON I 

Notary Publlc~Minrtesota 
My Commission Expirea Jan. 31, 2023 

~Ui:M.,,.AAMJ>~ 

8 



EXHIBIT A 

8213116v2 



FINAL PLAT FOR REVIEW 

THE LANDING NORTH PHASE 3 

--, - -- -- -- --
Tt,>.:..;.::.::-J/;'.f-' /.,'(,,°!!,:[} ::.r .. ? ;;_~: 

--- -------------·------------------·---------------·---------------------- ---------·----

~..;-;;,t- --~-\ «.Q(.11,,. :---~ - •·53'58"1:: 521..91' 

\ ~-· ,~- i =t· •I- : ..... -"-- ~ 

" 

7 

" " 

££.[}('/( 

" / I 
I 

--~ 

I 
I 

-~ 
I 
I 

._J 
I 
I 
I 
I 

~ -~ 

~i · ... ~ 

~.:.: 

~ 

/l1t .. ?:~;; ,7,i~/ 1 :;-,"~ I : : : ,;,1,n,~1,,··· ~: . ---·- ,,.,._;:;:--
\ - 1 1- ! , __ ,..,, "·"' ,,,_;, 1· ; 

\ /:f i! f I . • • ! i : l 2 ;- I 
\ : 1 < : > I 

/.,,. .... ... ---- ......... , 
3 

1 
4 

\ 
· i ! t i BLOCK §; ! 

, ' 
• I 

: I I : I I 
, ~ 

i ! - r : =- ,r-·'"" lL ! : _J ~u~-4J11_0 _ R -·--;-,;----• ~---
$1!1")1_1 ... ~ a. 

.,, 
Ali PRAIRIE COURT : , 

I , , 
I 

: 
I 

I , , 

,, ' Pond ,' - -- -~-L-....J~!Cl.1""°2WL ____ ......, _ _,, . .,,. 1 t 

/ 
,,...,,,.., W :a> '1llAO - a.M I t 
RU'6.tllfl :., ri-----··~ --··------; :---. I oil 

~ I i I I I . ...........~ .. ~ I I 
I !' 1 I: ·1 --...;::...._ -~,I I 
I ~ : ! ! I : ~...J ·' ' 

i 1 : tl i 1 ; / ; I 4 a i : 8 i~ j 1 6 / :;r..>;;,,. ' 
i g ; - i if ) / • : 

I /_';/ . ./,:(~:- ! f f ,.:' i: / ~ // ~ . , ,,...,.,. .... __ ! I : -· : i ...... ~ , ' 
: 1 • .. / • ..,,,,~ .. ' , 

I ! -!v.:.._ • :) ~'O~/ r' 
~#II-. .!..-------·~ ~-~·---,.... • ! Ull tt.lol ; " t 

"""'~"" ~ ""'.11$ - ' ,i;;;'- • "" 'f - - - ·- - - - ,. ~,_,,,_, $89" "\V IJ69,25 KU 4J/lf _J,,,,.. f 

I -.. ,- ... . .-, ., .... >---·-----·-----·-----·-----·-----·-----~~~, ·r•-: / 
I .'.1.:.:,t,:~ -~ I I ,',/{ ':< , ' ' ; 

•• I , \ ~~ I 

.;> I : ,,. ~ .,.. ''~~ / I I ' ,~,'.{):. ~l.. , .. J 

r ------.£"'9 ! ;r:'·/E :.P'' ou:;_07 v /- · ----·----- / 

~ /•"' 1' • ........ ___ . "' 

I •; I : ' / I " 
,_._ I : / I ' 

I ~ Pond -· '/ ,_--;;~ ,. '-.. I ~ ;. 11 · •r~ ....... -- I / '-.. 

·~- 1
1 • I ' / I ' 

AU'~~l I I I " 1 ------- i 1 / I "'- / 

,..,-
/ 

I I I \ / I "y ' .. /' .......... 

-t _ _h_: I '--·-----·-----·-----·-----·---" II ..... ..... ..... / / 

I ............... I / 
- I -=--=-=..::: - - - - - ::.c.==-=--::.-=.x :::<. -+----·---/----- --

1U!!!!t9'TOf'S!G!!5'ft)! 

-i'U~IWTM£Silil'lt£se.fS:~JWSU.c-• .. • 

,.,._,., __ _ 
~ ... THl!IJ"'CINO,-n.1~200J'd~-.-
C~ ....... .... 

H•cmmadlho_IO.,.__...,., • .._HTKl!.'--ltO!fnl 
--J--~_...,-.. to ... iadt,!<r!"d< ........ ~"" - .. ·-to11•· ..... ~ ... --.-m1>11-• 
.. ___ °"""'Ci, ____ .... ...,... .. .. ____ .... •----~-
____ ........._.. __ ., ____ _ 
211_..,. ____ l(WS,W:. 

N 

~ 
o 40 eo 
,.._.._.. I 

SCALE IN FEET 

tAUMWlllll<I 

~"'-~~"'-111.-.<11,.,,.....,_gN<>'O'll'lono2. 

LEGEND 

--t.e-C1A..~1r tq __ ,._s. 
:':r:'.:':'w't .... -. ...... ~~ 
..-.11TotA..%1r 
LangSi*llian.Plpol~ 

V-~Olpll.l-e.,. 
ISG,U..-No.Q110?0b0 
Ml-°"9y.iarol1~ding. 

SEC. JS. fV"9, 1D'ti ROE. 27 -""""'·-
~ 

--,-·-- 1T __ _ 

··-;-11...._;.....1;:::::!:'.., 
_ _l__ 6f\___ 

_...,..~.-i..-.....,t_ .. ___ .., __ ..,.._ .. 
-----::.:.:.::...'"':=::: ... --

~cem!!CAD I _L_, __ _, ______ by_•-~ 
--; - ........ u....- ...... s......,.. ..... _ .. _ __,... ____ ......... ~ __ .. ___. 
----..... ........, .............. pW,: ........... --... 
-p1o1 ..... - ....... i.-..,. .... -----·---..... ........ c1r. ••• - .. -.---5llS.01, !ll.6of..l . .. CI!--.-------... --....... ~-.. ,,..,,-................. 
----·-------~-

:::.;.:~~~--

-·e......,.--£.-_______ ..,_ ___ _ 
'--.. ~\,,~(-'--'......,.. 

-·_.,...,..,_or. 
""~-E'2;11t<K .. " , 2020 

ll!l!l'"' • UQ•.Y. .... ~ .. , _______ ... ___ _ 
--.--.~ .. -~---.....--
... lfft:~llCft'nl-:ll!l. 

p!?5eez9!!'r'"""'"+""ft9·'1"t9ef! 
~-,,,... ............. """"" .. ____ .... 
C.W-e...d ..... Q1 ... ---·· ...... -·--

1_..,11"'90....WH--d-•.....,.c_,_,,. - .. -------·-;lflW-
~~-

. . .... ..,...-.'CNC!M,li Kz't"iD OIS8! 1D 'iti""""'"'"1' ~......, ....... 119 _______ _ __ ..,. _______ .. __ _ _ ...... w..--... -.. __ ... ___ _ 
·-

i------··"""-~"°"~~,-·•...i1r1 ... -. """""~._. __ ...,,,, ____ ._ .. _, _ _,,,.. .. __ .... .., ___ '""':•-
~~~~-----

... -c.-,· .. -

II 



EXHIBITB 

8213l16v2 



ITEM 

NUMBER CONTRACT ITEM UNIT 

2021.501 MOBILIZATION LS 

2104.501 REMOVE 6" PERFORATED PVC PIPE DRAIN LF 

2104.501 REMOVE WATER MAIN LF 

2104.505 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SY 

2104.513 SAWCUT BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT LF 

2104.523 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL HYDRANT EA 

2104.523 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL 6" GATE VALVE & BOX EA 

2104.523 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL 8"x6" REDUCER EA 

2105.501 COMMON EXCAVATION (P)(EV) CY 

2105.604 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TYPE V SY 

2211.503 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) (P), CLASS 3 CY 

2211.503 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) (P), CLASS 5 CY 

2360.503 TYPE SP WEAR CRS MIX (SPWEB340C) 1.5" THICK SY 

2360.503 TYPE SP NON WEAR CRS MIX (SPNWB330C) 2.5" THICK SY 

2501.515 15" RC PIPE APRON EA 

2502.541 6" PERF PVC PIPE DRAIN, SDR 35 LF 

2502.602 CONNECT TO EXISTING SUBDRAIN EA 
2503.511 8" PVC PIPE SEWER, SDR 35 LF 

2502.541 12" A2000 PVC PIPE SEWER LF 

2502.541 15" A2000 PVC PIPE SEWER LF 

2502.602 6" PVC PIPE DRAIN CLEANOUT EA 

2503.541 15" RC PIPE SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS Ill LF 

2503.602 CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER EA 

2503.602 8" X 4" PVC WYE, HEAVY WALL EA 

2503.602 4" PLUG SDR 26 EA 

2503.603 4" PVC SANITARY SERVICE PIPE, SDR 26 LF 

2504.602 CONNECT TO EXISTING WATERMAIN EA 

2504.602 1" CORPORATION STOP EA 

2504.602 1" CURB STOP & BOX EA 

2504.603 1" WATER SERVICE LF 

2504.603 6" C900 PVC WATERMAIN LF 

2504.603 8" C900 PVC WATERMAIN LF 

2504.608 WATERMAIN FITIINGS LBS 

2506.501 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE DESIGN 4007C LF 

2506.501 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE 12" NYLOPLAST DRAIN BAS LF 

2506.501 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE 12" NYLOPLAST INLINE DR.A LF 

Cost Estimate 

4/1/2019 

The Landing North Phase 4 

ENGINEERS COST PER 

EST QTY UNIT PRICE ITEM 

1 $ 8,600.00 $ 8,600.00 

250 $ 5.00 $ 1,250.00 

5 $ 10.00 $ 50.00 

699 $ 2.00 $ 1,398.00 

33 $ 5.00 $ 165.00 

1 $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 

1 $ 550.00 $ 550.00 

1 $ 350.00 $ 350.00 

118 $ 10.00 $ 1,180.00 

1735 $ 1.50 $ 2,602.20 

289 $ 23.00 $ 6,647.00 

387 $ 25.00 $ 9,675.00 

1479 $ 10.00 $ 14,790.00 

1479 $ 12.00 $ 17,748.00 

1 $ 750.00 $ 750.00 

692 $ 10.50 $ 7,266.00 

2 $ 150.00 $ 300.00 

285 $ 40.00 $ 11,400.00 

435 $ 30.00 $ 13,050.00 

36 $ 35.00 $ 1,260.00 

1 $ 250.00 $ 250.00 

174 $ 35.00 $ 6,090.00 

1 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 

9 $ 250.00 $ 2,250.00 

9 $ 25.00 $ 225.00 

421 $ 20.00 $ 8,420.00 

1 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 

9 $ 300.00 $ 2,700.00 

9 $ 325.00 $ 2,925.00 

405 $ 13.00 $ 5,265.00 

7 $ 30.00 $ 210.00 

208 $ 35.00 $ 7,280.00 

50 $ 9.50 $ 475.00 

15 $ 300.00 $ 4,527.00 

5 $ 350.00 $ 1,858.50 

7 $ 350.00 $ 2,278.50 



2506.502 CONSTRUCT CATCH BASIN (TYPE 1) (3x2) LF 9 $ 350.00 $ 3,304.00 

2506.516 CASTING ASSEMBLY, NEENAH R-1733 "SANITARY SEWER" STAM EA 1 $ 750.00 $ 750.00 

2506.516 CASTING ASSEMBLY, NEENAH R3067 VB GRATE EA 2 $ 550.00 $ 1,100.00 

2506.516 CASTING ASSEMBLY, NYLOPLAST 12" SLOTIED GRATE EA 3 $ 250.00 $ 750.00 

2506.602 EXTERNAL CHIMNEY SEAL EA 1 $ 500.00 $ 500.00 

2521.501 5" CONCRETE WALK (ON 6" CLASS 5 BASE) SF 1372 $ 6.00 $ 8,232.00 

2531.501 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTIER DESIGNS 418 (MODIFIED) LF 690 $ 15.50 $ 10,695.00 

2531.618 TRUNCATED DOMES SF 8 $ 60.00 $ 480.00 

2573.530 STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION EA 7 $ 150.00 $ 1,050.00 

2573.602 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT EA 1 $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000.00 

2573.603 PERIMETER PROTECTION LF 1024 $ 2.00 $ 2,048.00 

2575.502 HYDROSEED MIXTURE 25-151 AC 1 $ 3,000.00 $ 1,740.00 

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST $ 178,934.20 



LABOR AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 
AND 

NORTH MANKATO POLICE DEPARTMENT LIEUTENANTS 
LAW ENFORCEMENT LABOR SERVICES, INC. (LOCAL NO. 394) 

January 1, 2019 - December 31, 2020 

1 



ARTICLE 1. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into as of January 1, 2019 between the City ofNorth Mankato, 
hereinafter called the EMPLOYER, and Law Enforcement Labor Services, Inc. Local #394, 
hereinafter called the UNION. It is the intent and purpose of the Agreement to: 

1.1 Establish procedures for the resolution of disputes concerning this Agreement's 
interpretation and application; and 

1.2 Place in written form the parties agreement upon terms and conditions of 
employment for the duration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 2. RECOGNITION 

2.1 The EMPLOYER recognizes the UNION as the exclusive representative for all 
essential licensed Lieutenants employed by the City of North Mankato Police Department, 
North Mankato, Minnesota, who are public employees within the meaning of Minn. Stat. 
l 79A.03, subd. 14, excluding confidential and all other employees. 

2.2 In the event the EMPLOYER and UNION are unable to agree as to the inclusion or 
exclusion of a new or modified job class, the issue shall be submitted to the Bureau 
of Mediation Services for determination. 

ARTICLE 3. DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings 
stated: 

UNION: Law Enforcement Labor Services, Inc. (Local No. 394). 

EMPLOYEE: A member of the exclusively recognized bargaining unit. 

DEPARTMENT: The North Mankato Police Department. 

EMPLOYER: The City of North Mankato. 

ARTICLE 4. EMPLOYER SECURITY 

The UNION agrees that during the life of this Agreement that the UNION will not cause, 
encomage, participate in, or supp01t any strike, slow-down, or other interruption of or 
interference with the normal function of the EMPLOYER. 

2~ 



A strike is defined as concerted action in failing to report for duty, the willful absence from 
one's position, the stoppage of work, slow-down, or abstinence in whole or in part from the 
full, faithful, and proper performance of the duties of the employment for the purposes of 
inducing, influencing, or coercing a change in the conditions or compensation or the rights, 
privileges, or obligations of employment. 

ARTICLE 5. EMPLOYER AUTHORITY 

5. I It is recognized by both parties that except as expressly stated herein, the 
EMPLOYER shall retain whatever rights and authority necessary to operate and 
direct the affairs of the Department in all of its various aspects, including but not 
limited to, the right to direct the working forces; to plan, direct, and contrnl all the 
operations and services of the Department; to determine the methods, means, 

. organization, and number of personnel by which such operations and services are 
to be conducted; to contract, subcontract, sell, merge, or discontinue any function 
of the Depa1tment; to assign and transfer employees; to decide whether goods or 
services should be made or purchased; to hire, promote, demote, suspend, 
discipline, discharge, or relieve employees due to lack of work or other legitimate 
reasons; to make and enforce rules and regulations; and to change or eliminate 
existing methods, equipment, or facilities. 

5 .2 The parties hereto recognize that this Agreement is not intended to limit the present and 
future exercises of discretionary authority vested in the EMPLOYER by the statutes of the 
State of Minnesota. 

5 .3 Any term and condition of employment not specifically established or modified by 
this Agreement shall remain solely within the discretion of the EMPLOYER to 
modify, establish or eliminate. 

ARTICLE 6. UNION SECURITY 
6.1 The EMPLOYER shall deduct from the wages of employees who authorize such a 

deduction in writing an amount necessary to cover monthly UNION dues, or fair 
share amount authorized by law. Such monies shall be remitted as directed by the 
UNION. 

6.2 The UNION may designate employees from the bargaining unit to act as a steward 
and alternate and shall inform the EMPLOYER in writing of such choice and 
changes in the position of steward or alternate within two weeks of signing the 
contract, or any changes in designated personnel. 

6.3 The EMPLOYER shall make space available on the employee bulletin board for 
posting official UNION notices and announcements. 

3 '¥--



6.4 The UNION agrees to indemnify and hold the EMPLOYER harmless against any 
and all claims, suits, orders, or judgments brought or issued against the 
EMPLOYER as a result of any action taken or not taken by the EMPLOYER under 
the provisions of this Article. 

ARTICLE 7. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

7.1 Definition. A grievance is a dispute or disagreement as to the application of the 
specific terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

7.2 UNION Representatives: The EMPLOYER will recognize representatives designated by 
the UNION as the grievance representatives of the bargaining unit having the duties and 
responsibilities established by this Article. The UNION will notify the EMPLOYER in 
writing of the names of such UNION Representatives and of their successors. 

7 .3 Processing of a Grievance. It is recognized and accepted by the UNION and the 
EMPLOYER that the processing of grievances is limited by the job duties and 
responsibilities of the employees and will therefore be accomplished during normal working 
hours when consistent with such employees' duties and responsibilities. The aggrieved 
employee and the UNION Representative will be released from work, without loss in pay, 
to investigate a grievance and to attend meetings or hearings pursuant to this At1icle 
provided the employee and the UNION Representative have notified and received the 
approval of the EMPLOYER who has determined such absence is reasonable and would not 
be detl'imental to the work programs of the EMPLOYER. 

7.4 The grievance procedure shall be as follows: 

Step 1. 
The UNION shall have fifteen Cl 5) calendar days to submit the grievance to the Chief of 
Police. The written grievance shall contain: 

a) The nature of the grievance and a summary of the facts upon which it is 
based; 

b) The Agreement provisions relied on or claimed to be violated; 
c) The remedy or relief requested. 

If the grievance is settled, the settlement shall be reduced to writing and signed by 
the EMPLOYER representative and the UNION representative. If no settlement is 
reached, the Police Chief or designee will give a written answer within ten (l 0) calendar 
days after i·eceipt. Any grievance not appealed in writing to Step 2 by the UNION within 
ten (10) calendar days will be considered waived. 

Step 2. 
If appealed, the written grievance shall be presented by the UNION and discussed with the 
City Administrntor. If settled, it shall be reduced to writing and signed by the EMPLOYER 



and the UNION representatives. If not settled, the City Administrator will answer the Step 
2 grievance in writing within ten ( 10) calendar days after receipt of such Step 2 grievance. 
If not settled, the grievance may be submitted to arbitration. 

Step 3. 
A grievance unresolved in Step 2 and appealed to Step 3 may be submitted to mediation .Qy 
mutual agreement of the parties. 

7.5 Arbitration. If the grievance is unresolved at Step 2 and the UNION elects to appeal the 
grievance to arbitration, the UNION within ten ( 10) days following the issuance of the Step 
2 answer shall submit a written request for arbitration to the Bureau of Mediation Services 
requesting a list of arbitrators in accordance with the "Rules governing the arbitration of 
grievances" as enacted by the Bureau of Mediation Services. The UNION shall submit a 
copy of such request to the City Administrntor. The parties shall then choose the arbitrator 
by the UNION and the EMPLOYER alternately striking a name from the list until one 
remains as the Arbitrator to hear and decide the dispute. 

7.6 Arbitrator's Authority. The arbitrator shall rule only on the issue submitted and shall 
have no power to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to, or subtract from the 
provisions of this Agreement. His/her decision shall be in writing and furnished within 
thirty (30) days following the close of any hearing or submission of briefs by the parties. 
His/her decision shall be subject to law and regulations having the effect of law. His/her 
decision shall be binding upon the parties only insofar as the Public Employees Labor 
Relations Act of 1971, as amended, requires it to be binding. 

7.7 The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be divided equally between the 
EMPLOYER and the UNION. Each paity shall be responsible for its own expenses 
and compensating its own witnesses. Discharge grievances may be initiated at Step 27 Time 
limitations of this Article apply to both patties and may be extended by mutual consent. 
Unless so extended, time limitations shall be strictly complied with and expiration of the 
time to appeal the grievance shall be a waiver of the grievance. Failure of the 
EMPLOYER to reply within the time limits at any step shall be deemed denial of the 
grievance. 

7.8 Choice of Remedy. If, as a result of the written response in Step 2, the grievance remains 
unresolved, and if the grievance involves the suspension, demotion, or discharge of an 
employee who has completed the required probationary period, the grievance may be 
appealed either to Article 7.5 or a procedure such as Civil Service, Veteran's Preference, or 
the Human Rights Depa1tment. In any event, the aggrieved employee or his/her UNION 
representative shall elect in writing which procedure shall be used and, thereafter the 
employee's right to pursue any other procedure terminates and is waived. An employee 
pursuing a remedy pursuant to a statute under the jurisdiction of the United States Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission is not precluded from also pursuing an appeal under 
the grievance procedure of this Agreement. lf a court of competent jurisdiction rules 
contrmy to the ruling in EEOC v. Board of Governors of State Colleges and Universities, 
957 F.2d 424 (7'" Cir.), cert. denied, 506 US. 906, 113 S. Ct. 299 (1992), or if Board of 



Governors is judicially or legislatively overruled, the italicized portion of this section shall 
be null and void. 

ARTICLE 8. SAVINGS CLAUSE 

This Agreement is subject to the laws of the United States, the State of Minnesota and the 
City of North Mankato. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be 
contrary to the Jaw by a court of competent jurisdiction from whose final judgment or 
decree no appeal has been taken within the time provided, such provisions shall be voided. 
All other provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 

ARTICLE 9. PROBATION 

9.1 All new employees will serve a twelve (12) month probationary period. Said 
probation may be extended up to six ( 6) months for a total of eighteen (18) months 
at the EMPLOYER'S discretion. The EMPLOYER shall provide notice to the UNION of 
any such extension. 

9.2 During the probationa1y period a new or promoted employee may be terminated or returned 
to their former position at the sole discretion of the EMPLOYER. 

9.3 A new employee shall earn vacation and sick leave from the date of hire, however, 
such credits shall not be used until the employee has completed the first six (6) 
month period. 

9.4 A promoted employee shall serve a six (6) month probationa1y period. 

ARTICLE 10. SENIORITY 

10.1 Seniority shall be determined by the employee's length of continuous employment within 
the classification of Lieutenant. 

10.2 A reduction in the workforce will be accomplished on the basis of seniority, beginning with 
the least senior employee in the classification of Lieutenant. An employee on layoff shall 
have the oppo1tunity to return to work within one ( 1) year of the time of his/her layoff 
before any new employee is hired in a Lieutenant classification or in a law enforcement 
vacancy that the employee is qualified for that is a classification that is equal to or lower 
than the classification of Lieutenant. The Employer shall send the notice of recall by 
certified letter to the employee's last known address. Upon receipt of notice of recall, the 
employee shall have fomteen (14) days to return to work. It is the employee's obligation to 
maintain a current address and telephone number with the Employer during layoff. 

6% 



ARTICLE 11. DISCIPLINE 

11. l The EMPLOYER will discipline employees for just cause only. Discipline will be in 
one or more of the following forms: 

a) Oral reprimand; 
b) Written reprimand; 
c) Suspension; 
d) Demotion; or 
e) Discharge. 

11.2 Suspensions, demotions, or discharges will be in written form . 

11.3 Written reprimands, notices of suspensions, and notices of discharge to become 
part of the employee's personnel file shall be read and acknowledged by signature 
of the employee. The employee will receive a copy of such reprimands or notices. 

11.4 Discharges shall be preceded by five (5) days of suspension without pay. 

11.5 Employees may examine their own individual personnel files at reasonable times 
under the direct supervision of the EMPLOYER. 

11.6 Grievances relating to this Article shaU be initiated by the UNION in Step 1 in the 
grievance procedure under Article 7 of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 12. OVERTIME 

12.1 Employees shall receive overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of the regularly 
scheduled shift. Such compensation shall be in the form of cash payment at the rate of one 
and one half (1 Yl) times the employee's regular hourly rate of pay, or in the form of 
compensatory time. Employees may accumulate compensatory time up to a maximum of 
one hundred twenty (120) hours. When a Lieutenant's scheduled shift is changed, with 
less than 24 hours notice prior to the star of the shift, the Lieutenant will be entitled to the 
standard callback fee. If the change is simply hours added to the start or the end of the shift, 
those hours wiU be paid as regular ove1time. 

12.2 For the purposes of computing ove1time compensation, overtime hours worked shall not be 
pyramided, compounded, or paid twice for the same hours worked. 

12.3 Overtime will be calculated to the nearest fifteen (15) minutes. 

7% 



12.4 Employees have the obligation to work overtime or call backs if directed by the 
EMPLOYER. 

12.5 When an employee is called to duty or 1·equired to make a duty related court appearance in 
which a unit of government is a party during his/her off duty time, he/she shall receive a 
minimum of three (3) hours of compensation at the ove1iime rate. For the purposes of 
interpretation of this paragraph, the term "co mi appearnnce" shall mean all time during 
which the co mi may be in session and during which the employee's presence is required 
and all times during which the coutt may be in recess during which times the employee is 
required to remain at or about the courthouse pursuant to the reconvening of such court 
provided that such recesses shall not include any normal luncheon recess. Comt 
appearnnces occurring within one (1) hour of the end of duty shift will be considered an 
extension of duty and not subject to the three (3) hour minimum. The employee shall be 
entitled to the three (3) hour minimum compensation when a regularly scheduled court 
appearance is canceled without twenty-four (24) hour advance notice to the employee. 

12.6 Duty-related conferences shall take place whenever feasible during duty hours. Such 
conferences occurring during off duty hours shall be compensated at the overtime rate for 
actual time spent, except that a minimum of one (1) hour at time and one-half (1 Yi) shall 
apply. 

12.7 For hours actually worked between 12:01 am and 11 :59 p.m. on officially designated 
holidays, pursuant to Article 19, Section 19.1, the employee will receive two times the 
employee's regular hourly rate of pay. For purposes of this Section, the employee' s 
birthday is not included. 

ARTICLE 13. WORK SCHEDULE AND HOURS OF WORK 

13 .1 The normal work year is two thousand and eighty (2,080) hours to be accounted for by each 
employee through: 

a) Hours worked on assigned shifts; 
b) Holidays; 
c) Assigned training; 
d) Authorized leave time. 

13.2 Nothing contained in this or any other Article shall be interpreted to be a guarantee of a 
minimum or maximum number of hours the EMPLOYER may assign employees. 

13 .3 The standard work week is f01ty ( 40) hours (2,080 hours divided by 52 weeks) with the 
understanding that shift assignments are made without reference to the standard seven (7) 
day period. 

13.4 The EMPLOYER reserves the absolute right at its sole discretion to establish work 
schedules without regard to usual or traditional practices. 

a AV 



13.5 Work schedules showing the employees shift, work days, and hours shall be maintained by 
the EMPLOYER. Once such work schedules are established and until they are changed by 
the EMPLOYER, such schedules shall be the regular work schedule. 

ARTICLE 14. VACATION 

14.1 All regular full-time employees shall earn vacation on the following schedule 
provided that the first month of regular full time employment shall be counted only 
ifthe employee started work on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of the month: 

Period of Continuous Employment with Department 
l st through 7th year 
8th through 14th year 
15th through 21st year 
22 years and over 

Earned Vacation 
6.66 hours per month 
10 hours per month 
13.33 hours per month 
16.66 hours per month 

14.2 Employees shall be allowed to take vacation leave each year within the limits of the Article. 
Vacation time shall be seniority based during two phases: 
Phase 1: Vacation request must be turned in prior to November 1st for January 1st through 
June 30th of the following year. 

Phase 2: Vacation t•equests must be turned in prior to May 1st for July 1st through December 
3 pt of the same year. 

All other vacation requests will be "first come, first serve" and shall be approved within 96 
hours. If not denied by the EMPLOYER within ninety-six (96) hours, said request shall be 
considered approved. The EMPLOYER shall schedule vacations at his/her own discretion 
so that the normal operation of the Department will not be interrupted. Once granted, such 
vacation shall not be revoked except in the case of emergency. If a previous request for 
vacation has been received for that period of time or any portion thereof, the employee may 
be allowed a conditional approval, which approval may be revoked by the EMPLOYER if 
in his/her opinion it would require the payment of overtime or affect the operational ability 
of the Department. 

14.3 No employee may take more than twelve (12) consecutive working days of vacation 
leave per year during the first five (5) years of employment, and from years six (6) 
through ten (10) may, where earned, take no more than fifteen (15) consecutive 
days ofvacatibn leave per year. From years eleven (11) through twenty (20) the 
employee may, where earned, take no more than twenty (20) consecutive days of 
vacation leave. Upon completing twenty (20) years of employment, employees may, where 
earned and subject to the approval of the EMPLOYER and upon thirty (30) days advance 
notice, take thirty (30) consecutive days of vacation leave. 

9 A{-



14.4 Vacation will be grnnted in increments of no less than fom hours, which is to mean 
that any time less than four (4) hours will be charged as four hours of vacation, with 
prior approval from administration. A minimum of 40 consecutive hours of vacation 
must be used per year. 

14.5 Employees will be notified of the status of their vacation leave accumulation at the 
beginning of each calendar year. After such notification, the amount of accumulated 
vacation leave exceeding the maximum amount allowable under the following 
schedule will be forfeited by the employee. 

Period of Continuous 
Employment 

Through 10 years 
11 through 15 years 
16-20 years 
Over 20 years 

Maximum Number of Days 
of Accumulated Vacation 

160 hours 
200 hours 
280 hours 
360 hours 

14.6 Employees whose employment has been terminated either through resignation, 
retirement or layoff shall be entitled to cash payment for all vacation leave 
accumulated as of the date of said termination. In cases of volunta1y separation by 
the employee, not less than two (2) weeks notice of separation shall be given the 
EMPLOYER to be eligible for payment of accumulated vacation pay. Upon failure 
thereof, such time shall be fmfeited. 

ARTICLE 15. INSURANCE 

15.1 Employees subject to this Agreement shall be covered under the City's Group 
Hospitalization and Major Medical, Life, Accidental Death and Disability, and Long Term 
Disability insurance policies in the same respect as other City employees. 

ARTICLE 16. SICK LEA VE 

16 .1 Sick leave shall be accumulated at the rate of one (1) working day for each calendar month 
worked. During the probationary period, full-time employees may draw in advance on the 
days of sick leave credits earned during the probationaiy period. If the employee does not 
successfully complete the probationary period, such unearned leave shall be repaid to the 
City. 

Employees will be granted sick leave for the following reasons: 

1) Physical examinations. 

2) Dental care. 

3) Ocular appointments. 

10 /sf' 



4) Serious illness in the immediate family. The term 11 immediate family 11 means 
mother, father, spouse, child, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law, or 
any relative of the employee who is a legal dependent and lives in the household of 
the employee. 

5) Death in the family. The term "family" means parents (it1-law), sister (in-law), 
brother (in-law), spouse, children, grandparents, aunts, and uncles (including 
those of spouse). 

6) Injuries during work. 

7) Personal illness. 

8) Contagious disease. 

9) Maternity leave. 

Sick leave shall not be taken in increments of less than four hours. When taking sick leave, 
the employee shall notify his/her depa1tment head of this fact prior to the beginning of the 
scheduled workday. Failure to supply the department head with adequate notice may be 
cause for denial of sick leave pay or other discipUnary action. Any employee who uses three 
(3) or more consecutive days of si.ck leave must notify his/he1· department head as to an 
estimated date of return to work. The employee shall keep the department head informed of 
any changes in these plans. The City reserves the right to require any employee who uses 
three (3) or more consecutive days of sick leave lo provide a doctor's certificate of illness. 
The certificate shall state the reason the employee is ill and the extent to which he/she cannot 
safely perform his/her work duties. 

Employees entering duty or terminating their services during a calendar month shall be 
credited with a full month's service if they work sixteen (16) days or more during the month 
in question. Unused sick leave may be accumulated. Accumulated unused sick leave 
exceeding sixty (60) days may be traded in at the end of each calendar year at the following 
rates: 

l) Full-time employees with five (5) through nine (9) years may trade in any 
excess at twenty-five percent (25%) of their regular daily wage. 

2) Full-time employees with ten (10) through nineteen (19) years may trade in 
any excess at forty percent (40%) of their regular daily wage. 

3) Full-time employees with twenty (20) or more years may trade in any excess 
at seventy-five percent (75%) of their regular daily wage. 

Employees have the option of retaining these excess days and continuing to accumulate them. 
Employees also bave the option of trading in excess days for vacation days. Employees with 
five (5) through nine (9) years of service may trade in vacation days at the rate of four (4) 
unused sick days for one (I) vacation day. Employees with ten (10) through nineteen (19) 
years may trade in at the rate of three (3) unused sick days for one (1) vacation day. 
Employees with twenty (20) or more years may trade in at the rate of two (2) unused sick 
days for one (1) vacat ion day. Upon severance in good faith, all unused accumulated sick 
leave shall be compensated using the same criteria as for the excess sick leave, the only 
difference being that all days, including the minimally required sixty (60) days shall be 
compensated for. In no event shall severance pay (from accumulate sick leave and vacation 

11 )(<' 



leave) provided for an employee leaving employment exceed an amount equivalent to one (1) 
year of salary. 

For the purposes of accumulating additional vacation or sick leave, an employee using an 
earned sick-leave day is considered to be working. 

An employee receiving sick leave with pay who simultaneously receives workers 
compensation insurance benefits> shall receive only that portion of his/her sick-leave payment 
which will, together with the workmen's compensation benefits and for the duration of said 
benefits, equal his/her regular salary. 

An employee on vacation who becomes ill or injured may, upon proper identification, change 
his/her status to siuk leave. Claiming leave under false pretenses shall be cause for 
disciplina1y action including transfer, suspension, demotion, or dismissal. 

Effective January 1, 2003 the City ofNorth Mankato established Voluntary Employees' 
Beneficiary Association ("VEBA'') and Health Care Expense Accounts for Active 
Employees. Effective January 1, 2008, l 00% of the sick leave benefit normally received at 
term ination will be placed in a post retirement health care savings plan pursuant to Council 
Resolution No. 60-03. 

16.2 Personal Leave - Any employee eligible for sick leave benefit may use up to three (3) sick 
leave days per year for personal reasons. Personal leave may be taken for any purpose. An 
employee must request and receive authorization for the use of personal leave from his/her 
department head prior to the date of the leave. Personal leave shall not be taken in increments 
of less than four hours. 

ARTICLE 17. UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 

17.1 The EMPLOYER shall provide each newly hired employee with one (1) complete 
set of uniform in accordance with policy set by the EMPLOYER. 

17.2 It is understood that the annual uniform allowance of $600 ($50 per month) and the annual 
maintenance allowance of $600 ($50 per month), have been included in their monthly base 
pay since 2013. In 2019, employees will continue to receive the uniform allowance of $600 
($50 per month) and the maintenance allowance of $600 ($50 per month) within their 
monthly base pay. In 2020, employees' rate of pay will be reduced by $100 per month to 
reflect the separation of uniform allowance and maintenance allowance as set f01th in the 
2020 wage scale and Article 24.1. 

17 .3 Effective in 2020, employees shall now be reimbursed for the cost of uniforms upon the 
presentation of paid receipts up to the amount of $600 per year. In addition, in 2020 
employees shall receive a maintenance allowance of $50 per month not to exceed $600 per 
year. 

17.4 The employee shall be reimbursed one-half ( 1/2) the cost of a new bulletproof vest 
every five (5) years. Evidence of the time elapsed since the last purchase of said 
equipment will be the sole responsibility of the employee. 

12 4V 



17.5 Employees covered under the Agreement are requited to keep a full set of uniform 
dress in good condition and to wear, maintain and replace the uniform in 
accordance with policy set by the EMPLOYER. 

ARTICLE 18. RESIDENCE 

All employees who elect to reside outside the corporate limits of the City ofN01th Mankato 
shall be at the No1th Mankato Police Annex at 1001 Belgrade Avenue in North Mankato at 
the start of each regularly scheduled shift. Failure to appear or tardiness resulting in charged 
overtime will result in progressive discipline as per A1ticle 11. 

ARTICLE 19. HOLIDAYS 

' 19.1 The following shall be included as paid holidays for employees subject to this 
Agreement: 

New Year's Day 
Ma1tin Luther King Day 
President's Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Veteran's Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Thanksgiving Friday 
Day before Christmas 
Christmas Day 
"Floating Holiday" - Employee's bitthday or day off of his/her choice. 

19.2 Employees shall receive a compensatmy day off for each of the above holidays. A 
compensato1y day off for a holiday may be taken at the employee's discretion 
subject to approval by the EMPLOYER. 

19 .3 Employees shall be entitled to compensation for holidays pursuant to this A1ticle 
provided they were on pay status their last scheduled day preceding the holiday and their 
first scheduled day following the holiday. 

19 .4 At the end of each calendar year, employees shall receive cash payment for all 
earned, unused holidays. Payment will be based on the employee's regular daily 
rate of pay. 

19.5 Holidays which occur within an employee's approved and compensated vacation 
or sick leave period will not be charged to the employee's vacation or sick leave 
time. 

13 ~ 



19.6 Any other designated holiday granted to other City employees in increments of four (4) or 
more hours shall be granted to employees subject to this Agreement as compensatory time. 

ARTICLE 20. LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

Any employee, upon satisfactory completion of the probationary period, shall be eligible 
for authorized leave as follows: 

20.l Military Leave: Military leave shall be granted to employee's in accordance with State and 
Federal Statutes. 

20.2 Employees required to serve on a jury may receive a leave of absence: Employee 
compensation for such shall be equal to the difference between the compensation 
received for such duty and the employee's regular pay. For jury duty not occurring 
during an employee's regularly scheduled duty shift, the employee shall receive 
compensatory time equivalent to the actual amount of time spent on jury duty. 

20.3 Unpaid Leave of Absence: Leaves of absence without pay for reasonable periods 
of time not to exceed one (1) year will be granted to all employees who have 
successfully completed probation without loss of seniority for physical or mental 
illness. 

Leaves of absence shall be granted one employee at a time and only on the 
condition that in the EMPLOYER'S judgment such leave will not reduce the quality 
or level of service to the public. 
Requests for unpaid leave of absence will be made in writing and will include the 
following information: (1) Reason for requesting the leave: (2) Date the leave of 
absence would commence; (3) Date ofreturn to work. Such requests must be made at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the date the leave would commence. The disposition of such 
requests shall be at the sole discretion of the EMPLOYER. An employee failing to return to 
duty upon the designated date to return to work shall be considered to have resigned. 
Unpaid leaves of absence may be extended by the EMPLOYER based upon a written 
request for an extension from the employee. 

Nothing in this Article shall be construed as limiting the right of the EMPLOYER to 
grant leaves of absence which in the opinion of the EMPLOYER will benefit the 
EMPLOYER or the employee. 

20.4 Any currently licensed employee who fails the proper maintenance of the license 
shall be placed on an involuntary unpaid leave of absence not to exceed six (6) 
months. Should an employee fail to complete licensure requirements within that six 
(6) month period, he/she shall be immediately discharged. 

ARTICLE 21. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 

14 ~ 



The EMPLOYER wilJ reimburse any full-time permanent employee the tuition cost for any 
successfully completed, approved, directly job related class in any college, vocational 
school, or correspondence school curriculum. Prior written approval of the course must be 
given by the EMPLOYER. Successful completion means the employee receives a mark or 
score which the college or school classified as passing. Special fees, activity fees, book 
fees, and the cost of supplies will not be reimbursed by the EMPLOYER. No more than six 
(6) credit hours or two (2) courses will be approved at any one time. The EMPLOYER will 
make every effort to al'l'ange work schedules around class schedules where this will cause 
no disruption of service, however, employees are required to take courses outside of their 
work schedule whenever they are offered. All work schedule adjustments shall be rep011ed 
to the EMPLOYER. This paragraph shall be sunset following the City's adoption of a 
tuition reimbursement policy. 

ARTICLE 22. NON DISCRIMINATION 

22.l The use of masculine or feminine pronouns in this Agreement shall refer to 
employees of either gender unless the context in which these are used clearly indicates 
limitation to one gender. 

ARTICLE 23. WAIVER OF BARGAINING 

During the life of this Agreement, the EMPLOYER and the UNION voluntarily and 
unqualifiedly waive the right and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated, to 
bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered in this 
Agreement, or any other matter, unless done by mutual consent of the EMPLOYER and the 
individual bargaining unit involved. 

ARTICLE 24. PAY PLAN 

24.l Effective 2019: 

Lieutenant 
Probationary Lieutenant 

$6,928 per month 
$6,582 per month 

In addition for 2019, current employees will receive a one time lump sum non base payment 
of$600.00 

Effective 2020: 

Lieutenant 
Probationary Lieutenant 

$7,033 per month 
$6,677 per month 

24.2 In the absence of the Chief of Police, with designation by the Chief and approval of the 
City Administrator, a Lieutenant may be assigned acting Chief and if so assigned wilJ 
receive one (1) hour pay or compensatory time at the rate of time and one half ( 1-112) the 

15 w 



regular rate of pay for each full day serving as acting Chief. Pay for less than one full day 
of service as acting Chief shall be prorated based on the number of hours assigned. 

ARTICLE 25. EDUCATION 

25.1 The EMPLOYER agrees to pay the cost of sixteen (16) hours of P.O.S.T. Board 
eligible continuing education. 

25.2 The EMPLOYER agrees to pay the cost of the P.O.S.T. Board licensure of Lieutenants. 

ARTICLE 26. PHYSICAL FITNESS 

26.1 Lieutenants will be granted an exemption from physical fitness activities for periods up to 
seven (7) days due to illness or injury. Beyond seven (7) days, a doctor's evaluation of 
illness or injury is required. 

26.2 Fitness: Effective April 1, 2005, a physical fitness requirement shall be implemented. The 
fitness requirement shall be coordinated with the Blue Cross/Blue Shield plan fitness 
membership such that employees shall work out a minimum of 12 sessions per month at an 
approved facility or on their own. A log of the workouts should be turned in to the Police 
Chief on a monthly basis. The Employer and employee shall share in the cost of 
membership in an approved facility or in the purchase of workout equipment on a 50/50 
basis. The maximum amount of the reimbursement shall be based on the City ofN011h 
Mankato's corporate rate for a single membership with towel and kit locker at the Mankato 
YMCA less the $20 reimbursement under the Blue Cross/Blue Shield plan fitness 
membership divided by two. The $20 deduction shall apply even ifthe employee does not 
carry the City's Blue Cross/Blue Shield health insurance plan. 

26.3 For individuals working out on their own, a fitness log will be turned in to the Police Chief 
on a monthly basis effective May 1, 2005. Individual workout plans will be subject to a 
review periodically. 

26.4 Lieutenants conducting an individual exercise program may be reimbursed for certain 
exercise or weight training equipment subject to employer's prior approval of the purchase. 
The reimbursement is limited to an employer's out-of-pocket expense for a Lieutenant 
attending an approved facility. 

26.5 Physical Schedule: Employees shall be required to obtain a general physical examination 
every two (2) years. The general physical examination shall be paid for by the City and the 
employee will be compensated at the regular hourly rate of pay for actual time in attendance 
at the general physical examination not to exceed four hours. Documentation of the 
physical examination must be filed with the Police Department and a copy submitted to the 
City. 

16 If--



ARTICLE 27. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

27.1 All employees of the Department shall be subject to semi-annual performance review by the 
EMPLOYER. Members of the bargaining unit will be afforded the oppo1tunity to 
participate in the development of evaluation forms and procedures for the Department. 
Pe1formance evaluations will be done on a semi-annual basis and the employee will be 
afforded the opportunity to discuss his/her evaluation with his/her supervisor. Each 
employee will be provided with a copy of each completed evaluation form. Failure to 
participate in the performance evaluation process or failure to address operational 
deficiencies noted in pe1formance evaluations shall be subject to disciplinary proceedings 
under Article 11 of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 28. DURATION 

This Agreement shall be effective as of January 1, 2019 and shall remain in full force and effect 
until the 31st day of December 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be executed this __ 
day of ____ _ 

FOR THE CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

Mayor 

City Administrator 

City Clerk 

FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT LABOR 
SERVICES, INC. 

h Uk-
Business Agent 

Steward 

Steward 

17 



CITY OF NORTH MANKA TO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item #9G llDepartment: Administration llCouncil Meeting Date: 4/15119 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Setting a Public Hearing for May 6, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. to Consider Ordinance No. 
113, Amending North Mankato City Code, Title V, Public Works, Chapter 71, Parking Regulations. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENT AL INFORMATION: The proposed Ordinance increases the amount of 
time a vehicle may remain on the street before it is moved from 24-hours to 48-hours. 

If additional space is required, attach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Set Public Hearing for May 6, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. to Consider Ordinance No. 
113, Amending North Mankato City Code, Title V, Public Works, Chapter 71, Parking Regulations. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

CJ ITJ CJ c::J c::J 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Norland Other (specify) Public Hearing Notice ----
Oachs ----
Whitlock ----
Steiner -- --
De hen ----

c::J Workshop c::J Refer to: 

ITJ Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

c::J Special Meeting c::J Other: 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

AMEND CITY CODE CHAPTER 71.05 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council of North Mankato will meet in the Council Chambers of the 

City Hall at 7:00 p.m. on May 6, 2019, to consider amending City Code Chapter 71.05, Other Parking 

Restrictions. Vehicles may not remain on the street for a continuous period in excess of 48 hours. After 

48 continuous hours of no movement, they are required to be relocated a minimum of one hundred feet 

from their original location. Such persons as desire to be heard with reference to the proposed 

improvement will be heard at this meeting. 

/sf April Van Genderen 

City Clerk 



P § 71.05 OTHER PARKING RESTRICTIONS. 
(A) The City Council may order the placing of signs, devices or marks, or the painting 

of streets or curbs prohibiting or restricting the stopping, standing or parking of vehicles 
on any street where, in its opinion, as evidenced by a finding in its official minutes, the 
stopping, standing or parking is dangerous to those using the highway, or where the 
stopping, standing or parking of vehicles would unduly interfere with the free movement 
of traffic. The signs, devices, marks or painting shall be official signs, devices, marks or 
painting, and no person shall stop, stand or park any vehicle in violation of the 
restrictions thereon or as indicated thereby. 

(8) 11 No parking 11 signs may be placed by city employees on any street of the city to 
permit construction, repair, snow removal, street cleaning or similar temporary 
activities. While the signs are in place, it shall be unlawful to park any vehicle on the 
streets or portion thereof so posted. 

(C) It shall be unlawful for a person to park in an area designated by Council action 
posted as a fire lane. 

(D) It shall be unlawful for a person to park a vehicle or permit it to stand, whether 
attended or unattended, on an alley within the city, provided that this does not prohibit 
the parking of vehicles for less than one hour on an alley for the purpose of access to 
abutting property for loading or unloading merchandise or other material when parking 
on the property itself is not available. 

(E) It shall be unlawful for a person to park a motor vehicle in an area designated by 
posted signs pursuant to Council resolution for certain types of vehicles, unless the 
motor vehicle is one of the types of vehicles specifically permitted. 

(F) Every vehicle parked upon any street with a curb shall be parked parallel to the 
curb, unless angle parking is designated by appropriate signs or markings. On streets 
with a curb, the right-hand wheels of any vehicle parked shall be within one foot of the 
curb. On streets without a curb, the vehicle shall be parked to the right of the main 
traveled portion of the street and parallel to it and in such a manner as not to interfere 
with the free flow of traffic, unless angle parking is designated by appropriate signs or 
markings. 

(G) It is unlawful to store, maintain or display vehicles 11 For Sale 11 on property not 
owned by the property owner or rental tenant. 

(H) It is unlawful for any person to park a vehicle on any street for the purpose of 
displaying it for sale. It is also unlawful for any person to park a vehicle on any street for 
the purpose of selling merchandise thereon or therein, or advertising any merchandise 
for sale or a forthcoming event, for a period longer than 15 minutes. 
(1975 Code, § 9.06) 

(I) It is unlawful for any person to leave a or park a house trailer, mobile home, 
camping trailer, bus or other similar recreational vehicle on or within the limits of any 
street or right-of-way, except where signs are erected designating the place as a 
campsite, for more than ;M48 consecutive hours. 
(1975 Code, § 9.04) 

(J) Parking on streets shall be limited as follows: 
(1) It is unlawful for any person to stop, park or leave standing any vehicle, boat, 

trailer, camper or recreational vehicle upon any street for a continuous period in excess 



of 24 hours. After 24 continuous hours of no movement, they are required to be 
relocated a minimum of 100 feet from their original location. 

(2) The City Administrator may prohibit or restrict parking on certain streets, blocks 
or portions of streets. 
(1975 Code, § 9.10) (Am. Ord. 106, 4th series, passed 8-20-2018) 

(K) It is unlawful to park in any school parking zone when the same has been sign
posted and duly designated by the Chief of Police. School loading zones shall be 
limited to streets adjacent to an educational institution for the purpose of facilitating and 
expediting the safe and efficient transportation of students in attendance at such 
facilities. 
(1975 Code, § 9.13) 

(L) In municipally-owned parking lots, the Council may limit the sizes and types of 
motor vehicle to be parked thereon, hours of parking, and prescribed method of parking, 
provided that such limitations and restrictions are sign-posted or metered-posted 
thereon. It is unlawful to park or leave standing any vehicle backed into a parking place, 
to drive in a direction opposite the flow of traffic marked by" one-way" signs or arrows, 
or to park any vehicle in any municipally-owned parking lot contrary to the restrictions or 
limitations sign-posted or metered-posted therein. 
(1975 Code, § 9.20) Penalty, see § 10.99 



ORDINANCE NO. 113, FOURTH SERIES 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH MANKATO, MINNESOTA, 
AMENDING NORTH MANKATO CITY CODE, TITLE V, 

PUBLIC WORKS, CHAPTER 71, PARKING REGULATIONS 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH MANKATO, MINNESOTA, 
ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Sections of North Mankato City Code, Title V, Public Works, Chapter 71, 
Parking Regulations are hereby amended as follows: 

(J) Parking on streets shall be limited as follows: 

(1) It is unlawful for any person to stop, park or leave standing any vehicle, boat, trailer, 
camper or recreational vehicle upon any street for a continuous period in excess of 48 hours. 
After 48 continuous hours of no movement, they are required to be relocated a minimum of one 
hundred (100) feet from their original location. 

Section 2. After adoption, signing and attestation, this Ordinance shall be published 
once in the official newspaper of the City and shall be in effect on or after the date following 
such publication. 

Adopted by the City Council this 6th day of May 2019. 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



CITY OF NORTH MANKA TO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item #lOA II Department: Administration r ouncil Meeting Date: 4/15/19 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Resolution Approving MN/DOT Contract No. 1033832 Appointing MN/DOT as the 
City's Agend in Accepting Federal Aid Funds in Conjunction with the 2019 Commerce Drive Improvement 
Project. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: City Engineer Sarff will review the agreement. 

If additional space is required, attach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Approve MN/DOT Contract No. 1033832 Appointing MN/DOT as the 
City's Agend in Accepting Federal Aid Funds in Conjunction with the 2019 Commerce Drive Improvement 
Project. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

[KJ CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Norland Other (specify) Agreement ----
Oachs - - --
Whitlock ----
Steiner ----
De hen ----

CJ workshop CJ Refer to: 

[K]Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MN/DOT CONTRACT NO. 1033832 APPOINTING MN/DOT AS THE 
CITY'S AGENT IN ACCEPTING FEDERAL AID FUNDS IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE 2019 

COMMERCE DRIVE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

WHEREAS, federal funds for the 2019 Commerce Drive Improvement Project, SP 150-
119-003, STPF 5219(102), have been programmed in the State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) for the years 2021 and 2022, and 

WHEREAS, the City of North Mankato intends to advance construct said 2019 
Commerce Drive Improvement Project in 2019, and 

WHEREAS, the City of North Mankato must designate the State of Minnesota, through 
its Commissioner of Transportation, as an agent of the City to accept the federal funds on behalf 
of the City to secure the federal funds in advance of the years that the funds are designated in the 
STIP. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NORTH MANKATO, MINNESOTA that, pursuant to Minnesota Stat. Sec. 161.36, the 
Commissioner of Transportation be appointed as an agent of the City of North Mankato to accept 
as its agent, federal funds which may be made available for eligible transportation projects. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and 
directed for and on behalf of the City of North Mankato to execute and enter into an agreement 
with the Commissioner of Transportation prescribing the terms and conditions of said federal aid 
participation as set forth and contained in "Minnesota Department of Transportation MnDOT 
Contract Number 1033832," a copy of which said agreement was before the City Council and 
which is made a part hereof by reference 

Adopted by the City Council this 15th day of April 2019. 

Mayor 
Attest: 

City Clerk 



mi DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

AGENCY AGREEMENT 

for 

FEDERAL PARTICIPATION IN ADVANCE CONSTRUCTION 

State Project Number: 150-119-003 _____ _ 

FAIN Number: STPF 5219(102) ___ _ 

Mn DOT Contract No. 1033832 

This agreement is entered into by and between the City of North Mankato ("Local Government") and the State of 
Minnesota acting through its Commissioner of Transportation ("MnDOT"). 

RECITALS 

1. MnDOT Contract Number 1029968 which has been executed between the Local Government and MnDOT, appoints 
MnDOT as the Local Government's agent to receive and disburse transportation related federal funds, and sets forth 
duties and responsibilities for letting, payment, and other procedures for a federally funded contract let by the Local 
Government; and 

2. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 161.36, the Local Government desires Mn DOT to act as the Local 
Government's agent to accept and disburse federal funds for the construction, improvement, or enhancement of 
transportation financed in whole or in part by federal funds, hereinafter referred to as the "Project"; and 

3. The Local Government is proposing a federal aid project to upgrade Minnesota State Aid Street 119 between Look 
Out Drive and Lor Ray Drive with pedestrian upgrade and access closures, hereinafter referred to as the "Project"; 
and 

4. The Project is eligible for the expenditure of federal aid funds and is programmed in the approved federally 
approved STIP for the fiscal years 2019, 2021 and 2022, and is identified in Mn DOT records as State Project 150-119-
003, and in Federal Highway Administration ("FHWA") records as Minnesota Project STPF 5219(102); and 

5. The Local Government desires to proceed with the construction of the project in advance of the year it is 
programmed for the federal funds; and 

6. It is permissible under Federal Highway Administration procedures to perform advance construction of eligible 
projects with non-federal funds, with the intent to request federal funding for the federally eligible costs in a 
subsequent federal fiscal year(s), if sufficient funding and obligation authority are available; and 

7. The Local Government desires to temporarily provide Local Government State Aid and/or other local funds in lieu of 
the federal funds so that the project may proceed prior to the fiscal year(s) designated in the STIP; and 

8. Mn DOT requires that the terms and conditions of this agency be set forth in an agreement. 

AGREEMENT TERMS 

1. Term of Agreement 

1.1. Effective Date. This agreement will be effective upon execution by the Local Government and by 
appropriate State officials, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 16C.05, and will remain in effect for five 

Updated February 22, 2018 1 



MnDOT Contract No. 1033832 

(5) years from the effective date or until all obligations set forth in this agreement have been satisfactorily 
fulfilled, whichever occurs first. 

2. Local Government's Duties 

2.1. The Local Government will perform all of its duties and obligations in MnDOT Contract Number 1029968, 
which is incorporated herein by reference, in the solicitation, letting, award, and administration of the 
construction of the Project. 

3. MnDOT's Duties 

3.1. Mn DOT will perform all of its duties in accordance with Mn DOT Contract Number 1029968, which is 
incorporated herein by reference. 

3.2. MnDOT will make the necessary requests to the FHWA for authorization to use federal funds for the Project, 
and for reimbursement of eligible costs pursuant to the terms of this agreement. 

3.3. Mn DOT will request the conversion of the Project to federal funding of eligible costs, when funding and 
obligation authority are available. 

3.4. At such time that the project is converted to federal funding and such funding is received by MnDOT, 

4. Time 

Mn DOT will reimburse to the Local Government the federal aid share of the federally eligible costs, 
previously provided by the Local Government. Reimbursement for Local Government State Aid funds used in 
lieu of federal funds, will be deposited in the Local Government's State Aid Account. Reimbursement for 
other Local Government funds used in lieu of federal funds will be forwarded to the Local Government. 

4.1. The Local Government must comply with all the time requirements described in this agreement. In the 
performance of this agreement, time is of the essence 

4.2. The period of performance is defined as beginning on the date of federal authorization and ending on the 
date defined in the federal financial system or federal agreement ("end date"). No work completed after 
the end date will be eligible for federal funding. Local Government must submit all contract close out 
paperwork to Mn DOT, twenty four months prior to the end date. 

5. Payment 

5.1. It is estimated that the total cost of the Project is$ 2,398,220. The remaining share will be paid by the Local 
Government. Eighty percent of the costs up to a total of $1,159,414 will be eligible for SURFACE 
TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM FLEXIBLE funds. 

5.1.1.0f these SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM FLEXIBLE funds,$ 908,000 is available in federal fiscal 
year 2021. 

5.1.2.0f these SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM FLEXIBLE funds,$ 251,414 is available in federal fiscal 
year 2022. 

5.2. The Local Government will pay any part of the cost or expense of the work that the FHWA does not pay. 

5.3. Request for reimbursement of the federal aid share of the federally eligible costs can be made any time 
after the work is completed, however payment may not be made until after October 1, 2020 for federal 
fiscal year 2021 and until after October 1, 2021 for federal fiscal year 2022. It could be earlier if funding and 
obligation authority are available (subject to the Area Transportation Partnership (ATP) policy). 

5.4. The Local Government will make requests for reimbursement in accordance with the payment provisions in 
MnDOT Contract Number 1029968, which is incorporated by reference, and will comply with the 
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200. 

2 



6. Authorized Representatives 

6.1. MnDOT's Authorized Representative is: 

Name: Lynnette Roshell 

Title: State Aid. Special Projects 

Phone: 651-366-3822 

Email: lynnette.roshell@state.mn.us 

MnDOT Contract No; 1033832 

, or her successor. 

MnDOT's Authorized Representative has the responsibility to monitor local Government's performance and 
the authority to accept the services provided under this agreement. If the services are satisfactory, MnDOT's 
Authorized Representative will certify acceptance on each invoice submitted for payment. 

6.2. The local Government's Authorized Representative is: 

Name: John Harrenstein _________ _, or his successor. 

Title: North Mankato City Engineer _____ _ 

Phone: 507-625-4141 _________ _ 

Email: Johnharrenstein@northmankato.com __ _ 

If the local Government's Authorized Representative changes at any time during this agreement, the local 
Government will immediately notify MnDOT. 

7. Assignment Amendments, Waiver, and Agreement Complete 

7.1. Assignment. The local Government may neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this 
agreement without the prior written consent of Mn DOT and a fully executed Assignment Agreement, 
executed and approved by the same parties who executed and approved this agreement, or their successors 
in office. 

7.2. Amendments. Any amendments to this agreement must be in writing and will not be effective until it has 
been executed and approved by the same parties who executed and approved the original agreement, or 
their successors in office. 

7.3. Waiver. If Mn DOT fails to enforce any provision of this agreement, that failure does not waive the provision 
or MnDOT's right to subsequently enforce it. 

7.4. Agreement Complete. This agreement contains all negotiations and agreements between MnDOT and the 
local Government. No other understanding regarding this agreement, whether written or oral, may be used 
to bind either party. 

7.5. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof is found invalid or unenforceable 
to any extent, the remainder of the Agreement, including all material provisions and the application of such 
provisions, will not be affected and will be enforceable to the greatest extent permitted by the law. 

8. Liability and Claims 

8.1. Tort Liability. Each party is responsible for its own acts and omissions and the results thereof to the extent 
authorized by law and will not be responsible for the acts and omissions of any others and the results 
thereof. The Minnesota Tort Claims Act, Minnesota Statutes Section 3.736, governs MnDOT liability. 

8.2. Claims. The local Government acknowledges that MnDOT is acting only as the local Government's agent 
for acceptance and disbursement of federal funds, and not as a principal or co-principal with respect to the 

3 



MnDOT Contract No. 1033832 

Project. The Local Government will pay any and all lawful claims arising out of or incidental to the Project 
including, without limitation, claims related to contractor selection (including the solicitation, evaluation, 
and acceptance or rejection of bids or proposals}, acts or omissions in performing the Project work, and any 
ultra vires acts. The Local Government will indemnify, defend (to the extent permitted by the Minnesota 
Attorney General), and hold MnDOT harmless from any claims or costs arising out of or incidental to the 
Project(s), including reasonable attorney fees incurred by Mn DOT. The Local Government's indemnification 
obligation extends to any actions related to the certification of DBE participation, even if such actions are 
recommended by MnDOT. 

9. Audits 

9.1. Under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, Subd.5, the Local Government's books, records, documents, and accounting 
procedures and practices of the Local Government, or other party relevant to this agreement or transaction, 
are subject to examination by Mn DOT and/or the State Auditor or Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a 
minimum of six years from the end of this agreement, receipt and approval of all final reports, or the 
required period of time to satisfy all state and program retention requirements, whichever is later. The 
Local Government will take timely and appropriate action on all deficiencies identified by an audit. 

9.2. All requests for reimbursement are subject to audit, at MnDOT's discretion. The cost principles outlined in 2 
CFR 200.400-.475 will be used to determine whether costs are eligible for reimbursement under this 
agreement. 

9.3. If Local Government expends $750,000 or more in Federal Funds during the Local Government's fiscal year, 
the Local Government must have a single audit or program specific audit conducted in accordance with 2 
CFR Part 200. 

10. Government Data Practices. The Local Government and Mn DOT must comply with the Minnesota Government 
Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all data provided by Mn DOT under this agreement, and as it 
applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by the Local 
Government under this agreement. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. §13.08 apply to the release of the data 
referred to in this clause by either the Local Government or Mn DOT. 

11. Workers Compensation. The Local Government certifies that it is in compliance with Minn. Stat. §176.181, Subd. 
2, pertaining to workers' compensation insurance coverage. The Local Government's employees and agents will 
not be considered Mn DOT employees. Any claims that may arise under the Minnesota Workers' Compensation 
Act on behalf of these employees and any claims made by any third party as a consequence of any act or omission 
on the part of these employees are in no way MnDOT's obligation or responsibility. 

12. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue. Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs 
this agreement. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this agreement, or its breach, must be in the appropriate 
state or federal court with competent jurisdiction in Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

13. Termination; Suspension 

13.1. Termination by MnDOT. MnDOT may terminate this agreement with or without cause, upon 30 days 
written notice to the Local Government. Upon termination, the Local Government will be entitled to 
payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed. 

13.2. Termination for Cause. Mn DOT may immediately terminate this agreement if Mn DOT finds that there has 
been a failure to comply with the provisions of this agreement, that reasonable progress has not been made, 
that fraudulent or wasteful activity has occurred, that the Local Government has been convicted of a 
criminal offense relating to a state agreement, or that the purposes for which the funds were granted have 
not been or will not be fulfilled. Mn DOT may take action to protect the interests of Mn DOT of Minnesota, 
including the refusal to disburse additional funds and requiring the return of all or part of the funds already 

4 



MnDOT Contract No. 1033832 

disbursed. 

13.3. Termination for Insufficient Funding. Mn DOT may immediately terminate this agreement if: 

13.3.1. Funding is not obtained from the Minnesota Legislature; or 

13.3.2. Funding cannot be continued at a level sufficient to allow for the payment of the services covered 
here. Termination must be by written or fax notice to the Local Government. Mn DOT is not 
obligated to pay for any services that are provided after notice and effective date of termination. 
However, the Local Government will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for 
services satisfactorily performed to the extent that funds are available. Mn DOT will not be assessed 
any penalty if the agreement is terminated because of the decision of the Minnesota Legislature, or 
other funding source, not to appropriate funds. Mn DOT will provide the Local Government notice of 
the lack of funding within a reasonable time of MnDOT's receiving that notice. 

13.4. Suspension. Mn DOT may immediately suspend this agreement in the event of a total or partial government 
shutdown due to the failure to have an approved budget by the legal deadline. Work performed by the 
Local Government during a period of suspension will be deemed unauthorized and undertaken at risk of 
non-payment. 

14. Data Disclosure. Under M inn. Stat. § 270C.65. Subd. 3, and other applicable law, the Local Government consents 
to disclosure of its social security number, federal employer tax identification number, and/or Minnesota tax 
identification number, already provided to MnDOT, to federal and state tax agencies and state personnel involved 
in the payment of state obligations. These identification numbers may be used in the enforcement of federal and 
state tax laws which could result in action requiring the Local Government to file state tax returns and pay 
delinquent state tax liabilities, if any. 

15. Fund Use Prohibited. The Local Government will not utilize any funds received pursuant to this Agreement to 
compensate, either directly or indirectly, any contractor, corporation, partnership, or business, however 
organized, which is disqualified or debarred from entering into or receiving a State contract. This restriction 
applies regardless of whether the disqualified or debarred party acts in the capacity of a general contractor, a 
subcontractor, or as an equipment or material supplier. This restriction does not prevent the Local Government 
from utilizing these funds to pay any party who might be disqualified or debarred after the Local Government's 
contract award on this Project. 

16. Discrimination Prohibited by Minnesota Statutes §181.59. The Local Government will comply with the provisions 
of Minnesota Statutes §181.59 which requires that every contract for or on behalf of the State of Minnesota, or 
any county, city, town, township, school, school district or any other district in the state, for materials, supplies or 
construction will contain provisions by which Contractor agrees: 1) That, in the hiring of common or skilled labor 
for the performance of any work under any contract, or any subcontract, no Contractor, material supplier or 
vendor, will, by reason of race, creed or color, discriminate against the person or persons who are citizens of the 
United States or resident aliens who are qualified and available to perform the work to which the employment 
relates; 2) That no Contractor, material supplier, or vendor, will, in any manner, discriminate against, or 
intimidate, or prevent the employment of any person or persons identified in clause 1 of this section, or on being 
hired, prevent or conspire to prevent, the person or persons from the performance of work under any contract on 
account of race, creed or color; 3) That a violation of this section is a misdemeanor; and 4) That this contract may 
be canceled or terminated by the state of Minnesota, or any county, city, town, township, school, school district or 
any other person authorized to contracts for employment, and all money due, or to become due under the 
contract, may be forfeited for a second or any subsequent violation of the terms or conditions of this Agreement. 

17. Appendix 112 CFR Part 200 Federal Contract Clauses. The Local Government agrees to comply with the following 
federal requirements as identified in 2 CFR 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, and agrees to pass through these requirements to its subcontractors and third 

5 



MnDOT Contract No. 1033832 

party contractors, as applicable. In addition, the Local Government shall have the same meaning as "Contractor" in 
the federal requirements listed below. 

17.1.1. Remedies. Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $150,000, 
which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and 
Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address 
administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach 
contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. 

17.1.2. Termination. All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for 
convenience by the non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be effected and the 
basis for settlement. 

17.1.3. Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts 
that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must 
include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive 
Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., 
p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal 
Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor." 

17.1.4. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended. (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148) When required by Federal program legislation, 
all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a 
provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as 
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR 5, "Labor Standards Provisions 
Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with 
the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less 
than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In 
addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-Federal 
entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of 
Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned 
upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected 
or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision 
for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by 
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or 
Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act 
provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any 
person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all 
suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. 

17.1.5. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the non
Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must 
include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department 
of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be 
required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week 
of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is 
compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours 
worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to 
construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in 
surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These 

6 



MnDOT Contract No. 1033832 

requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available 
on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. 

17 .1.6. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the 
definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes 
to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the 
substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research 
work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the 
requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small 
Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any 
implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 

17 .1.7. Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-
1387), as amended. Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a 
provision that requires the non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, 
orders or regulations issued under the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water 
Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 

17.1.8. Debarment and Suspension. (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) A contract award (see 2 CFR 
180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions in the System for 
Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement 
Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), 
"Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, 
or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or 
regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. 

17.1.9. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. (31 U.S.C.1352) Contractors that apply or bid for an award 
exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification, Each tier certifies to the tier above that it 
will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with 
obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must 
also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any 
Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award. 

17.1.10. Procurement of Recovered Materials. See 2 CFR 200.322 Procurement of Recovered Materials. 

17.2. Drug-Free Workplace. In accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 32.400, the Local Government will comply with the 
Drug-Free Workplace requirements under subpart B of 49 C.F.R. Part 32. 

17.3. Nondiscrimination. The Local Government hereby agrees that, as a condition of receiving any Federal 
financial assistance under this agreement, it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 
252, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d), related nondiscrimination statutes (i.e., 23 U.S.C. § 324, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975), and applicable regulatory 
requirements to the end that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national 
origin, sex, handicap, or age be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Local Government receives Federal 
financial assistance. The specific requirements of the Department of Transportation Civil Rights assurances 
(required by 49 C.F.R. §§ 21.7 and 27.9) are incorporated in the agreement. 

17.4. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA). 

7 



Mn DOT Contract No. 1033832 

17.4.1. This Agreement requires the Local Government to provide supplies and/or services that are funded 
in whole or in part by federal funds that are subject to FFATA. The Local Government is responsible 
for ensuring that all applicable requirements, including but not limited to those set forth herein, of 
FFATA are met and that the Local Government provides information to the Mn DOT as required. 

a. Reporting of Total Compensation of the Local Government's Executives. 

b. The Local Government shall report the names and total compensation of each of its five most 
highly compensated executives for the Local Government's preceding completed fiscal year, if 
in the Local Government's preceding fiscal year it received: 

i. 80 percent or more of the Local Government's annual gross revenues from Federal 
procurement contracts and Federal financial assistance subject to the Transparency Act, 
as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and 

ii. $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement contracts (and 
subcontracts), and Federal financial assistance subject to the Transparency Act (and 
subawards); and 

iii. The public does not have access to information about the compensation of the 
executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the compensation information, 
see the U.S. Security and Exchange Commission total compensation filings at 
http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.). 

Executive means officers, managing partners, or any other employees in management 
positions. 

c. Total compensation means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by the executive during 
the Local Government's preceding fiscal year and includes the following (for more information 
see 17 CFR 229.402(c)(2)): 

i. Salary and bonus. 

ii. Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use the dollar amount 
recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year in 
accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 
2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments. 

iii. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This does not include group life, 
health, hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in favor 
of executives, and are available generally to all salaried employees. 

iv. Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of defined benefit and 
actuarial pension plans. 

v. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax qualified. 

17.4.2. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other compensation (e.g. severance, 
termination payments, value of life insurance paid on behalf of the employee, perquisites or 
property) for the executive exceeds $10,000. 

17.4.3. The Local Government must report executive total compensation described above to the Mn DOT by 
the end of the month during which this agreement is awarded. 

8 



MnDOT Contract No. 1033832 

17.4.4. The Local Government will obtain a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number and maintain 
its DUNS number for the term of this agreement. This number shall be provided to Mn DOT on the 
plan review checklist submitted with the plans for each project. More information about obtaining a 
DUNS Number can be found at: http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/ 

17.4.5. The Local Government's failure to comply with the above requirements is a material breach of this 
agreement for which the Mn DOT may terminate this agreement for cause. The MnDOT will not be 
obligated to pay any outstanding invoice received from the Local Government unless and until the 
Local Government is in full compliance with the above requirements. 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK.] 

9 



the City of North Mankato 
the City of North Mankato certifies that the appropriate 
person(s) have executed the contract on behalf of the 
Local Government as required by applicable articles, 
bylaws, resolutions or ordinances 

By: ________________ _ 

Title: ______________ __ _ 

Date: ________________ _ 

By: ________________ _ 

Title: ________________ _ 

Date: ________________ _ 

10 

Mn DOT Contract No. 1033832 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Title: State Aid Engineer 

Date:. ________________ _ 

COMMISSIONER OF ADMINISTRATION 

By: ________________ _ 

Date: ________________ _ 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item # 1 OB llDepartment: Community Dev. llCouncil Meeting Date: 4115/19 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Setting a Public Hearing for May 6, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. to Consider a Request to 
Amend City Code Section 156.035 Related to Swimming Pool Setbacks. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Please review the Planning Commission Report. 

If additional space is required, allach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Set a Public Hearing for May 6, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. to Consider a Request to 
Amend City Code Section 156.035 Related to Swimming Pool Setbacks. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

CJ ITJ CJ c::J CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Norland Other (specify) Report ----
Oachs ----
Whitlock ----
Steiner ----
De hen ----

CJ workshop CJ Refer to: 

IT] Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting c::J Other: 



SWIMMING POOL SETBACK REVIEW 

A REQUEST FROM RICHARD SAWATZKY 



SUBJECT: 

APPLICANT: 

LOCATION: 

EXISTING ZONING: 

DATE OF HEARING: 

DATE OF REPORT: 

REPORTED BY: 

THE CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

Request to amend City Code Section 156.035-
Swimming Pool Setbacks 

Richard Sawatzky 

City Wide 

Ap ri I 11 , 2019 

April 3, 2019 

Mike Fischer, Community Development Director 

APPLICATION SUBMITTED 
Request to amend City Code Section 156.035 related to swimming pool setbacks 

COMMENT 
In March of 2019, the Planning Commission considered a request from Richard 
Sawatzky to reduce the rear yard setback for swimming pools to 10 feet. 
Attached as Exhibit A is the request from the applicant. In summary, the rear 
yard setback for either an in-ground or above-ground swimming pool is 15 feet. 
For ravine properties, the setback for in-ground pools in 25 feet measured from 
the ravine breakline as shown on Exhibit B. At the March meeting, the Planning 
Commission reviewed a survey of other cities rear yard setbacks for swimming 
pools (Exhibit C) and provisions in the International Residential Building Code 
used by some cities to determine setbacks on ravine properties (Exhibit D). 

After review by the Planning Commission, the request was tabled to provide the 
City Engineer the opportunity to comment on the request. Attached as Exhibit E 
is a report from the City Engineer. In summary, it is believed that in most cases, 
a reduction in the breakline setback for pool from 25 feet to 10 feet is not a 
concern when the adjacent ravine is in good condition and stable. However, 
when a ravine shows signs of sloughing, a 10 foot ravine breakline setback 
would not be recommended. Therefore, the recommendation is for a City 
Building Inspector to review the condition of ravines when determining a 
breakline setback of either 10 feet or 25 feet. 



RECOMMENDATION 
Based on the recommendation from the City Engineer, staff recommends the 
reduction of the rear yard setback for swimming pools on ravine properties from 
25 feet to 10 feet, with the provision that upon inspection of the ravine by City 
staff, the setback could be increased to 25 feet. 

Staff also recommends the reduction of the rear yard setback for swimming pools 
on non ravine properties from 15 feet to 10 feet. 



EXHIBIT A 

2/6/2019 

To: City of North Mankato 
From: Richard Sawatzky, Sawatzky Pools Inc. 

* I am requesting to reduce rear yard setbacks to 10 ft. for residential swimming pools. 
* My experience is that North Mankato is the only city in this area that requires a 25 ft. setback 
for swimming pools. 
* The 10 ft. setback change will not have any impact on ravines because an in ground swimming 
pool is capable of standing alone without backfill. 
* We have never experienced a situation that a pool has put pressure on a ravine or hillside. 
* The reason for this request is that the majority of the homes in North Mankato are not able to 
accommodate a swimming pool with a 25 ft. setback. 

Sincerely 
Richard Sawatzky 



EXHIBIT B 

§ 156.035 GENERALLY. 

(E) Accessory uses. Accessory uses or structures shall not be located in any required front, 
side, rear or transitional yard except as may be permitted in this section. 

(1) The following accessory uses or structures shall be permitted in any required rear yard 
in any residential zoning district, provided a 15 foot rear yard setback is maintained: 

(a) Decks or elevated platforms, either attached to a dwelling or free standing, with no 
roof or overhead structure of any type; 

(b) Patios or paved areas that are level, flush or at grade with the ground, with no roof or 
overhead structure of any type, and is not used for parking purposes; 

( c) In-ground swimming pools, including aprons, and above-ground swimming ools with 
attached a rons. 

(L) Ravine setbacks. For all uses permitted there shall be a setback of no less than 25 feet, 
measured from the breakline of an adjacent ravine to any permanent structure, including but not 
limited to: dwellings, garages, decks, above-ground patios, in-ground swimming pools. Gazebos 
exceeding 144 square feet in size are subject to a 25-foot ravine breakline setback. The breakline 
shall be established by the Building or Construction Inspector prior to construction. Permitted 
uses in the 25-foot setback area are fences, lawn sheds, inground patios, dog kennels, playground 
equipment or sandboxes that are located a minimum of five feet from the ravine breakline 



North Mankato 

Mankato 

St. Peter 

New Ulm 

Fairbault 

Belle Plaine 

Shakopee 

Northfield 

Waseca 

15' 

10' 

6' 

Not less than 20% of the depth of 

the lot 

5' 

5' 

10' from water of pool 

5' 

10' 

25' 

10' 

6' 

20' when adjacent to State Park 

5' and shall not be located within any utility 

easement 

30' 

No ravine setback regulation; shall not be 

within any utility easement 

No ravine setback regulation; Any pool near a 

ravine would require engineering 

documentation from a structural engineer 

No ravine setback regulation 

m 
x 
I 
CD 
~ 
0 



EXHIBIT D 

R403.1. 7 Footings on or adjacent to slopes 

The placement of buildings and structures on or adjacent to slopes steeper 
than one unit vertical in three units horizontal (33.3-percent slope) shall 
conform to Sections R403.1.7.1 through R403.1.7.4. 

R403.1. 7 .1 Building clearances from ascending slopes 

In general, buildings below slopes shall be set a sufficient distance from the 
slope to provide protection from slope drainage, erosion and shallow failures. 
Except as provided in Section R403.1.7.4 and Figure R403.1.7.1, the 
following criteria will be assumed to provide this protection. Where the existing 
slope is steeper than one unit vertical in one unit horizontal (1 CO-percent 
slope), the toe of the slope shall be assumed to be at the intersection of a 
horizontal plane drawn from the top of the foundation and a plane drawn 
tangent to the slope at an angle of 45 degrees (0.79 rad) to the horizontal. 
Where a retaining wall is constructed at the toe of the slope, the height of the 
slope shall be measured from the top of the wall to the top of the slope. 

rFACEOF 
SiRUCTURE 

TOE OF 
Sl.Of'E 

Hl2 BUT NEED NOT EXCEED 15 FT. 

For SI: 1 foot = 304.8 mm. 

FIGURE R403.1. 7 .1 

FOUNDATION CLEARANCE FROM SLOPES 

TOP OF 
SLOPE 

R403.1. 7 .2 Footing setback from descending slope surfaces 

Footings on or adjacent to slope surfaces shall be founded in material with an 

H 

J 



embedment and setback from the slope surface sufficient to provide vertical 
and lateral support for the footing without detrimental settlement. Except as 
provided for in Section R403.1.7.4 and Figure R403.1.7.1, the following 
setback is deemed adequate to meet the criteria. Where the slope is steeper 
than one unit vertical in one unit horizontal (100-percent slope), the required 
setback shall be measured from an imaginary plane 45 degrees (0. 79 rad) to 
the horizontal, projected upward from the toe of the slope. 

R403.1.7.3 Foundation elevation 

On graded sites, the top of any exterior foundation shall extend above the 
elevation of the street gutter at point of discharge or the inlet of an approved 
drainage device a minimum of 12 inches (305 mm) plus 2 percent. Alternate 
elevations are permitted subject to the approval of the building official, 
provided it can be demonstrated that required drainage to the point of 
discharge and away from the structure is provided at all locations on the site. 

R403.1. 7 .4 Alternate setback and clearances 

Alternate setbacks and clearances are permitted, subject to the approval of 
the building official. The building official is permitted to require an investigation 
and recommendation of a qualified engineer to demonstrate that the intent of 
this section has been satisfied. Such an investigation shall include 
consideration of material, height of slope, slope gradient, load intensity and 
erosion characteristics of slope material. 



t:i\ BOLTON 
\!JJI & MENK 

Real People. Real Solutions. 

April 2, 2019 

Mr. Michael Fischer 
Community Development Director 
City of North Mankato 
P.O. Box 2055 
North Mankato, MN 56002-2055 

RE: Swimming Pool Setback to Ravine or Bluff Break Line 
BMI Project No. Ml 8.118094 

Dear Mr. Fischer, 

EXHIBIT E 

1960 Premier Drive 
Mankato, MN 56001-5900 

Ph: [507) 625-4171 
Fax: [507) 625-4177 

Bolton-Menk.com 

This is in response to your request to provide an opinion regarding reducing the setback distance from 
ravine breaklines for in-ground swimming pools. Paragraph L of Section 156.035 of the City Code 
currently requires that that a 25-foot setback be maintained from ravine breaklines to " ... any permanent 
structure, including but not limited to: dwellings, garages, decks, above-ground patios, in-ground 
swimming pools." It is my understanding that the City is considering reducing this setback for in-ground 
swimming pools from 25 feet to 10 feet. 

I consulted with a geotechnical engineer from Braun Intertec and we agree that, in most cases, reducing 
the setback from 25 feet to I 0 feet should not be a problem, provided that the breakline in question is at 
the top of a well-established and stable slope. However, we also agreed that, if the .existing slope is 
showing signs of sloughing at or near the existing breakline, a I 0 foot setback could be too close. 

I recommend that the City consider reducing the standard setback for in-ground swimming pools to 10 
feet, with the provision that, if sloughing near the existing breakline is observed during a site inspection 
by the building inspectors, the setback could be increased up to a 25-foot maximum. It is also my opinion 
that the setback from the ravine breakline for in-ground swimming pools would apply to any 
improvement associated with the swimming pool - for example, concrete pool decks, fences, etc. 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or if you need any additional information. 

Sincerely, 

Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

Daniel R. Sarff, P.E. 
City Engineer 

Bollon & Menk is an equal opportunity employer. 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

'Agenda Item # 1 OC llDepartment: Finance rouncil Meeting Date: 4/15/19 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Approving RubyRide Transportation Service Agreement. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Please review Finance Director McCann's memo. 

If additional space is required, al/ach a separate sheel 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Approve Ruby Ride Transporation Service Agreement. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

CJ CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Norland Other (specify) Agreement ----
Oachs ----
Whitlock ----
Steiner ----
De hen ----

CJ workshop CJ Refer to: 

II] Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO Memorandum 

To: 
From: 
Subject: 

Date: 
Cc: 

Overview 

John Harrenstein, City Administrator 
Kevin McCann, Finance Director 
North Mankato Microtransit Project/RubyRide Contract and Service Level 
Agreement 
April 10, 2019 

In an effort to improve travel for the residents of North Mankato, staff is proposing a microtransit 
service option. Microtransit where a niche private company comes in to operate demand
responsive transit service where traditional public transit is ineffective. Former Mankato Transit 
Director Mark Anderson and SRF have identified Ruby Ride as the recommended provider. The 
proposed transportation service agreement, service level agreement and related documents are 
attached for the Council's consideration. 

Background 

Upon the completion of the Greater Mankato Transit System (MTS) Transit Development Plan 
(TOP), opportunities were identifies to increase ridership within the system and within North 
Mankato directly. Within the TOP, additional recommendations were included to explore 
alternative transit options in areas where population density prevents cost-effective busing 
service. 

City staff retained, SRF consulting, to assist with exploring alternatives to meet the travel needs 
of North Mankato residents, address challenges of Upper North's low density areas, and provide 
citizens with improved access to other transportation options, while remaining cost-effective and 
convenient for the City and users. 

Through this process, they determined that a 12 month pilot program should be implemented by 
starting small with service to residents 18 years and older of North Mankato by transporting them 
within North Mankato and to and from Mankato. Several microtransit companies were contacted 
about such service and RubyRide came in as the recommended provider. 

RubyRide was founded in Phoenix, AZ in 2014, and is currently headquartered out of Pittsburgh, 
PA. They have several similar transit programs around the country. Their technology allows 
flexible routing, trip booking, and service levels for residents to have the convenience of a car 
without the cost to own one. RubyRide typically works in lower-density areas, employs their 
drivers, while incorporating trip booking capability through apps, online, and phone service, and 
the offer scheduled, on-demand, and recurring trips for the customer as opposed to others. 

For residents requesting service, they will set their trip destination through the app, online, or 
over the phone; receive trip details about the estimated pick-up time, trip length, driver name, and 
car details; they travel with the driver; and then rate the service at the end. 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO Memorandum 

Success will be measured by rider satisfaction, effective promotion/marketing to residents & 
partnerships achieved, reducing cost burden on city, and maximizing operations with the number 
of trips through driver coordination and demand response service. 

Transportation Service Agreement 

The Transportation Service Agreement (Agreement) defines the City will contract with RubyRide 
to provide municipal service defined as demand-responsive transportation system intended for 
use by North Mankato residents and their guests for transportation within North Mankato and to 
and from Mankato beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020. 

The Agreements states that The City of North Mankato is consulting with RubyRide for the 
planning, design, scheduling, and operation for the municipal service. The City will assist with 
marketing and will pay RubyRide monthly for the service provided and may compensate 
RubyRide for additional costs when mutually agreed to. 

RubyRide shall provide the municipal service as recommended by the City and will implement 
any agreed upon changes within 30 days. They will provide monthly reports on the operations 
along with an itemized invoice to the City. RubyRide shall comply with all laws and regulations. 
RubyRide will provide all staff, vehicles, technology and administrative service to operate the 
municipal service. RubyRide will provide quality standards as described in the Service Level 
Agreement below. 

The agreement includes standard indemnity clauses and insurance coverage obligations. The 
agreement may be terminated upon providing 30 calendar days written notice. 

Fees 

Residents 18 years of age or older, and accompanied minors will pay $4.00/trip/passenger with a 
different rate for minors. The City subsidizes the rest as outlined in the municipal trip subsidy 
based on the number of trips per month: 

Municipal 

Monthly 250 500 750 1,000 1,250 1,500 1,750 2,000 
Trip Count 

Blended 

Cost-Per-Trip 
$8.25 $7.75 $7.08 $5.85 $4.84 $3.87 $3.17 $2.65 

In addition to the trip subsidy, the City will pay $7,200 in start-up fees. The City will also market 
the program through newsletters, utility bills, online, and other means available to the City. The 
total estimated costs for the pilot program are estimated to cost $75,000-$100,000 with the 
expected service levels totaling $88,000. This could change based on service levels changes and 
overall demand. 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO Memorandum 
- - - - -------- ----

Service Level A2recment 

The SLA is an agreement between the City of North Mankato and RubyRide stating the 
provisioning of service required to support and sustain the microtransit service, including what's 
expected for each party. The SLA includes defining the goals and objectives so both parties 
understand what the pilot is to achieve, including the collection of data so funding from state and 
federal sources can be pursued. The following mission statement has been developed for the 
program: 

Pilot Mission Statement: 
The City of North Mankato seeks to be on the cutting edge of the latest public transit 
options that will address the need for universally accessible transportation in a less 
dense environment while preparing for the future of alternative mobility solutions. 
RubyRide seeks to implement a dynamic microtransit service to improve everyday 
mobility for North Mankato residents throughout the greater Mankato area. This pilot 
project will assess the long-term viability of RubyRide microtransit service to 
enhance the quality of life and local connectivity of the residents who use it. 

The SLA defines the pilot program as a twelve month project and is in place unless superseded, 
with reviews every six months. 

The service is defined as curb-to curb to North Mankato residents and passengers, providing ease 
of requesting service, while tracking data for the City. There will be wheelchair accessible 
service for those in need. The fares for each passenger will be $4.00 Monday through Friday 
during the subsidized hours of 7AM-6PM. Service will be provided outside of these hours at 
different rates and plans as developed by Ruby Ride. 

Drivers will be screened and trained to provide high-quality customer service. Drivers will be 
rated by passengers after each trip based on a 5-star evaluation with 5 being the best rating. 
Drivers with an average rating less than 4.0 stars will be required to develop a plan for 
improvement. After consecutive months of less than 4.0 stars, drivers will be subject to 
suspension or dismissal. 

Scheduling will be available to residents through telephone, online, or app capabilities. RubyRide 
will then respond to the request by providing the driver information, car information, expected 
pick-up and drop-off times and a notification about the trip being subsidized by the City of North 
Mankato. 

The different service levels are: on-demand where a request is made and the user will be picked 
up during the next available time with an estimated pick-up time and pre-scheduled where 
requests are made at least on-hour in advance. 

Through the SLA, RubyRide Guarantees 95% reliability for on-time pickups as reported for the 
expected pick-up time. 



TRANSPORTATION SERVICE AGREEMENT 

This Transportation Service Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of 

this day of 2019 (the "Effective Date"), by and between City of North 
Mankato, a Municipal corporation (the "City") and RubyRide PA, a Pennsylvania Corporation, a 
wholly-owned subsidiary ofRubyRide, Inc. ("RubyRide"). 

RECITALS 

A. The City desires to contract for a local public transportation system that facilitates 
alternative means of transportation within the Service Area. 

B. RubyRide can provide a local public transportation system within the Service 
Area. 

C. The City and RubyRide desire to enter into this Agreement to provide for the 
public transportation services within the Service Area, as more fully set forth in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreement set forth above and in 
this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 

1. RUBYRIDE MUNICIPAL SERVICES. Ruby Ride Municipal Services means a 
City demand-responsive transportation system intended for use by City residents and their guests 
as more fully set forth on Schedule A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

2. TERM AND RENEWAL. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on 
July 1, 2019, and end on June 30, 2020, unless earlier terminated as provided herein, or upon 
thirty (30) days written notice from either party. 

2.1. Automatic Renewal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement shall 
automatically renew for successive one (1) year terms until either party notifies the other party in 
writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the termination date that the Agreement shall not be 
renewed. 

3. CITY RESPONSIBILITY. 

3 .1. The City shall consult with Ruby Ride on planning, design, scheduling, 
and operation the RubyRide Municipal Services. The City agrees to provide city staff, as 
reasonably requested, to assist RubyRide in developing, evaluating and adjusting the RubyRide 
Municipal Services. 

3.2. The City agrees to assist with the development and marketing of 
RubyRide Municipal Services. 



3.3. The City shall pay to RubyRide on a monthly basis the "Total Net Cost" 
for Ruby Ride Municipal Services, in accordance with Schedule B, attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference. 

3.4. For services requested by the City beyond the RudyRide Municipal 
Services, the City shall compensate RubyRide in an amount as mutually agreed to. 

4. RUBYRIDE RESPONSIBILITY. 

4.1. RubyRide shall provide the RubyRide Municipal Services as set forth in 
this Agreement. RubyRide agrees to review, approve and modify the RubyRide Municipal 
Services as recommended by the City, which shall include, but not be limited to the areas of 
transit stops, pedestrian control and traffic control. 

4.2. RubyRide shall provide monthly reports by the l01h day of the following 
month on ridership, applicable performance standards, and reasonable financial and operational 

data to the City with respect to all RubyRide Municipal Services, and as otherwise required 
pursuant to this Agreement. RubyRide further agrees to provide specific data inquires as 
requested by the City. 

4.3. RubyRide will provide monthly itemized invoices to the City no later than 
the 1 oth day of the following month. 

4.4. RubyRide shall implement agreed upon changes to the RubyRide 
Municipal Services within a reasonable time, but in no event more than thirty (30) days from the 
date agreed to. 

4.5. RubyRide shall provide a written request thirty (30) calendar day notice 
for major service changes. 

4.6. RubyRide shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations 
and codes of the federal, state and local governments. 

4.7. RubyRide shall supply the staff, vehicles, technology services and 

administrative support to fully operate the RubyRide Municipal Services in accordance with 
Schedule A. 

4.8. RubyRide shall meet service quality standards described in the Service 

Level Agreement, attached hereto as Schedule D and incorporated by reference. 

4.9. RubyRide shall provide the public an avenue to voice grievances or 
complaints with the RubyRide Municipal Services. All such complaints, along with their 
resolutions shall be documented in the monthly reports provided to the City pursuant to Section 
4.2. 

2 

66348641.2 



5. ADDITIONAL TERMS. 

5.1. Contractual Fees. Neither City nor RubyRide have involved any brokers 

or agents on their behalf in connection with the transaction contemplated under this Agreement, 

and no commissions or costs are owed or being paid to any broker or agent in connection with 
this transaction. 

5.2. Advertising. No advertising shall be allowed on system vehicles except as 

may be agreed upon in writing by the parties. Any revenue generated by advertising shall be 

applied to offset the Municipal Trip Subsidies as set forth on Schedule B. 

5.3. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, for 

any reason, with or without cause, upon providing thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice. 

Upon termination, RubyRide shall provide a final monthly report in accordance with Section 4.2, 

and a final itemized invoice in accordance with Section 4.3. The City shall pay the final total net 

cost due in accordance with Schedule B. If the City is entitled to a refund, a refund shall be paid 

within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the final report. 

5.4. Additional Services. Additional services may be provided under this 

Agreement when authorized by written mutual agreement of the parties and shall be 

compensated for by a fee, mutually agreed to by the parties. 

6. INDEMNITY. Ruby Ride covenants an agrees to defend, indemnify and hold City 

and its agents and representatives (collectively "Indemnified Parties") harmless in respect to any 

claim, suit, action, loss, cost, expense, liability, fine, penalty, citation, interest payment or 

damage (including reasonable counsel and other professional fees and disbursements) relating t, 

arising out of, resulting from or in any way connected with this Agreement (collectively the 

"Indemnified Liabilities"). RubyRide's agreement in this Section shall survive the termination 

of the Agreement. The Indemnified Liabilities do not include any liabilities resulting from: (i) 

the gross negligence or (ii) willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties, and such liabilities are 

expressly excluded. 

7. INSURANCE OBLIGATIONS. RubyRide shall obtain insurance as described 

below prior to any operational activity and keep such coverage in force throughout the life of the 

Contract. 

Coverage Required 

Worker's Compensation 
Employees Liability 

General Liability 
Auto liability 

66348641.2 

Minimum Limits of Liability 

Statutory 
$100,000 

$1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate 
$1,000,000 

3 



Employee drivers must demonstrate coverage on their own vehicles at least up to State Minimum 
Requirements, with a rider from the employee's provider permitting rideshare use. 

8. REMEDIES ON DEFAULT. If either party defaults under this Agreement, the 

non-defaulting party shall provide written notice to the defaulting party specifying the nature of 

the claimed default. If the defaulting party fails to cure such default within ten (10) days of the 

notice, the non-defaulting party may, at its option: (i) terminate this Agreement; (ii) seek 

damages from the defaulting party, including costs and reasonable attorney fees, and/or (iii) seek 

specific performance of this Agreement within six ( 6) months after the right of action arises. All 

remedies under this Agreement shall be deemed cumulative of any remedy otherwise allowed by 
law. 

9. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is declared void or 

unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severed from this Agreement, which shall 

otherwise remain in full force and effect. 

10. NO ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement is personal to each of the parties hereto, 

and neither party may assign or delegate any of its rights or obligations hereunder without first 

obtaining the written consent of the other; provided, however, that the City may assign its rights 

and delegate its obligations hereunder to a successor in interest without obtaining such consent. 

11. WAIVER. Failure of any party to exercise any right or option arising out of a 

breach of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any right or option with respect to any 

subsequent or different breach, or the continuance of any existing breach. 

12. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, all such counterparts shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument, 

and each of said counterparts shall be deemed an original hereof. 

13. CAPTIONS. Captions and section headings used herein are for convenience only 

and are not a part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to limit or alter any provisions 

hereof and shall not be deemed relevant in construing this Agreement. 

14. CANCELLATION. This Agreement is subject to cancellation. This Agreement 

shall be in full force and effect after it has been approved by the City Council of the City of 

North Mankato, after it has been executed by the duly authorized officials of the parties. 

15. NOTICES. Any notice, consent or other communication ("Notice") required or 

permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and either delivered via email, in person, sent 

by facsimile transmission, deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, registered or 

certified mail, return receipt requested, or deposited with any commercial air courier or express 
service addressed as follows: 

4 

66348641.2 



If to the City: 

City of North Mankato 
PO Box 2055 

1001 Belgrade Ave. 
North Mankato, MN 56003-2055 
Or via email: 

Ifto RubyRide: 

RubyRideMN 
624 Hastings St. 

Pittsburgh, PA 15206 

Or via email: 
jeff@rubyride.co 

Notices shall be deemed received at the time it is personally served, on the day it is sent by 
facsimile transmission, on the second day after its deposit with any commercial air courier or 
express service or, if mailed, ten (10) days after the Notice is deposited in the United States mail 
as above provided. Any time period stated in a Notice shall be computed from the time the 
Notice is deemed received. Either party may change its mailing address or the person to receive 

Notice by notifying the other Party as provided in this paragraph. Notices sent by facsimile 
transmission shall also be sent by regular mail to the recipient at the above address. This 
requirement for duplicate notice is not intended to change the effective date of the notice sent by 
facsimile transmission. 

16. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION. This Agreement shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota applicable to 

contracts executed and to be fully performed in such jurisdiction without regard to its conflict of 
laws principal. Each party submits to jurisdiction of the federal and state courts located in the 
State of Minnesota, as to any action or proceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day, 

month and year first above written. 

CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

By: ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Its: 
~~~~~~~~~~~-

66348641.2 

5 

RUBYRIDE, PA 

By: ~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Its: 
~~~~~~~~~~~-



SCHEDULE A-

OBJECTIVES AND DESCRIPTION OF RUBYRIDE MUNICIPAL SERVICES 

RubyRide will provide curb-to-curb microtransit service to residents of the City, or their guests, 
during service hours as determined by the City. 

The purpose of the service is: 
• To provide improved mobility, and reduced trip time, to City residents within the greater 

Mankato area; 
•To test the efficiency/effectiveness of microtransit as a general transit solution in City; 

To be eligible, users must have a legal address in the City and be 18 years of age or older. 
To use the service, residents must create an account for each passenger, either via web app, 
mobile app, or telephone. Accompanied minors younger than 5 may travel for free and 

accompanied minors older than 5 may travel for $.50. 

The most recent published Service Level Agreement between the City and RubyRide shall be 
incorporated by reference. 

Operations 

• RubyRide will provide sufficient fleet to meet service standards as specified in the 
Service Level Agreement. 

• Regular hours of operation will be from 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM Monday through Friday. 

• Service hours and days may be adjusted from time to time on written request from 
authorized representative at the City, and implemented within 24 hours of agreement by 

both parties. 

• The City may request additional coverage or special services on a cost basis. 

• RubyRide will ensure that all drivers meet RubyRide standards for screening and training 

and that all vehicles meet Ruby Ride' s standards of appearance and safety. 

• RubyRide will provide service as required by law conforming with Title VI of the US 

Code. 

Use of Service 

• For a trip to be eligible for a municipal subsidy, the trip must either originate or end at an 
address within the geographic boundaries of the City, or both. Geographic boundaries for 
the City are found on the Service Area Map in Schedule C. 

6 

66348641.2 



• Users may request trips and manage their accounts using an iOS app, an Android app, a 
web form via a browser like Chrome, or via telephone. Telephone operating hours shall 
be provided according to the Service Level Agreement. 

• Trips may be scheduled in advance (pre-scheduled), or requested on-demand. 

• On-demand trips will be requested on a 'next available' basis. Users will be notified via 
their mode of request when to expect pickup. 

• Pre-scheduled trips are those requested more than one (1) hour in advance of the 
requested pickup time. Requests made on the same day will have a pickup time 

confirmation which might be slightly different than the request based on previously 
requested trips. 

• Trips may be shared. Ruby Ride will work to minimize the number of miles driven, while 
balancing the convenience for the user. 

Data 

The following data will be provided by Ruby Ride to appropriate staff at the City in the following 
form for RubyRide Municipal Services: 

Printed (or PDF) at the same time as monthly invoice: 

• List of registered users and a trip count for the period. 

• Revenue collected from RubyRide Municipal Services 

• Anonymized heat map of origin and destination locations. 

• Histogram of trip volume by time of day. 

• Driver ratings as supplied by passengers. 

• Service standard report 

• Incident reports - complaints/compliments by passengers, accidents or other exceptions 
that impact service. 

Equipment 

• Back-end computer services 

• Technical infrastructure 

• Mobile apps for both drivers and Passengers 

• App maintenance and updates as needed 

• Branded door magnets for RubyRide vehicles while on duty 

• Call-in phone operator service with a dedicated phone number for the Greater Mankato 
area. 

7 

66348641.2 



SCHEDULED-

COST PROJECTIONS & SUBSIDIES FOR RUBYRIDE MUNICIPAL SERVICES 

Municipal Trip Subsidies 

The City is contracting with RubyRide to provide trip subsidies for City residents to use 
Ruby Ride Municipal Service. The cumulative cost of municipal subsidies will be invoiced to the 
City on a monthly basis. The blended cost-per-trip, according to the municipal subsidy schedule, 
is as follows: 

Municipal 

Monthly 250 500 750 l,000 l,250 l,500 l,750 2,000 
Trip Count 

Blended 

Cost-Per-Trip 
$8.25 $7.75 $7.08 $5.85 $4.84 $3.87 $3.17 $2.65 

This subsidy schedule is designed to limit the cost burden to the City for municipal services, 

even as ridership grows and an increasing number of trips are delivered to municipal passengers. 
The table above describes the blended cost-per-trip to the City for several trip count scenarios. 

Other Expenses 

Startup Fee - $7,200. 00 

• This fee will be used for product and technology customization, localized marketing and 
branding of Ruby Ride municipal service, management and coordination of initial service 
delivery, and mobilization costs. 

Calculating "Total Net Cost" to the City 

Total Net Cost to the City is calculated each month by taking the cumulative cost of all 
municipal subsidies billed to the City for RubyRide Municipal Service, and adding this amount 

to any other expenses agreed upon and incurred by Ruby Ride during the delivery of RubyRide 
Municipal Services. 

8 

66348641.2 



SCHEDULEC-

SERVICE AREA MAP 

Service: Providin 

ne:opl\ 

M1nneopa Golf 
Course 

Municipal Boundaries 

Cl Mankato 

North Mankato 

66348641.2 

to North Mankato residents within Greater Mankato Area 

' I 

" "' < 

9 

z 

23 ls f S I \\O~ 
i'-le.1 

. .,, 
< 

= 

N Victory 01 

M af11son Ave 

203rd · 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item # 1 OD "Department: Finance llCounci l Meeting Date: 4/15/19 
I 

TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Approving RubyRide Service Level Agreement for the City of North Mankato, 
Minnesota by RubyRide, Inc. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Please review Finance Director McCann's memo. 

If additional space is required, attach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Approve RubyRide Service Level Agreement for the City of North 
Mankato, Minnesota by RubyRide, Inc. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

CJ CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Norland Other (specify) Agreement - - --
Oachs - ---
Whitlock ----
Steiner - ---
Dehen ----

CJ workshop CJ Refer to: 

[TI Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



Service Level Agreement (SLA) 

for City of North Mankato, Minnesota 

by 

Ruby Ride, Inc. (and subsidiaries) 

Effective Date: 3-21-2019 

I Document Owner: l RubyRide 

Version 

Version Date Description Author 

2.0 3-21-2019 Service Level Agreement Jeff Ericson 

Approval 

(By signing below, all Approvers agree to all terms and conditions outlined in this Agreement.) 

Approvers Role Signed Approval Date 

Ruby Ride Service Provider 4-1-2019 

City of North Mankato Customer 4-1-2019 



Table of Contents 

1. Agreement Overview ................. .......... ............................... ............................... 3 

2. Goals & Objectives .................................................. .......................................... 3 

3. Stakeholders .................... ........................................................ ... ................ ....... . 4 

4. Pilot Project ........................................................................................................ 4 

5. Service Agreement ............................................................................................. 5 

5 .1. Service Scope ........... ........................................................ .. ......................... 5 

5 .2. Service Assumptions ................................................................................... 5 

6. Service Management .......................................................................................... 6 

6.1. Service Availability ..................................................................................... 6 

6.2. Service Requests .......................................................................................... 7 

2/8 

Ruby Ride 
~d.lll<tlll<w 



1. Agreement Overview 

This Agreement represents a Service Level Agreement ("SLA" or "Agreement") between 
RubyRide and City of North Mankato for the provisioning of services required to support and 
sustain RubyRide microtransit service. It is understood by both parties that this agreement is 
for a twelve-month pilot project; it is further understood that during the course of the project, 
unforeseen opportunities/challenges may arise. In an effort to efficiently address these 
opportunities/challenges, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) may be entered into to 
take advantage of or resolve unforeseen opportunities/challenges. 

This Agreement remains valid until superseded by a revised agreement mutually endorsed by 
the stakeholders. 

This Agreement outlines the parameters of all services covered as they are mutually understood 
by the primary stakeholders. 

2. Goals & Objectives 

The purpose of this Agreement is to ensure that the proper elements and commitments are in 
place to provide consistent service support and delivery to the Customer(s) by the Service 
Provider(s). 

The goal of this Agreement is to obtain mutual agreement for service provision between the 
Service Provider and Customer. 

The objectives of this Agreement are to: 

• Provide clear reference to service ownership, accountability, roles and/or 
responsibilities. 

• Present a clear, concise and measurable description of service provision to the 
Customer. 

• Match perceptions of expected service provision with actual service support & 

delivery. 
• Provide the groundwork which allows for federal and state funding sources 
• Collect data to compare to National Transit Database (NTD) statistics 

3/8 

Ruby Ride 
b&J.L<ui~ 



3. Stakeholders 

The following Service Provider(s) and Customer(s) will be used as the basis of the Agreement 
and represent the primary stakeholders associated with this SLA: 

Service Provider(s): RubyRide ("Service Provider") 
Customer(s): City of North Mankato ("Customer") 

4. Pilot Project 

This Agreement is valid from the Effective Date outlined herein and is valid until further 
notice. This Agreement should be reviewed at a minimum once per fiscal year; however, in 
lieu of a review during any period specified, the current Agreement will remain in effect. 

The Business Relationship Manager ("Document Owner") is responsible for facilitating 

regular reviews of this document. Contents of this document may be amended as required, 
provided mutual agreement is obtained from the primary stakeholders and communicated to 
all affected parties. The Document Owner will incorporate all subsequent revisions and obtain 
mutual agreements I approvals as required. 

Business Relationship Manager: RubyRide 
Review Period: Biannual (Every 6 months) or as requested by Customer 
Previous Review Date: NI A 

Next Review Date: 12/1/2019 

Pilot Mission Statement: 
The City of North Mankato seeks to be on the cutting edge of the latest public transit options 

that will address the need for universally accessible transportation in a less dense environment 
while preparing for the future of alternative mobility solutions. Ruby Ride seeks to implement 

a dynamic microtransit service to improve everyday mobility for North Mankato residents 
throughout the greater Mankato area. This pilot project will assess the long-term viability of 

RubyRide microtransit service to enhance the quality of life and local connectivity of the 
residents who use it. 

4/8 

Ruby Ride 
ii<!>><tlrul.-



5. Service Agreement 

The following detailed service parameters are the responsibility of the Service Provider in the 
ongoing support of this Agreement. 

5 .1. Service Scope 

The following Services are covered by this Agreement; 

• Subsidized microtransit service 
o RubyRide will provide curb-to-curb local trip service to North Mankato 

residents ("Passengers") during service hours and days per the Agreement. 

• Customer assistance for service-related events 
o RubyRide will provide multiple options for Passengers to submit questions, 

incidents or complaints about service, and will respond in a timely manner to 
all events that require follow up. Submissions can be made over the phone, 
online, or in-app. 

• Data reporting services 
o Ruby Ride will provide North Mankato with a monthly report of service-related 

metrics, showing how Passengers are engaging with RubyRide Municipal 
service, along with when/where the service is being used. 

5.2. Service Assumptions 

General Service Assumptions 

• Changes to services will be communicated and documented to all stakeholders, 
with advance notice of no less than 30 days before changes become effective. 

• Wheelchair Accessible service will be made available to those residents who need 
it, with a level of service parity that ensures every Passenger of Ruby Ride is 
treated with the same level of dignity and respect. 

• Customer will designate a point of contact for all service changes 

Fare Recovery 

• RubyRide will collect a $4.00 fare from each Passenger on each Monday through 
Friday trip that receives a municipal subsidy, per the Agreement. 

• For trips that are not eligible for a municipal subsidy-trips occurring outside of 
regular operating hours-Passengers can choose from other RubyRide plans, trip 
options, or arrangements with other sponsors. 

5/8 

Ruby Ride 
&niW.<ui.-



Driver Rating System 

• RubyRide drivers are thoroughly screened and trained to deliver a high-quality 

Passenger experience on every trip. Driver ratings from Passengers allow 
RubyRide to make informed decisions regarding drivers, and ensure that 
appropriate action is taken with drivers who fail to meet our service standards. 

The Ruby Ride driver rating system follows the standard "5-star" driver evaluation 
commonly used by other mobility providers like Uber. Passengers award the 
driver a rating between 1 and 5 "stars"-1 star being the worst rating, 5 stars 

being the best rating-based on their trip experience, along with the option to 
leave a comment about their trip, driver rating, or both. 

Every month, weighted-averages for driver ratings will be provided to the 
Customer as part of the data reporting services, per the Agreement. Drivers with 
an average rating for the month that is less than 4.0 stars will be required to set 
up a meeting with the Lead Driver, to discuss reasons for the low ratings and 

develop a plan to address these reasons. Drivers who receive an average rating in 
consecutive months below 4.0 stars will be subject to temporary suspension, or 
permanent removal, from the RubyRide platform. 

6. Service Management 

Effective support of in-scope services is a result of maintaining consistent service levels. The 
following sections provide relevant details on service availability, monitoring of in-scope 
services and related components. 

6.1. Service Availability 

North Mankato residents will have the option to submit a RubyRide service request via a 
mobile app, online, or phone call. Coverage parameters specific to the service(s) covered 

in this Agreement are as follows: 

• Telephone: Monitored continuously (24171365) 

o A call center with TDD capabilities will be available for Passengers to 

submit service requests for both on-demand and pre-scheduled trips, via a 
phone number dedicated to RubyRide municipal service. 

6/8 

Ruby Ride 
l!'.ITh."( J.t!.'1...'iW..!!.li!R 



--
o All service requests made through the call center will be recorded to 

ensure the safety of the Passengers. 

• Online: Monitored continuously (24171365) 

o A web portal will be available for Passengers to submit service requests 
via an online browser. Passengers must be logged in to their RubyRide 
account prior to submitting an online service request. 

• In-app: Monitored during normal business hours 

o Service requests can also be made through a smartphone-enabled mobile 
app, which is available for Passengers to download free of charge. 
Passengers must be logged in to their RubyRide account prior to 
submitting a service request via the mobile app. 

• Technology Platform: Guaranteed uptime of 99.5%. Scheduled updates and 
maintenance will be performed outside of operating hours. 

6.2. Service Requests 

In support of services outlined in this Agreement, the Service Provider will respond to 
service-related incidents and/or requests submitted by the Customer within the following 
time frames: 

Responding to Service Requests: 

Upon submitting a service request, the Passenger will be provided the following 
information about their trip via their mode of request: 

• Driver Name and Contact Information 

• Car Make, Model, and License Plate 

• Expected Pickup & Drop-Off Time 

• A notification that the trip is subsidized by the City of North Mankato 

This information is intended to give the Passenger easily-identifiable information about 
their driver and car, as well as an estimate of when their service request will be fulfilled. 
'Expected Pickup Time' is influenced by many factors, including but not limited to: the 
number of drivers available, pickup location, time of day, and weather or road conditions. 
In general: 

7/8 

Ruby Ride 
k \kf- t .-.,d .\p'«rtdl 



• On-demand service requests will be accommodated on a 'next available' basis. Users 
will be notified via their mode ofrequest when to expect pickup. Wait time for an on
demand service request shall not exceed 15 minutes from the 'Expected Pickup Time' 
seen by the Passenger. 

• Pre-scheduled service requests are made more than one (1) hour in advance of the 
requested pickup time. For pre-scheduled service requests, the wait time shall not 
exceed 10 minutes from the 'Expected Pickup Time' seen by the Passenger. 

RubyRide guarantees 95% reliability for 'on-time' pickups, according to the wait times 
described above. Overall percentage of 'on-time' pickups will be included in the data 
reporting services delivered to the Customer on a monthly basis. 

Responding to Service Incidents I Complaints: 

• Passenger satisfaction is paramount to the delivery of a successful service; at any time 
and for whatever reason, a Passenger may submit a service-related incident or 
complaint about their experience. Incidents or complaints about service may be 
submitted through the following options: 

1. Calling a dedicated support line to submit an incident 
2. Contacting the Lead Driver to make him/her aware of an issue 
3. Using the rider app to submit an "incident report" 

Regardless of how it is submitted, Ruby Ride will ensure that all incidents or 
complaints requiring follow up receive a response within 24 hours of first receiving 
the submission. 

8/8 

Ruby Ride 
:SC..\.!W.tiUL~~ 



CITY OF NORTH MANKA TO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item #I OE I I Department: Community Dev. llCouncil Meeting Date: 4/15/19 
I 

TITLE OF ISSUE: Receive Information on MAPO ADA Transition Plan and Inventory. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Please review report. 

If additional space is required, allach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Receive Information on MAPO ADA Transition Plan and Inventory. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

c=i c=i CJ c=i c=i 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Norland Other (specify) Report ----
Oachs ----
Whitlock ----
Steiner ----
De hen ----

c=Jworkshop c=i Refer to: 

(I] Regular Meeting c=J Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting c=J Other: 



MAPO ADA Transition Plan and 
Inventory - North Mankato 

• Process Overview 

• Self-Evaluation (Field Inventory) Process 

• ADA Transition Plan Development 

• Public Involvement 

• Next Steps 

®• 



Self-Evaluation - Process 
Overvi.ew 

• Policy and Practice Review 
• i.e. Complete Streets Policy, 

Snow and Ice Removal Policy, 
etc. 

• Program Review 
• Inventory 
• Evaluation 

• Opportunity for Public Comment 

®• 



Self-Evaluation - Process 
Overview 

• North Mankato Policies Reviewed: 

• City Code 
• Comprehensive Plan 
• Complete Streets Plan & Policy 
• Pavement Management Plan 
• SRTS Plan 
• Sidewalk Installation & Maintenance Plan 

®• 



• 
tn @ .c ...... ca 
ll. ... 
0 

tn 
tn -·-

tn 
ca ~ ... 

Cl) 
t-

(I) ...... 

(.) 

-(I) 
.c 

"' 0 
I-

tn tn 
~ 

D.. - :::::s 

ca al 
3: 

I 
tn 
tn 
0 

c: • 
... 

0 
-. u 
~ ·-

tn ... Cl) 
c. 

ca 
0 

..., 
...... 

:l 
,,, "' 

- c tn 
tn 

ca 
.~ c. 

::s 

b E 
m 

> tn ca 

w 
(I) a::: 

"C 

I 
(I) 

'Im-
ll. 

tn -- ca 
Cl) 

en 
c 
C> ·-"' ~ -ca 

3: 
(I) 

"C ·-"' 



1 ~· 

,._MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
Ill::'!-:!::::. M~nbtctN"NPbnni~ ~l?rf 

- '~ --4' ... _ 

North Mankato Infrastructure lmentory ® BOLTON 
'\.';;,) & MENK 

Hu'fembcr 201& 
._,.__,l~i.lll!~kil..r ......... 

Pedestrian Ramps 33% 

76% 

Self-Evaluation 
- North 
Mankato 

• November 2017 
July 2018 

• 1000 total pedestrian ramps 

• 334 (33%) are compliant 

• 666 (67%) are non-compliant 

• 65 total miles of sidewalk/trail 

• 370 accessibility barriers were identified 

• 49 miles of sidewalk/trail (76%) are compliant 

• 15 miles of sidewalk/trail (24%) are non-compliant 

• 14 total Bus Stops 

27% I • 4 are compliant (27%) 

• 11 are non-compliant (73%) 

Traffic Signal Push 
35% 

• 46 total Traffic Signal Push Button Locations 

• 30 are not Accessible Pedestrian Signals (APS)·(65%) 

• 465 crossings have marked crosswalks 

Crosswalks 99% • 99% of crossings are compliant 

• 1% of crossings are non-compliant 

- Figure 4-A.10 -



Self-Evaluation - Data Processing 
& QA/QC 

• Data Processing 
• Concurrent with field collections 
• Completed December 2018 

• QA/QC 
• Thorough evaluation of data 
• Agency input 
• Agency outreach 

®• 



ADA Transition Plan - Process 
Overview 

• Identify Title II ADA Coordinator 

• List of any Physical Barriers to 

Accessibility 

• Describe a Plan to Remove 

Barriers 

• Specify a Schedule for the Plan 

• Develop Grievance Procedure 

• Opportunity for Public Comment 

TRANSITION PLA N 

•Barriers 
•Modifications 

•Steps 
•Timetables 

~ 

@• 



ADA Transition Plan -
Implementation 

• After 10 years, 26% of accessibility features identified in this plan would be 
ADA compliant. Including the highest priority locations. 

• After 20 years, 52% of accessibility features identified in this plan would be 
ADA compliant. 

• After 30 years, 78% of accessibility features identified in this plan would be 
ADA compliant. 

• After 40 years, 100% of accessibility features identified in this plan would be 
ADA compliant. 

®• 



Public Involvement 
• Stakeholder Outreach: 

• Outreach to nearly 40 groups including: 

• Assisted Living Groups 

• Apartment Complexes 

• Senior Groups 

• Disability Groups 

J( E cu MEN' Pathstone 
~MRCI 

HARRY MEYERING 

-

United ~! 
Way ~:! 

Greater Mankato Area 
United Way 

INE 
FA ITH I N ACTION 

®• 



Public Involvement 
• Public Open Houses: 

• January 31, 2018 - Mankato Intergovernmental Center 

• March 6, 2019 - North Mankato Police Annex 

®• 



Public Involvement 

Ri:tumtom.linY..ipoAt)I. Tr.1remon Pl.an Ski~ 

'T.i_rz'AP~ INM -·~~ 

CITY OF NORTH M ANKATO ADA TRANSITION PLAN & INVENTORY 

• Online Presence: 

• Project Websites 

• Grievance Procedure 

• Agency Social Media 

Outlets 

3/19/2019 
Tricnr. you ro thase wno ottem1el1 ttle recenr pub Uc information mtertng for tile MAPO .ADA "Ti'ansition P!.an and 

Inventory Project partnm ate worlt.ing ta jfnalize p!ans (JQ:5€<J an cammenrs receiveo and wm be presenting plans ro 
ageMies for odoptian in rne coming montns. Plecse vis rt. again soon to see jfna! arc]! plans ana key dates for Jfna! 
odoptic.n 

PifGSe reach out to pro;ff! o:mtcru Gt ony ~ime if;-011 f'IGVequntioru 

ihe City cf North Mank:ato nas compleieci, a Self-~'.'aluauon of peoesrrian faciliuas wichin its junsd1aion ana an 

Amencans with Disabilities ACT: (ADA) Transi•ion ?Lan that Clocuments the fclloviing: 

t Self-EvaLuar1on Process 

l 1oent1fied Barriers to Acc.essiti iLity in Pec:lestrian Jnrrastructure 
3 Pun ;;u10 Scnedul!:! for Removal or Barriers from tne System 

Please go to the rou.owing llnk to see tne a raft. ADA Transition Pt.an fer North Mankato ana proviae your 

comments on rhe drart pt.an 1n me comment baX provided in tnis page 

THE CITY OF NORTH MANKATO WILL ADOPT PART 1 ALONG WITH PART 4 BELOW 
AS THE FULL ADA TRANSITION PLAN FOR THE CITY. 

em 1 .. omn ty. ro "°" m~ 
Th is 1s tl'\e. overarching 1-lAPO AOA Trans1tton Plan and lnvent01)' doc"Jmem: mat identities ~rocess requirements, 

methoooLcqy, arid public outreacn for au MAPO Partner Agencies 

Pm 4 - Ottfl!. N'OG!l f::UoW AD4 Ttin1itic!n 1!'!.M 
This is specific ro the City of NortTI r lank.am servmg in co110Jrrance with Paf14 as the off.till (Jty cf North 

Mankato ADA Transition Pt.an and 1nvenrory. 

OVERVIEW 
A.Spart or a Larger effort Led !Jythe MankamiNorth r1ariic.t0 Area Planning Orga..,ization (MAPO), the City or 

North I lanleaw ~s \'\'Or1dn4j to ensure peaesnian infrasuuu:ure t hro;ighoot the ( icy 1s compl tam w1m me 

Americans ..,..,th Oisat!ilities Aa (AD.\) Eacn 1unsoici:ion witnin MAPO is perfor.-ning a Self-C:vat<ation of tt.e 
policies, practices ana p~estrian inrrasmKwre: wim1n puetit rights-or-way w icen.tify ADA de~clencies mat 

pose oarriers ro safe and efficient a:::cess for au users Each jurisdiction \'\'ill also comple;:e an. ADA Transition 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Ym•r Name (required} 

Your Emai! {f@Q~ireo) 

Subject 

Your Message 

G 
a R-:!llirn iC' main µ.APO .\DA Tra:is1 t (]11. 

Pt.an Si!~ 

Amcricms with DisabiLities Art (ADA) anC! the Code 

DfFeder::il ReguLnions (CFR): !.:r.d~ ~ T1U~ II cf lhe 

ADA oo;. well ~s LS C!='.1: 35 105 ane 23 GR 35 150, 

2genc1es 2re req1Jlr2d :o peo:crm a ScLr - : v;;lu;rnon 

~r.c ::::mp:ec.:> a T.C!r.smar. Pl2fl !C :o>r.sure a l! users 

!".ave ;; q.:<r acce~s t~ pe~~r:2~ tacr~: 1 es, s<>rvic~~ 

ar.o p-09ra:n: 

Publ.ic input· Ac recu1ri?d t;y LE cc~ ~S . A1 \ "-·1t1e:s 
are.>· UH E'd tc :JY,C:e ,he ubl1c o ort.,nit w 

®• 



Next Steps 

• Final ADA Transition Plan Draft Delivered to MAPO 

TAC for April 1 Sth Meeting 

• MAPO Policy Board Approval - May 2, 2019 

• Dates set for Partner Agency Adoption by Resolution 

®• 



MAPO ADA TRANSITION PLAN AND INVENTORY 

PART 4 - CITY OF NORTH MANKATO ADA TRANSITION PLAN AND INVENTORY 



Table of Contents 
PART 4 - City of North Mankato ADA Transition Plan and Inventory ......................... ..................... i 

I. Introduction ......... ...... .................................... .... ................................................................. 1 

A. City of North Mankato ... ...................................... .. ....... ........... ........... ................... 1 

II. Public Outreach ............................................................... .................................................... 1 

Ill. Self-Evaluation Results ............... ........ .. .............. ... ............ ....... .. ............. ............................ 1 

A. Review of Programs .................................................................................. ...... ..... .. 1 

B. Review of Policies and Practices ....................... .................................. ............ ... .... 2 

IV. Implementation Plan ... .............. ................................. .. ...................................................... 4 

A. Priority Areas ................................................................. .................... ... ..... ...... ..... . 4 

B. External Agency Coordination ................. .............................................................. 4 

C. Schedule and Budget .............................. ........................... ... ................ ... .............. 4 

V. ADA Coordinator ....................................................... ...................... .. ...................... ............ 5 

VI. Grievance Procedure .... ..... ..................................................... ............................................ 5 

VII. Monitor the Progress ..................................................................................................... .. ... 5 

Appendix 
Appendix 4-A: Self-Evaluation - Program Review 

Appendix 4-B: Self-Evaluation - Policy and Practice Review 

Appendix 4-C: ADA Transition Plan Projects referenced from the City of North Mankato Capital 
Improvements Plan 

Appendix 4-D: Public Outreach Results 

Appendix 4-E: Greivance Procedure 

Appendix 4-F: Contact Information 

Appendix 4-G: ADA Design Standards and Procedures 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
City of North Mankato ADA Self-Evaluation & Transition Plan I T42.114754 

Table of Contents 



I. INTRODUCTION 

A. City of North Mankato 

The City of North Mankato is a partner agency of the Mankato/North Mankato Area 
Planning Organization (MAPO) and has completed a Self-Evaluation and developed 
an ADA Transition Plan as part of the overarching MAPO ADA Transition Plan effort. 
This "Part 4 - City of North Mankato ADA Transition Plan and Inventory" has been 
developed solely for the City of North Mankato and includes information, data, and 
recommendations relevant to the City's interests and those of the MAPO. The City of 
North Mankato adopts "Part 1 - MAPO Partner Agency Requirements and Project 
Purpose" of the MAPO ADA Transition Plan and Inventory overarching document 
and associated appendices concurrent with the adoption of "Part 4 - City of North 
Mankato ADA Transition Plan and Inventory." Part 1 accomplishes the following: 

• Provides requirements mandated by ADA law for all agencies 

• Introduces MAPO Partners 
• Outlines public participation initiatives 

• Provides the methodology used for agency Self-Evaluation 

• Provides the methodology used for prioritization strategies for 
implementation. 

II. PUBLIC OUTREACH 

The following summarizes public outreach for the City of North Mankato: 

• Grievance Procedure: In compliance with 28 C.F.R. Sec. 35.107, the City has established 
the grievance procedure to receive future comments and concerns regarding barriers to 
accessibility. This can be seen in Appendix 4-E and is further detailed in Section VII 
below. 

• Public Information Meetings: Project staff solicited feedback from the community on 
issues pertaining to ADA deficiencies within the community and initiatives for Transition 
Plan development while attending two public information meetings that took place on 
January 31, 2018 and March 6, 2019. See Appendix 1-A for summaries of those 
meetings. 

• City Website : This document was available for public comment online between the 
dates of February 6, 2019 to March 20, 2019. A summary of comments received and 
detailed information regarding the public outreach activities are located in Appendix 4-

D. 

Ill. SELF-EVALUATION RESULTS 

A. Review of Programs 

The review of programs for the City of North Mankato's Self-Evaluation began in 
September 2017 and was completed in June 2018. During that time project staff 
inventoried 65 miles of sidewalk/trail, 1000 locations where pedestrian ramps exist 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
City of North Mankato ADA Self-Evaluation & Transition Plan I T42 .114754 

Introduction 
Page 1 



or should exist, 465 crosswalks, 15 bus stops, and 46 traffic signal push button 
locations for barriers to accessibility. Table 4-1 summarizes the results of the Self
Evaluation infrastructure data collection completed within the City of North 
Mankato public rights-of-way. 

A full report of the results of the Self-Evaluation assessing infrastructure compliance 
can be seen in Appendix 4-A. 

Table 4-1. City of North Mankato Self-Evaluation Infrastructure 

Data Collection Results 

Infrastructure Type I % Compliant I Summary 

• 1000 total pedestrian ramps 

Pedestrian Ramps 33% • 334 (33%) are compliant 

• 666 (67%) are non-c::ompl iant 

• 65 total miles of sidewalk/trail 

Sidewalks 76% 
• 370 accessibility barriers were identified 

• 49 miles of sidewalk/trail (76%) are compliant 

• 15 miles of sidewalk/trail (24%) are non-compliant 

• 14 total Bus Stops 

Bus Stops 27% • 4 are compliant (27%) 

• 11 are non-compliant (73%) 

Traffic Signal Push 

Buttons with APS 
35% 

• 46 total Traffic Signal Push Button Locations 

• 30 are not Accessible Pedestrian Signals (APS) (65%) 

• 465 crossings have marked crosswalks 

Crosswalks 99% • 99% of crossings are compliant 

I • 1% of crossings are non-compl iant 

B. Review of Policies and Practices 

1. Previous Practices 

Since the adoption of the ADA, the City of North Mankato has striven to 
provide accessible pedestrian features as part of street construction and 
reconstruction projects. As additional information was made available as to 
the methods of providing accessible pedestrian features, the City updated their 
procedures to accommodate these methods. 

2. Policy 

The City of North Mankato's goal is to continue to provide accessible 
pedestrian design features as part of street construction and reconstruction 
projects. The City will reference ADA design standards and procedures listed in 
Appendix 4-G. These standards and procedures provide the preferred standard 
for ADA compliance in Minnesota and will serve as the primary guidance for all 
future projects. 

The City will consider and respond to all accessibility improvement requests. 
All accessibility improvements that have been deemed reasonable will be 
scheduled consistent with transportation priorities. The City will coordinate 
with external agencies to ensure that all new or altered pedestrian facilities 

Prepared by: Balton & Menk, Inc. Self-Evaluation Results 
City of North Mankato ADA Self-Evaluation & Transition Plan I T42.114754 Page 2 



within the City's jurisdiction are ADA compliant to the maximum extent 
feasible. Requests for accessibility improvements can be submitted to the City 
of North Mankato's ADA Coordinator. Contact information for ADA 
Coordinator is located in Appendix 4-F. 

Maintenance of pedestrian facilities within the public rights-of-way will 
continue to follow the policies set forth by the City . A review of relevant 
policies can be seen in Appendix 4-B which includes the following: 

• City of North Mankato Comprehensive Plan 

• City of North Mankato Complete Streets Plan & Policy 

• Pavement Management Plan 

• Safe Routes to School Plan 

• City of North Mankato Sidewalk Installation & Maintenance Policy 

• City of City of North Mankato City Code 

New Construction 

All new street construction projects with pedestrian accommodations will be 
designed and constructed to conform with the most current ADA guidance and 
design practices to the maximum extent feasible. 

Reconstruction Projects: 

All City street reconstruction projects with pedestrian accomodations will be 
designed and constructed in accordance with the most current ADA guidance 
and design practices to the maximum extent feasible. 

Rehabilitation/Resurfacing projects 

All City rehabilitation and resurfacing projects will include accessible 
pedestrian curb ramps as needed to provide access to existing pedestrian 
facilities (i.e. walks/trails) at locations where they do not currently exist. 
Improvements to existing pedestrian ramps will be addressed on a case by 
case basis. High priority areas such as those in close proximity to specific land 
uses (i.e. schools, government offices, and medical facilities) will be given 
additional consideration. Improvements will be undertaken at the discretion of 
the City Public Works Director. 

Stand Alone Projects. 

As grant funding opportunities are available, independent ADA projects may be 
undertaken by the City. A brief engineering study will be performed where 
candidate sites will be evaluated on facility condition, pedestrian volumes, 
public safety, public benefit and improvement costs as well as the ability to 
provide alternative barrier removal options. 

A full ADA compliance assessment of policies and practices is included in 
Appendix 4-B. 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
City of North Mankato ADA Self-Evaluation & Transition Plan I T42.114754 

Self-Evaluation Results 
Page 3 



IV. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

A. Priority Areas 

The City of North Mankato identified specific locations as priority areas for planned 
accessibility improvement projects based on criteria identified in Part 1-Section IV. 
These areas have been selected due to their proximity to specific land uses 
consistent with higher levels of pedestrian traffic, from the receipt of public 
comments, as well as areas exhibiting high levels of non-compliance. The priority 
areas as identified in the 2017-2018 Self-Evaluation will be programmed into North 
Mankato's CIP as project needs arise and/or public preference dictates. 

Additional priority will be given to any location where an improvement project or 
alteration was constructed after January 26, 1991, and accessibility features were 
omitted. 

B. External Agency Coordination 

Many other agencies are responsible for pedestrian facilities within the jurisdiction 
of the City of North Mankato. The City will coordinate with those agencies to track 
and assist in the facilitation of the elimination of accessibility barriers along their 
routes. 

C. Schedule and Budget 

The City of North Mankato will utilize two methods for upgrading pedestrian 
facilities to the current ADA standards. The first and most comprehensive of the two 
methods are the scheduled street and utility improvement projects. All pedestrian 
facilities impacted by these projects will be upgraded to current ADA accessibility 
standards. The second method is the stand alone sidewalk and ADA accessibility 
improvement project. These projects will be incorporated into the Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) on a case by case basis as determined by the City of 
North Mankato staff. The City CIP, which includes a detailed schedule and budget for 
specific improvements, is included in Appendix 4-C. 

The City anticipates allocating approximately $120,000 per year toward ADA 
improvements identified in Appendix 4-A. Improvements have been identified as 
short-term improvements (2019-2028), mid-term improvements {2029-2038), and 
long-term improvements {2039 and later) for implementation based on the 
previously described prioritization process and annual budget constraints. The City 
anticipates the following implementation benchmarks: 

• After 10 years, 26% of accessibility features identified in this plan would be 
ADA compliant. Including the highest priority locations. 

• After 20 years, 52% of accessibility features identified in this plan would be 
ADA compliant. 

• After 30 years, 78% of accessibility features identified in this plan would be 
ADA compliant. 

• After 40 years, 100% of accessibility features identified in this plan would be 
ADA compliant. 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
City of North Mankato ADA Self-Evaluation & Transition Plan I T42.114754 

Implementation Plan 
Page 4 



Improvements will be coordinated with the City's annual budget and 5-year Capital 
Improvements Plan, and its long-term maintenance effort. 

V. ADA COORDINATOR 

In accordance with 28 C.F.R Sec. 35.107(a), the City of North Mankato has identified an 
ADA Title II Coordinator to oversee the City's policies and procedures. Contact 
information for this individual is located in Appendix 4-F. 

VI. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Under the Americans with Disabilities Act, each agency is required to publish its 
responsibilities in regards to the ADA. If users of The City of North Mankato facilities and 
services believe the City has not provided reasonable accommodation, they have the right 
to file a grievance. 

In accordance with 28 C.F.R. Sec. 35.107(b), the City has developed a grievance procedure 
for the purpose of the prompt and equitable resolution of citizens' complaints, concerns, 
comments, and other grievances. This draft of the pubic notice and the City of North 
Mankato's grievance procedure is outlined in Appendix 4-E. 

VII. MONITOR THE PROGRESS 

This document will be updated as needed to reflect the City of North Mankato's approach 
to complying with ADA and providing accessible pedestrian infrastructure. The appendices 
in this document will be updated periodically to account for improvements, while the 
main body of the document will be updated within ten years with a future update 
schedule to be developed at that time. With each main body update, a public comment 
period will be established to continue the public outreach. 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

City of North Mankato ADA Self-Evaluation & Transition Plan I T42.114754 
ADA Coordinator 

Page 5 



Appendix 4-A: Self-Evaluation - Program 

Review 



I. Appendix 4-A: City of North Mankato, MN Self-Evaluation - Program Review 

A. Review of Programs 

The City of North Mankato inventoried pedestrian ramps and sidewalks within the public rights-of

way beginning in November of 2017 and ending in July 2018. The following provides the results of 

that inventory: 

1. Pedestrian Ramps 

The City of North Mankato has 1000 locations where pedestrian ramps exist or should exist 

within its public rights-of-way. These locations were inventoried for ADA compliance based 

on (1) whether a pedestrian ramp was present and (2) if compliance criteria outlined in Part 1 

Sec. Ill were met. 333 (33%) of the locations were reported to be compliant and 667 (67%) 

were reported to be non-compliant. 

2. Sidewalks/Trails 

The sidewalks and trails within the City of North Mankato public rights-of-way were 

inventoried and evaluated to determine existing compliance with ADA and to identify existing 

obstructions based on compliance criteria outlined in Part 1. Of the 65 miles of sidewalk 

evaluated, 15 miles had a condition rating of three or four meaning they exhibited instances 

of non-compliance along their length and require further evaluation and remedial action. 366 

accessibility barriers, or obstructions, were also present along sidewalks and trails. 

3. Crosswalks 

Crosswalks were inventoried and evaluated for the quality of markings. Nine crosswalks were 
identified as non-compliant due to markings that were faded or partially removed. 

4. Traffic Signals 

46 traffic signals were evaluated for the presence of Accessible Pedestrian Signal (APS) technology. 
Each pedestrian crossing push button location was inventoried as a separate location and identified as 
non-compliant if APS technology was not present. Of 30 locations were without APS technology. 

5. Bus Stops 

Bus stops were evaluated for connection to PAR and sufficient landing and loading areas. If a stop is 
not able to be accessed by an accessible pedestrian access route, or if a grass boulevard or similar 
facility poses a barrier for those with disabilities to access transportation, the stop was identified as 
non-compliant. 11 were identified as non-compliant. 

Compliant and non-compliant pedestrian infrastructure is illustrated in Figures 4-A.1 through 4-

A.10. The timeline for replacement of these sidewalks will depend on priority ranking, correlation 

to planned projects, reasonable accommodation requests, and available funding. A detailed list of 

these instances may be obtained upon request to the City of North Mankato ADA Coordinator 

(Appendix 4-F). 

Appendix 4-A I Page 1 



-. MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
::.~·:~~::~:~:~!:!:~ Mankato Area Planning Organization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory @ l~~2~ 
November 2018 

Real People. Real Solutions. 

4-A.2 
T"".~::-..-':'W.&.'"i'- ·-·-·-·-•-:.=-:• .:....~L-t.:.cf~~:,, 

. I 
! i 
I • 
i ! 

r·-·-·,1.~:-·-·-·-·- ·' 
. I.~ . .,. 
I I "'...,,. i j "<...'), 

! i. ~,, 

i :...·-·-·-l '\\ JI 
j -·~·- · 

CSAH 6 .~-·-·-·- j TIMM RD r-·-·-·-·-· 
i 
l ... . ,., 

;-·-·-·-·-/ CARLSON DR 

4-A.3 r ·-·-·- .... l "' 4-A.4 
i ! i ~ 

r~--i i i <t: 
i --·-·--·, : ~ 
L. i ! 

8 ~-·' J· ........... 
·vii• .. r--. .............. !\ 

HOWARD DR 

a: 
0 

' •>-
;~ 
'a: 
'O 
~....I 

.. '.:...-:~-J '"1 ·-... I i 

i------,,-l'~.91/ PLEAs,o,Nr' ...... -·-·~ b ·-.. us 14 
, _. .... ../ v1~j1; ..... , 0!J-J 

~ 
I 
<!'. 
Cf) 

u 

'! ~"\ f COMMERCE DR 
I ,.. I;<..-<-
~ ~o~ o~ 

. ~\:>~ 
I ~ 
i 

4-A:7·-·-·
i 
j 

4-A.8 

' ~ 
m 

4-A.6 

WEBSTER AVE 

1-
(f) 

a: 
w 
1-z 
w 
u 

1-
(f) 

w 
C) 
z 
~ 

4-A.10 

i 
i·-·-· 

LEE BILVD ~ 4-A.9 I~ 

MARIE LN 
~u BELGRADE AVE 

I 
'- Ii\ ..... ·-. ., ~ I 

i 
-·-·--··~ -~ 

a: '-oo\ZO~~~:.-.- ·- ·-~~.l~~169 

Legend 

Pad1111la1"1 R11mp 

• Nol Comi>!ianl 

• CompUanl 

Sldew.1111>. 

~Not Compliant 

0 Nan.Comp6on1 Signor 

[!) Nan-Complianl Crosswalk 

SldeWillk Burier 

Priority 1 Area 

~ Complian l Priority 2 Area 

l:J Non-Compliant Bus Stop (~ City Limits 

0 025 
Miles Figure 4-A.1 

Source:Nico/lel County 

\ .-·-! ,../--
l .... - ·-· -:...·-" '- ·- ·· 

,,,,,·""" 
.-~ ·" _,,.,,,,. 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
I 
i 
i 
i 
; 
i 
i 

i 
./ 

/ 



-.. MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
llL:.i:l ,, ••• 1-.1~ : .. tU• Ull M k t A . 0 
- .... ~ ... ··'""'" "' an a o rea Planning rganization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory @ 1~~2~ 
November 2018 

- Figure 4-A.2 -

Real People. Real Solutions. 

500 ---==:::::iFeet 
Sourr;e:Nicol/et County 



-,. MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
liL::a ~- 11 ~1 .;;11 ;, 1 • "~~rlll 
- '""'""' '·""""' Mankato Area Planning Organization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory @ 2:~~2~ 
November 2018 

- Figure 4-A.3 -

Real People. Real Solutions 

500 •••==::iFeet 
Source:Nicol/et County 



-,.. MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
~ llUUl"./11;~ 1 ~ M.UUf.l M k 
- """""'"'""'" an ato Area Planning Organization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory <!JS) 2~~~~ 
November 2018 

- Figure 4-A.4 -

Real People. Real Solutions. 

0 500 •••==:::iFeet 
Sourr;e:Nicollet County 



~ MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
Iii ::.:'.~: ;':.:;.:: ,'.:.::;,'.; Mankato Area Planning Organization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory (ff) 2:~~~~ 
November 2018 

- Figure 4-A5 -

Real People. Real Solutions. 

0 500 •••==:::iFeet 
Source:Nicollet County 



-. MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
~ ... U•Uiill ~i'I MHIJll M k 
- "'"'"" "-"'"'"" an ato Area Planning Organization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory (ff) 2~~2~ 
November 2018 

- Figure 4-A.6 -

Real People. Real Solutions, 

500 
•••c:C:=iFeet 
Source.Nico/let County 



....._ MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
~'<Ul\ l·:• ll'' l ·HMJJP M k 
- "" ., ''"' '·'"'"'" an ato Area Planning Organization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory (ff;) 1~~2~ 
November 2018 

- Figure 4-A. 7 -

Real People, Real Solutions. 

0 500 ---===::::J Feel 
Source:Nicollet County 



-... MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
Iii ::.~ ·.'. :;~·.','. '. :~:,::;;; Mankato Area Planning Organization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory (ff) 2~~2~ 
November 2018 

- Figure 4-A.8 -

Real Peo ple. Real Solutions. 

500 •••==:i Feel 
Soun:;e:Nicollet County 



..... MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
Iii ::.'.'.~:; ;;·;::,;:;:;·:~ Mankato Area Planning Organization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory @ 2_~~2~ 
November 2018 

- Figure 4-A.9 -

Real People. Real Solutions 

~-··-·-·- ,.-·-·-·-·- - -- ---=-- ·- ··-·~-

500 ••-===::!Feel 
Source:Nicollet County 



.._. MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
~· ~~O.\l!: ,.~ :~l~ HHPJf) M k 
- """'·'"""""'"" an ato Area Planning Organization 

North Mankato Infrastructure Inventory @ 1~~2~ 
November 2018 

0 
~--:GAR~IELD AVE..__..,. 

- Figure 4-A.10 -

Real Peo ple. Real Solutions. 

500 ---==JFeel 
Source:Nicol/el County 



Table 4-A.Z. City of North Mankato Program Review - Jmplementat1on Plan 

Length (ltl Non-
#Non-Compliant #Non-Compliant # Non-Compliant 

Length (ltl 
Tied to Planned Planned Project 

lacation Land Use Compliant Sidewalk/Trail Priority Level Term 

Sidewalk 
Pedestrian Ramps Bus Stops Traffic Signals• 

Barriers 
Project IV /N) Year 

COMMERCE DR Housin&: Comp le)(es; Apartments; Shoppine 3269 5 0 0 15 1 y 2019 (P) Short-Term 
HOWARODR Church; Housing Comple)(es; Schools.Government Facilities; Parks; S479 29 0 0 15 1 y 2020 (P} Short-Term 
GARFIELD AVE Schoo ls 0 0 0 0 45 1 y 2021 (P} Short-Term 
MONROE AVE Church; Schools; 0 3 0 0 60 1 v 2021 (P} Short-Term 

RANGE ST Church ; Housing Complexes; Schools; Shopping 583 14 2 0 175 1 v 2021 (Pl Short-Term 

CENTER ST Schools; Shopping_ 1298 7 1 0 145 1 v 2021 (PJ Short-Term 

••.......-.IP) Shoit•Tenn •nn•·2C21)Totlls 10629 58 3 0 455 IJ'IShort-T""" 
Loolcout Dr Housing Comple)(es;,Schools,Shopping ll.16 19 0 8 10 1 N N/A Short-Term 

!MRIE LN Ch\l fc.h; Hou~na. COmpre:ice:r: PlrkS; Schools; Shoppl nt: 3569 2ll 0 0 0 1 N N/A Shart-Tffln 
PARK AVE Schools 692 8 0 0 3S 1 N N/A Short-Term 

LVNDAI.! ST Parks; Schools 0 0 0 0 330 1 N NIA Short-Term 

STEWART ST Schools 0 1 0 0 20 1 N N/ A Short-Term 

HARRISON AVE Schools 0 6 0 0 130 1 N N/ A Short-Term 

PAGE AVE Housing Comple)(es; Schools 0 0 0 0 2SO 1 N N/ A Short-Term 

KING JUllliUR PARK Pilrks 123 0 0 0 0 1 N NJA Short-Term 

CLEVELAND AVE Schools 0 1 0 0 10 1 N N/A Short-Term 

CARLSON DR Housing Complexes; Parks; Schools 1377 7 0 0 10 1 N N/A Short-Term 

REGENCY CT Housing Comple)(es; Schoeb 623 0 0 0 0 1 N N/A Short-Term 

LAKE ST Pms•SChooll 611 6 0 0 I 7S l N N/A Short-Term 

RESERVE PARK Parlcs 0 2 0 0 0 l N N/A Short-Term 

GRANT AVE Church; Schools; 603 1 0 0 70 l N N/A Short-Term 

MCKINLEY AVE SChools a 5 0 0 75 1 N N/ A Short-Term 

MARQUETTE AVE Parks; Schools; 485 3 0 0 30 1 N N/ A Short-Term 

SNOWaJRD LN Parks 0 3 0 0 s 1 N N/A Short-Term 

BALSAM DR & LEONA DR Parks 0 4 0 0 0 1 N NJA Short-Term 

LEXINGTON LN Parks 0 3 0 0 0 1 N N/A Short-Term 

RA'IMOND DR Parks 0 3 0 0 0 1 N N/A Short-Term 

FAIRBANKS LN & TIMM RO Parks 0 4 0 0 0 1 N N/A Short-Term 

PARKSIDE LN Hous ing Comc fexes; Parks 0 3 0 0 0 1 N N/ A Short-Term 

HOOVER DR Housing Complexes; Schools; 2620 8 0 0 0 1 N N/A Short-Term 

NORTHWAY DR Housing Complexes; Schoo ls 1506 4 0 0 0 1 N N]A Short-Term 

TYLER AVE Parks; Sr;hools; 0 lS 0 0 70 1 N N/A Short-Term 

NiCOlUT AVE Church; Government Facilities; Housine Comple)(es; Schools; Shopping 3902 45 2 0 110 1 N N/A Short-Term 

GARFIELD AVE Housing Comple)(es; Schools.Parks; Schools; 0 21 0 0 125 1 N N/A Short-Term 

Shon'Tenn 12019il0281 Totals 17327 192 2 I 1355 Short-Term 

LOR RAV DR Church; Health Clinics; Hospitals; Housing Comple)(es; Schools; Shopping; 2S3S 47 0 u 10 1 N N/A Mid-Term 

TOWER BLVD Church; Housing Comple)(es; Schools 1945 8 1 0 0 1 N N/A Mid-Term 

WHEELER AVE Housing Complexes; Schoo ls; 0 16 0 0 150 1 N N/ A Mid-Term 

BENSON TRAIL Healttl Clinics; Hospita ls; Housin2 Complt!xes;,Church..Parks; Schools 0 19 0 0 5 1 N N/A Mid-Term 

WALL ST Housing Comple)(es; Schools; Shopping; 0 17 0 0 245 1 N N/ A Mid-Term 

~AMES DR Health Cl inics; Hospitals; Housing Comple)(es; Schools 6080 19 1 0 0 1 N N/ A Mid-Term 

BELGRADE AVE Church; Government Facilities; Housing Complexes: Schools; Shopping 1528 30 2 0 SS 1 N N/A Mid-Term 

COMMEllClLN Housing Complexes;,Schools S87 3 0 0 0 1 N N/A Mid-Term 

LOOKOUT DR Health Clinics; Hospitals; Housing Complexes; Schools; Shopping SS98 0 0 0 0 1 N N/A Mid-Term 

OIOSS ST OM <h; Schools; Shoooln• J34.s 17 0 0 95 1 N N/A Mid-Term 

lOR RAVTF!All Chun:h.Ho.,.lna ""'1pjc>es; School'-i>Ybllc Ho11>l• und H01J1clou Sl>chcrs no 19 0 0 0 1 N N/A M id-Term 

Mid-Tenn 'n'~'2D381Totllt 20588 195 4 2l 560 Mld-Term 

SOUTJ-1 AVE Government Faci\ities,Government Facilities; Housing Comple)(es; Pat1u 2763 1B 0 0 so 1 N N/ A long-Term 

SHERMAN ST Church ; Parks; Schools.Oiurc:h; Schools,Housine Complexes;,Schools 937 19 0 0 110 1 N N/ A lon&:-Tesm 

LEE BLVD Church; Housing Complexes; Parks; Public Schools 59S8 16 1 0 0 1 N N/A Long-Term 

PLEASANT VIEW DR Hea ltti Clinics; Hospitals; Housing Comple)(es; Parks 24S6 20 0 0 0 1 N N/ A Lone-Term 

PIERCE AVE Shopping 0 0 0 0 2S 2 N N/A Lon.i;r;-Term 

WEllSTERAVE Shopping 621 2 0 0 15 2 N N/A Lone:-Term 

t-tAUGHTON AVE Housing Comple)(es; 809 15 0 0 15 2 N N/A Long-Term 

GRAYSTONE LN Hous ing Comple)(es; 334 0 0 0 0 2 N N/ A Long-Term 



Table 4-A.2. City of North Mankato Program Review - Implementation Plan 

Length (ft) Non-
It Non-Compliant t Non-Compliant #Non-Compliant 

Length (ft) 
Tied to Plilnned Planned Project 

Location Land Use Compliant Sidewalk/Trail Priority Level Term 

Sidewalk 
Pedestrian Ramps Bus Stops Traffic Signals• 

Barriers 
Project IV /N) Year 

LA MAR DR Housing Complexes; 633 4 0 0 20 2 N N/A Lone:-Term 
PLEASANT VIEW CT Housing Complexes; 0 1 0 0 0 2 N N/A Long-Term 
EDGEWOOD BLVD & lOGEWOOD CT tiousing Complexes; 0 2 0 0 0 2 N N/A Long-Term 
EDGEWOOD 8'.VD & MEADOW8ROOK CT Housing Complexes; 0 2 0 0 0 2 N N/A lon£·Term 
WHITEOAK DR Housing Complexes; 0 2 0 0 0 2 N N}A Long-Term 
NOffiNGttAM DR Mousing Comolexes; 3266 4 0 0 0 2 N N/A Long-Term 
ROE CREST DR Other (Low Priority Use) 556 0 0 0 0 2 N N/A Long-Term 
FAIRBANKS DR & TIMM RD Schools 0 3 0 0 0 3 N N/A Mid-Term 
FOR£STHEIGITTS DR Sdiools 0 1 0 0 15 3 N N/A Long-Term 
AAUNGTON LN & T<MM RD Schools 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 
~ELLY CT Schools 0 1 0 0 0 3 N NIA Long-Term 
SIMON CT & ST JOHN CT Schools 0 2 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

ARLINGTONCT&Al\UNGTON LN ,Schools 0 2 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

~T JOHN CT Schools 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lone:-Term 
COUNTRYSIDE DR Schools 427 4 0 0 0 3 N N/ A Lo"'!-Tt!rm 
GREEN ACRES DR Schools 698 6 0 0 15 3 N NIA Long-Term 

EAGLE RIOGHN Schools 229 4 0 0 0 3 N NIA Lone-Term 
CORNEIJA ST l~OOIJ 6~6 2 D D s 3 N N/A laf"ll.·Tcrm 
IUNE"AU CT & TIMM RO Schools 0 2 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lori•·Tcrm 
CAllO( CT & Wff OR & LOOKOUTTRAIL !Schools 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

EAGLE RIDGE OR Schools 2406 4 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lo"&-Term 
IWLN Other (low Priority Use) 0 0 0 0 15 3 N N/A Long-Term 

NEWCASTLE OR Other (Low Priority Use) 250 0 0 0 0 3 N NIA Long-Term 

ROBERTA DR Othtr llow Priorlty U>e) 585 4 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lone:-Term 

SLAKE ST Other (Low Priority Use) 635 0 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

OTrER CT Other (Low Priority Use) 512 0 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

COVENTRY CT Oth•r (LoW P~orltv UR) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lone-Term 

COVENTRY LN Other (Low Priority Use) 754 9 0 0 20 3 N N/A Lone:-Term 

CHRISTENSEN ST Other (Low Priority Use) 0 2 0 0 30 3 N N/A Lontt-Term 

Co Rd 41 Other (Low Priority Use} 957 0 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

CASTLE OR Other (Low Priority Use} 250 6 0 0 0 3 N NIA Long-Term 

QUAIL ROOST DR Other llow Morltv U1e) 245 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A \.ont;•Tcrm 

NEWCAfTLECT Other [tow Priority Usol 491 0 0 D D 3 N N/A LMl•·Tl!rm 
WILLOWLN Othor ILOW Prloti\Y u .. 1 283 3 0 0 0 3 N NIA Long-Term 

ABBYWOOD LN bther (Low Priority Use) 1672 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

CAMDEN er Other (Low Priority Use) 198 l 0 0 0 3 N NIA lone.-Term 

ROLLING GREEN LN & TIMM RD Pther (Low Priority Use} 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

NORTH RIDGE OR Other (Low Priority Use) 566 2 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

VAi.LEY VIEW OR Other (low Priority Use) 727 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A lon.e.-Term 
SHERIDAN CT Other (Low Priority Use) 0 2 0 0 0 3 N NIA long-Term 

LEONA-DR & RAYMOND OR Other (low Priority Use) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

BIAO: ~AWK OR Other (Low Priority Use) 318 4 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lone:-Term 

SARAH CIR & SARAH ST & SIMON CT Other (Low Priority Use) 0 3 0 0 0 3 N N/A long-Term 

FAIRBANKS DR & FAIRBANKS LN Other I Low Prioritv Use) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

TIMMRD Olher (LOW' Prlonty LKt:J 0 2 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

CAJU>INA.l CT Otlicr (Low Priority Use) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/ A Lone:-Term 

VALDEZ LN Other (Low Priority U.sel 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lone:-Term 

SHANNON CT Other (Lew Prlcrity llsel 0 l 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lon~-Term 

RAYMOND CT Other (Low Priority U5e) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

FAIA"BANKS DR & KODIAK DR Other (low Priority Use) 0 3 0 0 0 3 N N/A long-Term 

FAIRBANKS DR Other (Low Priority Use) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

RAMP US 14 Other (Low Priority Use) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N NIA Long-Term 

UNEAU CT Other (~ow Priority Use) 0 2 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

AAYMONO GT & RAYMOND DR Other (Low Priority Use} 0 2 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

EDGEWOOD BLVD Other (Low Priority Use} 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lonl!'-Term 



Table 4-A.2. City of North Mankato Program Review - Implementation Plan 

Length (It) Non-
tt Non-Compliant #Non-Compliant # Non-Compliant 

Length 1111 
Tled to Planned Planned Project 

lacation Land Use Compliant Sidewalk/Trail Priority Level Term 

Side~alk 
Pedestrian Ramps Bus Stops Traffic Signals• 

Barriers 
Project (Y /NI Year 

LEXINGTON LN & SHERIDAN GT Other (Low Priority Use) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lon.g-Term 

BALSAM DR & RAYMOND DR Other (Low Priority Use) D 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

KODIAK DR & VALDEZ LN Other (Low Priority Use) 0 2 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

RINGHOFER DR Other (Low Priority Use) 0 2 0 0 0 3 N N/A lonl!-Term 

LA MAR CT Other (Low Priority Use) 0 1 0 D 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

CSAH 13 & RINGHOFER DR O\her ll ow Ptlorl"' Use:) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N NI A Lone.-Term 

fAl~!IAN'5 DR & ROLLING GREEN LN Other (Low Priority Use) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Loni!· Term 

SUNDANCE LN Other (Low Priority Use) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

ftEDTAIL LN Other (Low Priority Use) 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

ROLLING GREEN LN Other (Low Priority Use) 0 s 0 0 0 3 N NIA Long-Term 

SIMON CT Other (Low Priority Use} 0 1 0 0 0 3 N N/A Lona:-Term 

l'towardOrW Other (Low Priority Use) 0 0 1 0 0 3 N N/A long-Term 

ASPEN lN Other (Low Priority Use) 2093 7 0 0 0 3 N N/A Long-Term 

RAMP US 14 Other (Low Priority Use) 0 0 0 1 0 3 N N/ A Lone:-Term 

LDnc'T""" (JOU •"4 W..J TDtllb 33291- 222 z 1 335 lftft•-:re:m 
____ ,_ - lili"I .lt .llD :JJll5 

l~IP' 
. . ' . . .... .. ·- ·--

••Programmed (P) Short-Term projects are those projects programmed into the City of Mankato Community Investment Plan for the nC?J(t five years that include improvements to pedestrian infrastructure, 



Appendix 4-B: Self-Evaluation - Policy and 

Practice Review 



I. Appendix 4-B: City of North Mankato, MN Self-Evaluation - Policy and Practice Review 

A. Review of Policies and Practices 

The City's policies and practices include any City, department, or division policies and practices that 

direct staff in its daily work activities. Revisions to plans and policies identified in this section will be 

considered for inclusion into those documents during their regular, scheduled updates. Policies and 

practices that relate to accessibility and ADA conformance include: 

1. The City of North Mankato Comprehensive Plan (2015) : 

a) Chapter 6 - Transportation 

This chapter provides initiatives pertaining to the placement and size of sidewalks in the 

community. Sidewalks and/or trails are recommended to be adjacent to all Minor Arterial, 

Major Collector and Minor Collector roadways within the City. 8-foot wide bituminous or 

concrete trails or 6-foot wide bituminous or concrete sidewalk is recommended on either side of 

Minor Arterials and Major Collectors while 5-foot wide sidewalks are recommended on Minor 

Collectors. These recommendations are above the 4-foot minimum for sidewalk width required 

for ADA compliance. 

b) Chapter 8 - Parks, Trails, and Recreation 

Through this effort, the community expressed that safer and easier trail connections are 

desired. The chapter also suggests that each trail classification provides a certain type of 

recreational experience and value to pedestrians, bicyclists, in-line skaters, and wheelchair 

users. 

Policy 1.1.1 is to ensure the quality standard for trails within the system is consistent with 

industry standards for safety, durability, and access. 

Pol icy Understanding: 

The following revisions to this Plan are recommended for inclusion during regular, scheduled 

plan/policy updates: 

1. Amend the Plan to include policies for the compliant design of pedestrian facilities based on 

best practices outlined in the Public Rights-of-Way Accessibility Guidelines (PROWAG) as 

adopted by MnDOT. 

2. The City of North Mankato Complete Streets Plan & Policy (2016): 

This Plan and Policy identifies Complete Streets as a transportation policy and design approach that 

guides streets to be planned, designed, operated, and maintained to enable safe, convenient, and 

comfortable travel and access for users of all ages and abilities regardless of their mode of 

transportation. 

Appendix 4-B I Page 1 



The following policy language is included under design standards and maintenance according to the 

North Mankato Complete Streets Plan and Policy: 

• The City Council or their designee will consider bicycle and pedestrian design in all streets 

construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation and pavement maintenance projects conducted by 

or behalf of the City, as appropriate, subject to the exceptions contained herein. 

• The City shall plan, design, build and maintain all bicycle and pedestrian facilities in 

accordance with acceptable federal, state and local standards and guidelines, but will consider 

innovative and/or non-traditional design options as appropriate. 

This Plan and Policy also provides facility design guidelines (specifically calling for 5-foot wide 

sidewalks in general and 8-foot sidewalks where buildings abut the walk) as well as crosswalk marking 

specifications. 

Policy Understanding and Recommended Revision: 

By adopting this policy, the City is stating that it will design facilities according to federal, state, and 

local standards and guidelines that will accommodate all users regardless of transportation mode. 

No barriers to accessibility were identified in this plan/policy. 

3. Pavement Management Plan {2014) : 

The goal of this report is to assist the City with understanding its current system condition, assist with 

management of these assets and provide recommendations for pavement management in the next 5 

to 10 years. 

This plan assigns condition ratings to streets to plan for improvements including seal coating, mill & 

overlay, and full depth reconstruction. The City has 64 miles of paved roads to manage. Several streets 

are identified for reconstruction and mill & overlay within the next five years. These projects should 

include ADA improvements where necessary as construction ensues. 

Policy Understanding and Recommended Revision: 

The following revisions to this Plan are recommended for inclusion during regular, scheduled 

plan/policy updates: 

1. Amend the Plan to include language considering adherence to ADA standards and guidance as 

outlined in the PROWAG and Mn DOT for reconstruction. 

4. City of North Mankato Safe Routes to School Plan {2015): 

This plan illustrates planned facility improvements surrounding North Mankato Schools including 

Hoover Elementary School, Monroe Elementary School, Bridges (formerly Garfield) Elementary School, 

and the Dakota Meadows Middle School. Improvements include new sidewalk and trail facilities, 

sidewalk curb extensions (bum pouts), and improvements to crosswalk visibility to facilitate safer 

pedestrian/bicycle travel to area schools. 

Policy Understanding and Recommended Revision: 

Appendix 4-8 I Page 2 



This plan outlines an ADA/Universal Design approach for facilities in the public rights-of-way to 

provide an environment that is equally accessible and comfortable for all users. 

No barriers to accessibility were identified in this plan/policy. 

5. City of North Mankato Sidewalk Installation & Maintenance Policy {2016) 

The Sidewalk Installation & Maintenance Policy addresses installation, replacement, and maintenance 

for public sidewalks in the City, citing City Code that outlines City and property owner responsibilities 

regarding snow removal and physical condition of sidewalk. It provides a consistent inspection process 

for determining whether a particular sidewalk is in need of improvement and action to be taken if 

facilities are found to be non-compliant. 

Policy Understanding and Recommended Revision: 

While this policy provides a method for inspecting sidewalks that addresses several ADA compliance 

barriers, it makes no effort to discuss adherence to ADA compliance or reference to federal/state ADA 

design standards or guidelines. The policy also fails to include guidance for pedestrian ramps as part of 

sidewalk infrastructure. 

The following revisions to this policy are recommended for inclusion during regular, scheduled policy 

updates: 

1. Amend the Sidewalk Installation and Maintenance Policy to include adherence to ADA 

standards and guidance as outlined in the PROWAG and Mn DOT for reconstruction. 

2. Amend the Policy to include ADA design standards and guidance for pedestrian ramp 

construction. 

6. The City of North Mankato City Code: 

The City of North Mankato City Code provides several provisions dealing with sidewalk infrastructure 

including maintenance, responsibility of owner and occupant, failure to maintain, and specifications 

for the placement and construction of sidewalk. 

Policy Understanding and Recommended Revision: 

While the City Code provides actions for sidewalk installation and maintenance, it makes no effort to 

discuss adherence to ADA compliance or reference to federal/state ADA design standards or 

guidelines. 

The following revisions to this policy are recommended for inclusion during regular, scheduled policy 

updates: 

1. Amend City Code provisions 90.026, 90.125, 90.126, and 155.46 to include adherence to ADA 

standards and guidance as outlined in the PROWAG and Mn DOT for reconstruction. 

Appendix 4-B I Page 3 



Appendix 4-C: ADA Transition Plan Projects 

referenced from the City of North Mankato 

Capital Improvements Plan 



I. Appendix 4-C: City of North Mankato Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Projects and 

Planned Roadway Projects That Include (Consider) Accessible Pedestrian Infrastructure 

The City of North Mankato's most recent CIP includes no programmed roadway improvement projects. 

However, there are roadway projects planned for the coming years that have received federal funding 

assistance. These projects will include improvements to ADA facilities. The projects are as follows: 

Project Location Proposed Improvements Year 

Commerce Drive Street resurfacing project with sidewalk and trail 2019-2020 

- Lookout Drive enhancements including completing an incomplete 

to Lor Ray Drive sidewalk segment on the north side and adding a 

multi-use path on the south. 

Howard Drive - Safe Routes to School project around Dakota 2020 

Lookout Drive to Meadows school in North Mankato, improve various 

Lor Ray Drive crossings and construct trails . 

Monroe Avenue, Construct ped/bike trail, ADA, curb extensions, striping 2021 

Garfield Avenue, and create pick up/drop off area. 

Center Street, 

Range Street -

Surrounding 

Monroe and 

Bridges 

Elementary 

Schools 

The City will continue to implement infrastructure and maintenance improvements as part of its long

range capital improvement planning and pavement management plan. With these efforts, the City will 

incorporate ADA-compliant pedestrian facilities and complete accessible infrastructure improvements as 

needed to ensure access for all users. 

Appendix 2-C I Page 1 



Appendix 4-D: Public Outreach Results 



I. Appendix 4-D: Public Outreach Results 

Input from the community has been gathered and used to help define priority areas for improvements 

within the public rights-of-way in North Mankato. 

Public outreach for the creation of this document consisted of the following activities: 

• Public Open Houses: 

MAPO agencies held two public open houses to gather input on the state of pedestrian infrastructure 

in each jurisdiction and priority preferences for projects moving forward. Open house summaries are 

in Part 1-Appendix 1-A.1 and 1-A.2. The second open house was held at the North Mankato Police 

Annex on March 6, 2019. 

• Project Website: 

The project website was live for the duration of the project and provided notifications, contact 

information, project updates and information, and an interactive grievance procedure in which 

participants can report on areas in the community that are not accessible. This document was also 

available for public comment on the website between the dates of February 6, 2019 to March 20, 

2019. 

Appendix 4-0 I Page 1 



Appendix 4-E: Greivance Procedure 



I. Appendix 4-E: City of North Mankato ADA Grievance Procedure 

In accordance with 28 CFR 35.107(b), the City has developed the following ADA grievance procedure for 

the purpose of the prompt and equitable resolution of citizens' complaints, concerns, comments, and 

other grievances. 

The City understands that members of the public may desire to contact staff to discuss ADA issues 

without filing a formal grievance. Members of the public wishing to contact the ADA Coordinator should 

reference the contact information in Appendix 4-F . Contacting staff to informally discuss ADA issues is 

welcome and does not limit a person's ability or right to file a formal grievance later. 

Those wishing to file a formal written grievance with the City of North Mankato may do so by one of the 

following methods: 

A. Telephone 

Contact the City of North Mankato's ADA Coordinator listed in the Contact Information section of 

Appendix 4-F to submit an oral grievance. The staff person will use the internet to electronically 

submit the grievance on behalf of the person filing it. 

B. Paper Submission 

A paper copy of the City's grievance form is available by request from the City of North Mankato's 

ADA Coordinator (contact information in Appendix 4-F). Complete the form and submit it to the 

City of North Mankato ADA Coordinator at the address listed . 

The City of will acknowledge receipt of the grievance to the citizen within 10 working days of the 

submission. City staff will then provide a response or resolution to the grievance or will provide 

information on when the citizen can expect a response. If the grievance filed does not fall within 

the City of North Mankato's jurisdiction, staff will work with the citizen to contact the agency with 

jurisdiction. 

When possible (typically within 60 calendar days or less of the grievance submission) City staff will 

conduct an investigation to determine the validity of the alleged violation. As a part of the 

investigation, internal staff will be consulted to fully understand the complaint and possible 

solutions. The City of North Mankato staff will contact the citizen to discuss the investigation and 

proposed resolution. 

The City of North Mankato will consider all grievances within its particular context or setting. 

Furthermore, the department will consider many varying circumstances including: access to 

applicable services, programs, or facilities; the nature of the disability; essential eligibility 

requirements for participation; health and safety of others; and degree to which a potential 

solution would constitute a fundamental alteration to the program, service, or facility, or cause 

undue hardship to the City of North Mankato. 

Appendix 4-E I Page 1 



Accordingly, the resolution by The City of North Mankato of any one grievance does not constitute 

a precedent upon which the City is bound or upon which other complaining parties may rely. 

Complaints of Title II violations may be filed with the Department of Justice (DOJ) within 180 days 

of the date of discrimination. In certain situations, cases may be referred to a mediation program 

sponsored by the DOJ. The DOJ may bring a lawsuit where it has investigated a matter and has 

been unable to resolve violations. 

For more information, contact: 

U.S. Department of Justice 

Civil Rights Division 

950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 

Disability Rights Section - NYAV 

Washington, D.C. 20530 

www.ada.gov 

{800) 514-0301 (voice) 

(800) 514-0383 (TIY) 

Title II may also be enforced through private lawsuits in Federal court. It is not necessary to file a 

complaint with the DOJ or any other Federal agency, or to receive a "right-to-sue" letter, before 

going to court. 

File Retention 

The City of North Mankato shall maintain ADA grievance files on behalf of the City for a period of 

seven years. 

Appendix 4-E I Page 2 



City North Mankato, MN ADA Grievance Form 

Instructions: Please fill out this form completely and submit to: 

City of North Mankato ADA Coordinator 
City of North Mankato, MN 
1001 Belgrade Avenue, 
North Mankato, MN 56002 

Or it can be e-mailed to: michaelf@northmankato.com 

Complainant - person filing grievance: 

Name: _ _ _________ _ ____ Date _____________ Address: 

___________ City, State, Zip Code: __________ _ 

Home: _____________ Cell: ____________ _ 

Work: Email : ------------- -------------
Representing - person claiming an accessibility issue or alleging and ADA violation (if not the complainant): 

Address: ___________ City, State, Zip Code: __________ _ 

Home: Cell: ------------- -------------
Work: Email : ------------- -------------
Description and location of the alleged violation and the nature of a remedy sought . 

If the complainant has filed the same complaint or grievance with the United States Department of Justice 
(DOJ), another federal or state civil rights agency, a court, or others, the name of the agency or court 
where the complainant filed it and the filing date. 

Agency or Court: _ _________ _ Contact Person : ---------------
Address: -------------- City, State, Zip Code:-------------

Phone Number: Date Filed : ------------ ----------------~ 

Appendix 4-E I Page 3 



Appendix 4-F: Contact Information 



I. Appendix 4-F: Responsible Officials and Key Staff 

A. Responsible Officials Contact Information 

1. City of North Mankato ADA Coordinator: 

Michael Fischer, Community Development Director 

1001 Belgrade Avenue 

North Mankato, MN 56002 

P: (507)625-4141 

E: michaelf@northmankato.com 

Appendix 4-F I Page 1 



Appendix 4-G: ADA Design Standards and 

Procedures 



I. Appendix 4-G: ADA Design Standards and Procedures 

A. Design Standards 

1. Public Rights-of-Way Accessibility Guidelines 

Public Rights-of-Way Accessibility Guidelines (PROWAG), developed by the Access Board, are 

draft guidelines that address accessibility in the public rights-of-way. Sidewalks, street 

crossings, and other elements of the public rights-of-way present unique challenges to 

accessibility for which specific guidance is considered essential. The Access Board is 

developing these guidelines that will address various issues, including access for visually 

impaired pedestrians at street crossings, wheelchair access to on-street parking, and various 

constraints posed by space limitations, roadway design practices, slope, and terrain. PROWAG 

can be found at http://www.access-board .gov/attachments/article/743/nprm.pdf. 

In 2010 and 2015, as a part of the development of MnDOT's Transition Plan, Mn DOT Issued 

Technical Memorandum 10-02-TR-01 Adoption of Public Rights of way Accessibility Guidance 

and Technical Memorandum No. 15--02-TR-01 Adoption of Public Rights-of-Way Accessibility 

Guidance (PROWAG). respectively to their staff, cities, and counties. These memorandums, 

which have both expired, make the PROWAG the primary guidance for accessible facility 

design on Mn DOT projects. In addition, these technical memorandums can be found on 

MnDOT's website. See (http://techmemos.dot.state.mn.us/) . 

2. Proposed Accessibility Guidelines for Pedestrian Facilities in the Public Right-of-Way 

The Access Board is proposing these accessibility guidelines for the design, construction, and 

alteration of pedestrian facilities in the public right-of-way. The guidelines ensure that 

sidewalks, pedestrian street crossings, pedestrian signals, and other facilities for pedestrian 

circulation and use constructed or altered in the public right-of-way by state and local 

governments are readily accessible for pedestrians with disabilities. When the guidelines are 

adopted, with or without additions and modifications, as accessibility standards in regulations 

issued by other federal agencies implementing the ADA, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, 

and the Architectural Barriers Act, compliance with these accessibility standards is 

mandatory. These proposed accessibility guidelines can be found on the Access Board 

website (http ://www.access-board.gov) under Public Rights-of-Way or at http://www.access

board.gov/attachments/article/743/nprm.pdf. 

3. Accessible Public Rights-of-Way Planning and Design for Alterations (August 2007) 

This report and its recommendations are the work of the Public Rights-of-Way Access 

Advisory Committee (PROWAAC) - Subcommittee on Technical Assistance and are intended 

to provide technical assistance only. The report is not a rule and has no legal effect. It has not 

been endorsed by the U.S. Access Board, the Department of Justice, or the Federal Highway 

Administration of the Department of Transportation. Still it can be a technical advisory source 

Appendix 4-G I Page 1 



for engineers and technicians who are planning and designing for alterations to pedestrian 

elements. This document is on the Access Board website (http://www.access-

board.gov) or at http://www.access-board.gov/attachments/article/756/guide.pdf. 

4. Minnesota Department of Transportation 

Building on the adoption of PROWAG as planning and design guidance for accessible 

pedestrian facilities, MnDOT has developed additional planning, design, and construction 

guidance that is available to local agencies. Listed below is information on additional design 

guidance available. This is not intended to be an exclu.sive or comprehensive list of ADA 

guidance, but rather an acknowledgement of guidance staff should consider and a starting 

point for information on providing accessible pedestrian facilities. 

The MnDOT Accessibility webpage, which has good information in a variety of subject areas 

related to ADA and accessibility, can be found at 

http://www.dot.state.mn.us/ada/index.html. The web page also provides the ability to sign up 

for ADA policy and design training classes when available and to review material from 

previous trainings. 

Curb Ramp Guidelines: http://www.dot.state.mn.us/ada/ pdf /curbramp.pdf 

ADA Project Design Guide Memo: 

http://www.dot.state.mn.us/ada/pdf /adapro jectdesignguidememo.pdf ADA Project Design 

Guide: http://www.dot.state.mn.us/ ada/ pdf / adapro jectdesignguide.pdf 

Pedestrian Curb Ramp Details Standard Plans 5-297.250 can be found on MnDOT's website at 

http://standardplans.dot.state.mn.us/ 

Driveway and Sidewalk Details Standard Plans 5-297.254 can be found on MnDOT's website 

at http://standardplans.dot.state.mn.us/ 

MnDOT's 7000 series Standard Plates, which are approved standards drawings, provide 

information on standard details of construction and materials related to curbs, gutters, and 

sidewalks are on MnDOT's website at http://standardplates.dot.state.mn.us/stdplate.aspx 

The MnDOT Road Design Manual serves as a uniform design guide for engineers and 

technicians working on Mn DOT projects. The document is available to others (such as 

Hennepin County) as a technical resource. Chapter 11- Special Designs, includes information 

on the design of pedestrian facilities. The Road Design Manual can be found at 

(http:// roaddesign.dot.state.mn.us/ roaddesign .aspx) 

MnDOT's Pedestrian Accommodations Through Work Zones webpage, 

http ://www.dot .stat e.mn.us/ trafficeng/workzone/ apr.html contains information on providing 

accessibility during impacts due to maintenance or construction activities. 

Appendix 4-G I Page 2 



B. Design Procedures 

1. Intersection Corners 

The City of North Mankato will attempt to construct or upgrade pedestrian curb ramps to be 

consistent with Access Board recommended designs parameters and MnDOT ADA design 

guidance and procedures to the extent feasible within all capital reconstruction projects. 

There may be limitations which make it technically infeasible for the City to achieve these 

goals at an intersection corner within the scope of any project. Those limitations will be noted 

and the intersection corners will be constructed to maximize accessibility to the extent 

feasible within the project scope. As future projects or opportunities arise, additional 

improvements at these locations may be incorporated into future projects. The City will strive 

to ensure that each intersection corner is constructed to be as accessible as possible. 

2. Sidewalks I Trails 

The City of North Mankato will attempt to construct or upgrade sidewalks and trails to be 

consistent with Access Board recommended designs parameters, MnDOT ADA design 

guidance and procedures to the extent feasible within all capital improvement projects. There 

may be limit~tions which make it technically infeasible for the City to achieve these goals 

within all segments of sidewalks or trails within the scope of any project. Those limitations 

will be noted and those segments will be constructed to maximize accessibility to the extent 

feasible within the project scope. As future projects or opportunities arise, additional 

improvements at these locations may be incorporated into future projects. The City will strive 

to ensure that every sidewalk or trail is constructed to be as accessible as possible. 

Appendix 4-G I Page 3 



Proposed Resolution _____ _ 

Resolution NO. -------

A Resolution Adopting Part 1 and Part _ of the Mankato/North Mankato Area Planning 
Organization (MAPO) Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Transition Plan and 

Inventory for Public Rights-of-Way 

WHEREAS, the Federal government enacted the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) of 1990 to prevent discrimination of individuals with disabilities relating to employment 
and access to public programs, services and facilities; and 

WHEREAS, Title II of the ADA requires applicable public agencies who have 
responsibility or authority over streets, roads, or walkways to develop and adopt a Transition 
Plan which reports the findings of a Self-Evaluation process, identifies a Title II ADA 
Coordinator, describes a plan and schedule for the removal of accessibility barriers, and defines a 
grievance procedure for the public to submit grievances; and 

WHEREAS, the Mankato/North Mankato Area Planning Organization (MAPO), under 
directive from the Federal Highway Administration (FHW A) and the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation (MnDOT), has initiated and partially funded the development of ADA Transition 
Plans for partner agencies included within its jurisdiction; and 

WHEREAS, _[City/County]_ is committed to constructing pedestrian facilities designed 
in accordance with ADA Design Standards and Procedures defined in the Public Rights-of-Way 
Accessibility Guidelines (PROW AG), and the Proposed Accessibility Guidelines for Pedestrian 
Facilities in the Public Rights-of-Way developed by the Access Board; and 

WHEREAS, _[City/County]_ is committed to constructing pedestrian facilities designed 
in accordance with ADA Design Standards and Procedures defined by the Minnesota 
Department of Transportation (MnDOT); and 

WHEREAS, _[City/County]_ performed a Self-Evaluation of current services, policies, 
and practices, and the effects thereof, to identify and document barriers to ADA accessibility and 
needed modifications; and 



WHEREAS, _[Ci ty/County]_ completed Part _ of the MAPO ADA Transition Plan 
and Inventory for Public Rights-of-Way which reports the findings of the Self-Evaluation 
process, identifies a Title II ADA Coordinator, describes a plan and schedule for the removal of 
accessibility barriers, and defines a grievance procedure for the public to submit grievances; and 

WHEREAS, _[City/County]_ provided an opportunity to interested persons, including 
individuals with disabilities or organizations representing individuals with disabilities, to 
participate in the Self-Evaluation process and development of the ADA Transition Plan by 
submitting comments; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that _[City/County]_ hereby adopts Part 1 -
MAPO Partner Agency Requirements and Project Purpose concurrently with Part_ -
_[City/County]_ ADA Transition Plan and Inventory of the over-arching MAPO ADA 
Transition Plan and Inventory for Public Rights-of-Way document, a copy of which shall be filed 
with and maintained by _[City/County]_ Clerk. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City/County will pursue 
the removal of barriers identified in the Self-Evaluation during reconstructions and as part of the 
capital improvements approved by the governing body provided said improvements are within 
the fiscal budgetary constraints of the jurisdiction. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this_-- day of ____ _, 2019. 


	Agenda #6. Approval of Council Work Session Minutes from March 25, 2019.
	7.	Approval of Council Minutes from April 1, 2019.

	Agenda #7. Approval of Council Minutes from April 1, 2019.
	Agenda #8. Approval of Council Work Session Minutes from April 8, 2019.
	Agenda #9A. Bills and Appropriations.
	Agenda #9B. Consider Resolution Approving Donations/Contributions/Grants.
	Agenda #9C. Consider Approving League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust Liability Coverage Waiver Form.
	Agenda #9D. Consider Approving Taxi License for BEC Enterprises, LLC, DBA Blue Earth Taxi from April 15, 2019, to December 31, 2019. 
	Agenda #9E. Consider Approving Developer Agreement for Privately Financed Improvements the Landing North Phase 4 with KWS, LLC.
	Agenda #9F. Consider Approving the Labor Agreement between the City of North Mankato and North Mankato Police Department Lieutenants Law Enforcement Labor Services, Inc. (Local No. 394).
	Agenda #9G. Consider Setting Public Hearing for May 6, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. to Consider Ordinance No. 113, Amending North Mankato City Code, Title V, Public Works, Chapter 71, Parking Regulations.
	Agenda #11A. Consider Resolution Approving MN/DOT Contract No. 1033832 Appointing MN/DOT as the City’s Agent in Accepting Federal Aid Funds in Conjunction with the 2019 Commerce Drive Improvement Project.
	Agenda #11B. Consider Setting a Public Hearing for May 6, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. to Consider a Request to Amend City Code Section 156.035 Related to Swimming Pool Setbacks.
	Agenda #11C. Consider Approving RubyRide Transportation Service Agreement.
	Agenda #11D. Consider Approving RubyRide Service Level Agreement for the City of North Mankato, Minnesota.
	Agenda #11E. Receive Information on MAPO ADA Transition Plan and Inventory.

